



Abba Hillel Silver Collection Digitization Project

Featuring collections from the Western Reserve Historical Society and
The Jacob Rader Marcus Center of the American Jewish Archives

MS-4787: Abba Hillel Silver Papers, 1902-1989.

Series V: Writings, 1909-1963, undated.

Reel
180

Box
66

Folder
591

Morale building in America, 1942.

Ruthie Silver

The morale of a people in time of war depends upon confidence. Confidence in the cause for which it is fighting, in the leadership entrusted with the safety of the nation and in final victory. If any one of these confidences is absent or is undermined, the morale of the people will not long stand the strain of a prolonged conflict and will crack at the decisive moment. Initial enthusiasm or lack of enthusiasm for the war is not consequential. Sustained faith in the objectives, the leadership and the outcome is paramount.

The cause for which our country is fighting in this war is a just cause. The classic tradition of America is at stake -- the tradition which ^{is} one form or another we fought to defend in the Revolutionary War, the Civil War and the last World War. -- Our foes recognize, quite as well as we do, what is involved in this war. Hitler called it a war between two worlds. He realizes as well as we do that much more than territory, living space, empire or access to raw materials are involved. Far, far more! Shall man be free? Shall he be made secure in his unalienable rights? Shall governments derive their powers from the consent of the governed, shall the people maintain the right to alter or abolish their form of government whenever it becomes destructive of their rights? Shall men remain equal before the law? All these values which the Western World has come to regard as of the very essence of progressive civilization are involved, and much

more besides.

Time and again these liberties purchased in blood must be defended when endangered or reconquered when lost. They are never permanently secure. They are least secure when taken for granted. Always there are present in the world and within each free country forces which are not reconciled to human freedom and which can thrive only when men or nations are subjugated or exploited. They are always poised for attack, waiting for their opportunity. They are most vigilant and alert when the forces of freedom are , and at ease and complacent about their liberties. At no time in human history has such a combination of reactionary forces so skillful, so ruthless, so conscienceless, arisen to launch a mass attack upon the intellectual and spiritual gains of mankind and upon the whole classic Judaeo-Christian tradition, as in our day. Mankind is being threatened with a universal breakdown and blackout. An axis victory would mean the end of that way of life which the Renaissance, the American and French Revolutions and the heroic social struggles of the centuries have achieved.

This way of life is worth fighting for. It is worth dying for. A life of freedom and dignity is the kind of a life God meant men to achieve and to defend. Our forefathers have achieved it for us. We must now defend it for those who come after us. This is our first great confidence. Our unshakable belief in the eternal

validity of those ideals to whose solemn altars we have now been summoned to bring our supreme sacrifices.

The American people ~~was~~ slow at first to grasp the character and the full implications of the social conflicts which have been ravaging Europe since the last war. They did not understand the total spiritual and intellectual anarchy and the degradation of man and societies which the philosophers of Nazism and Fascism represented.

Being a peace loving people and recoiling from the last war which resulted in such a large measure of frustration and disillusionment, it would not credit the world conquering ambitions of the axis powers and refused to be involved in any effort to circumvent them. Democratic peoples, geographically much closer to these powers, were similarly minded to ignore or to play down the menace. They have since paid a fearful price for their lack of insight and foresight and for their attempts to appease the unappeasable Moloch and to make themselves secure behind the walls of neutrality and isolation.

The American people was sharply divided on the issues of isolationism and interventionism, and many sincere people and many deluded people and many foreign agents helped to divide and to confuse our people on this fictitious issue. I call it a fictitious issue because the choice before our people was never isolation versus intervention, but isolation versus cooperation. It was clear that we would have to

intervene in any major European war, considering what our position in the world is.

No isolation is possible for a nation as focal, as significant, whose economic life is so interlocked with that of the whole world. The choice for us to make was whether we wished to cooperate actively in checking would-be aggressors -- and thus maintain world peace -- or wait until their aggressions dragged the world and us along with it into another world war. But though our counsels were divided and our recognition was slow, we are divided no longer and we now understand fully the character of the struggle. We also understand now the desperate character of the struggle, the might, resourcefulness and viciousness of the enemy -- and the cost which we shall have to pay for victory. We have already suffered some disastrous defeats and from all indications we shall suffer many more. We have lost our delusions and our self-delusions and it is as a sobered, united and determined people that we are "moving into the storm and we shall come through the storm."

Our morale is also built on confidence in our leadership. We have at the head of our Government at this hour of grave crisis, a man of unquestioned patriotism, great courage and political sagacity. Our nation has been blessed by a kind Providence. In its hour of destiny it never failed to produce a leader who matched the hour, adequate to the occasion.

Neither the Revolutionary War nor the Civil War was an easy or a speedy

war. Seven long and bitter years of fighting were required in order to achieve the purposes of the Revolution, and four years of bloody civil strife in the case of the Civil War. In either instance the armies were poorly equipped, inadequately trained or prepared. There was apathy, factionalism, appeasement trends, treachery and colossal blunders. But the American Revolution had George Washington, and the Civil War, Abraham Lincoln. Washington, providentially, had those virtues which the ebullient and individualistic young nation did not have. He was able to steady the Revolution, discipline it, put iron in its purpose and patience in its soul. He knew how to keep alive the loyalty of men whose morale was being drained by long years of weariness, disillusion and defeat.

In Lincoln, the riven and tortured nation found a man strong with the strength of the elements who could hold on to a purpose in the face of abuse, hate, contempt and defeat, and to whose strength and wisdom there was also added an overflowing measure of spiritual moderation and kindness which could look ahead through the darkness of civil strife to other reconciliation and reunion.

This war, too, has given our people a man matched to the hour, of clear vision, firm in the face of opposition, astute in the presence of treachery and disloyalty, of strong convictions but not fanatical, of great ideals but not visionary. President Roosevelt understood the social struggle which was behind

the European upheavals. He had the insight to understand that reconstruction was imperative. He saw it come everywhere by way of revolution, blood, terror and dictatorship. For his own country he wished this reconstruction to be achieved through evolutionary methods of peaceful progress, through the guided technique of democratic/government. ^{self-} He read well the trend of his time. He understood too, better than any other statesman the dangers which were lurking in the spread of Fascism, and years before our country was finally plunged into the Second World War, he called for a union of forces among all the democratic nations to resist the Fascist aggressors. He was not heeded. He was called an international meddler and a war monger. But December 7, 1941 completely vindicated his statesmanship and leadership. America is again fortunate in having a strong hand and a wise head at the helm.

And the men who surround the President, who occupy in this critical time key positions in government, in industry, in labor, in the armed forces of our nation, and in civilian services are overwhelmingly men of profound loyalty who will stand by our country. Mistakes will be made. There will be blunders. There will be incompetence. There will be inefficiency. There were in every war which America waged and won. In the hasty improvisation for a gigantic struggle among the people given to the ways of peace not rigidly organized or disciplined,

such things are inevitable, but there will be ~~no~~ malicious ~~or~~ intentional sabotage
of the war effort by our responsible officials ~~except in the rarest incidents.~~

Sabotage will come from other groups and circles in our country and we shall have
to guard ourselves against them. Thus our morale is grounded in confidence, in the
leaders whom a free people chose and who will not betray them.

There is finally the confidence in ultimate victory which will ~~feed~~ ^{sustain} the
morale of our people. There is of course great danger in over-confidence. It is
a delusion that under any and all circumstances, we and the United nations are

unbeatable. We may lose this war. Some believe that at the rate we are going now
~~we shall lose in~~ ^{are} this war. The hope that our overwhelming potential resources are of

themselves sure guarantee of victory, is a dangerously delusive hope. Every great
empire which collapsed in the past was potentially far richer, and territorially
far greater than the enemy which finally overthrew it. It is the hungry, lean and
impoverished peoples, reckless and all-out in their attack, which ~~have~~ in the past
humbled ~~into dust~~ powerful empires, weakened by the very obesity of their wealth
and abundance, and unwilling or unable to mobilize all that they have of material
and spiritual forces at the critical point and the critical ~~forxxxxxxthe~~ hour
of decision. We may lose this war, but we need not.

Given the spiritual factors
which ~~in~~ ^{for} a successful prosecution of ~~the~~ war are indispensable -- alertness,

boldness,
sacrifice, discipline and resoluteness -- which are uncertain factors in our
~~we~~
situation. ~~we~~ have all else that is requisite ~~for~~ total victory. We have a billion
men on our side -- peoples who are interested in ~~the~~ common victory not out of lust
~~for~~ conquest or lordship or racial insolence, but out of love of home and native land
and their own freedom and the freedom of all men. Ranged on our side are the great
people of China who have for four bitter years of warfare defied the overwhelming
might of Nippon, ~~and~~ the Russian people who have ~~destroyed~~ already ~~the~~ myth of ~~the~~ invincibility
of Nazi arms, and the peoples of the great ~~English~~ British commonwealth who have known how to
face military disaster and the bombing and destruction of their fair cities without
flinching and without complaining, and who return time and again to the fray
~~WBHS~~
~~1966~~
undaunted and unyielding. Ranged with us are the gallant armies of the smaller
nations -- who on alien but friendly soil are keeping alight the torch which for the
in their native lands.
time has been dimmed ~~at home~~. We have the greatest industrial plant in the world,
and are capable of producing all the material which a long war will require. Our
power and our might are increasing day by day while the resources of our enemies
are ~~deemed~~ bound to dwindle. If we do not fail in the spirit, we will not fail on the
battlefield.

These three confidences upon which our national morale is built can be undermined. There are not wanting in our midst certain elements which are exploiting every opportunity to undermine them. There are potential Quislings, native and foreign-born Fascists and reactionaries of every stamp, who are hoping for an Axis victory or for a negotiated peace which would be tantamount to an Axis victory.

Whenever the United Nations will suffer a set-back in this war, ~~they~~ ^{these elements} will be heard from. ~~Their~~ The refrain will be: "We can not win this war. The cost ~~will~~ ^{is} be too great.

Great Britain is unloading the war upon us. The Russians will pull out. A victory against the Axis will turn the world over to Russian Communism. Let's make peace with Hitler in order to fight Japan. Let's make peace with Japan in order to fight Hitler." Everything will be done by these cunning ~~fifth columnists~~ ^{Ax's agents} and their dupes to confuse our counsel, ~~to sow disunion and suspicion~~ and to paralyze our national will. The failure of the peace after the last war will be ~~quoted~~ ^{quoted} as a deadly parallel to discourage the apes of our people for a just and lasting peace after this war.

Attempts will be made to undermine confidence in our leadership. Politicians ^{too} ~~for partisan purposes~~ will seek to capitalize upon every industrial or military failure during the war to discredit the Administration ~~and for partisan gain~~.

Above all, racial and religious antagonisms will be ~~incited~~ ^{aroused} by the unscrupulous agents of ~~our enemies~~, native and foreign born. This is the classic Nazi technique.

and as a technique for coming into power

← Thus, ever since their coming to power, the Nazis have consistently employed anti-Semitism as a political weapon with which to confound the political life of those peoples whom they have marked down for conquest. Anti-semitism has been found to be one of the most effective devices for destroying democratic forms of government. It sows discontent and disunion among a people and undermines its power of resistance to Nazi aggression.

Every racial and religious bigot in the United States today is a fifth columnist. He is far more dangerous than the parachutist behind the line who disrupts the armies' lines of communication and creates disorder and chaos.

R Those who discriminate against negroes in our defense industries are helping to undermine the morale and the loyalty of millions of our people. We can not wage war upon the vicious racialism of the Third Reich and at the same time tolerate it in our own free country.

I have spoken of three confidences to ~~social~~ basic national agencies of our nation -- the church, the school, the home -- ~~can be most effective~~ must energetically in fostering them. Christianity and Judaism alike are fighting for survival

in this war. Neither can afford to be indifferent to the struggle, or above the battle. Neither can afford to devote itself exclusively to considerations of the

which is to follow

peace after the war without first making sure that the war will be won. In an

Axis-dominated world there will be no room for any peace program ~~that~~ any great

religious organization can conceivably evolve. The Church can do much to

in this crisis To arouse their sacrificial loyalties and
enlighten and inform our people, to hearten and ~~to~~ strengthen them for the trials

awaiting them, ~~and~~ at the same time ~~to~~ prepare them for the greater tasks of

reconstruction which await them at the close of the war. A world federation which

will avoid the fatal mistakes of the League of Nations and which will assure all

international can alone compensate
peoples security within a just economic and political system ~~must come to be.~~

~~world war would cost in life and substance which the world~~

~~new charter of liberty, a new Bill of Rights for individuals, minorities and~~

nations must be proclaimed. We must not repeat the mistakes of Versailles, nor should

those mistakes discourage us from experimenting anew with better and sounder forms

of international organization. The Church must fight to win the war. It must

also fight to win the peace.

Our Schools, High Schools and Colleges, ~~have~~ also a great role to play in ~~the up-~~
~~building of~~ ~~our~~ ~~organizations~~ ~~and~~ ~~should~~ ~~national morale.~~ ~~The democratic educational processes~~ ~~must~~ be exploited to the

utmost to bring home to ~~the~~ young generation the meaning of struggle. What is this

American way of life which is now under attack? Why is it being attacked? What would

we lose and what would the world lose if the ~~philosophies~~ of Hitler, ~~and~~ Mussolini

~~ever come to~~ ~~doctrines~~ and Hirohito ~~supplant the philosophies~~ of Washington ~~and~~ Franklin ~~and~~ Jefferson

and Lincoln? The opportunity is great for our educational agencies to mobilize our

youth not only for ~~active~~ participation in those patriotic duties which young men may

be called upon to perform ~~during~~ the duration of the war, but also for a more earnest

~~How have we tried to adjust the relations between the
individual and the state? How have we been recouping the
study of American institutions and traditions, in the way which we have tried to
foster what the individual with freedom
friendly contacts~~

solve ~~here~~ our economic problems and the ~~relationships~~ between groups, classes and
~~religions~~²

~~creeds.~~ The opportunity is great for us to ~~extend~~ the intellectual horizons of our

young people now that the armies of America are actually ~~reaching~~ every point of

the horizon. The generation of tomorrow ~~must be~~ far more internationally minded

and far more concerned with what is ~~transpiring~~ to the South, to the East and to

the West of us, than previous generations have been. A better informed, less

centripetal and more realistic patriotism will be ~~called for~~ in the years to come. ~~in our
own national salvation.~~

The peace and security of America will depend upon the peace and security of the

rest of the world. The ~~next~~ ^{coming} generation will have to think far more in terms of

humanity and mankind, if only as a service to their own country. The schools,

through their courses in History, Civics, Economics, Geography, and International

~~relations, have a great opportunity~~ not only to confirm the spirit of our youth

for the war in which many of them may be active participants, but also for their

~~in a circumneutral world-order~~
~~as American citizens after the war.~~

Finally, our homes ~~may~~ be the refuge and the sanctuary of the sorely tried

spirits of our people wherein they ^{they} can find ~~that~~ peace and refreshment of spirit which the world outside will deny them as long as the war lasts. The war will demand a Spartan discipline of our people -- thrift, frugality, self-sacrifice. These virtues may best be practised in the home. When each member of the household will willingly assume that task for which he is equipped, and will faithfully perform it, each home will become a strong nucleus of national power in the emergency.

WRHS
~~~~~  
~~~~~



Morale Building in America

RABBI ABBA HILLEL SILVER

The Temple, Cleveland

THE morale of a people in time of war depends upon confidence, confidence in the cause for which it is fighting, in the leadership entrusted with the safety of the nation and in final victory.

The cause for which our country is fighting in this war is a just cause. The classic tradition of America is at stake, the tradition which in one form or another we fought to defend in the Revolutionary War, the Civil War and the last World War.

Our foes recognize, quite as well as we do, what is involved in this war. Hitler called it a war between two worlds. He realizes as well as we do that much more than territory, living space, empire or access to raw materials is involved. Far, far more!

Our way of life is worth fighting for. It is worth dying for. A life of freedom and dignity is the kind of life God meant men to achieve and to defend.

Our Leader Matches Need

Our morale is also built on confidence in our leadership. We have at the head of our government at this hour of grave crisis a man of unquestioned patriotism, great courage and political sagacity. In its hour of destiny our nation has never failed to produce a leader who matched the hour, adequate to the occasion.

The men who surround the President, who occupy in this critical time key positions in government, in industry, in labor, in the armed forces of our nations and in civilian services are overwhelmingly men of profound loyalty who will stand by our country. There will be blunders, incompetence and inefficiency. There were in every war that American waged and won. Such things are inevitable but there will be little malicious and intentional sabotage of the war effort by our responsible officials.

There is finally the confidence in ultimate victory that will sustain the morale of our people. There is, of course, great danger of overconfidence. We may lose this war. Some believe that at the rate we are going now, we are losing this war.

The hope that our overwhelming potential resources are of themselves sure guarantee of victory is a dangerously delusive hope. Every great empire that collapsed in the past was potentially far richer and territorially far greater than the enemy that finally overthrew it. It is the hungry, lean, impoverished peoples, reckless and all-out in their attack, that have in the past humbled powerful empires, weakened by the very obesity of their wealth and abundance and unwilling and unable to mobilize all that they have of material and spiritual forces at the critical point and the critical hour of decision.

We may lose this war but we need not. Given the spiritual factors which for a successful prosecution of war are indispensable — alertness, boldness, sacrifice, discipline and resoluteness — which are uncertain factors in our situation, we have all else that is requisite for total victory. If we do not fail in spirit, we will not fail on the battlefield.

These three confidences upon which our national morale is built can be undermined. There are potential Quislings, native and foreign born Fascists and reactionaries of every stamp who are hoping for an Axis victory or for a negotiated peace that would be tantamount to an Axis victory. Everything will be done by these cunning Axis agents and their dupes to confuse our counsel and to paralyze our national will.

Attempts, too, will be made to undermine our confidence in our leadership. Politicians will seek to capitalize for partisan purposes upon every industrial or military failure during the war to discredit the administration.

Must Shun Racial Bigotry

Above all, racial and religious antagonisms will be aroused by the unscrupulous agents of our enemies, native and foreign born. This is the classic Nazi technic.

Every racial and religious bigot in the United States today is a fifth columnist. He is far more dangerous than the parachutist behind the line.

Those who discriminate against Negroes in our defense industries are helping to undermine the morale and the loyalty of millions of our people. We cannot wage war upon the vicious racialism of the third Reich abroad and at the same time tolerate it at home in our own free country.

I have spoken of three confidences basic to national morale. At heart they are all spiritual realities. Because they are spiritual, the great spiritual agencies of our nation — the church, the school and the home — must energetically and unremittingly foster them.

Christianity and Judaism alike are fighting for survival in this war. Neither can afford to be indifferent to the struggle or to raise itself above the battle. Neither can afford to devote itself exclusively to considerations of the peace that is to follow the war without first making sure that the war will be won.

What School and Home Can Do

Our schools, high schools and colleges also have a great rôle to play in the upbuilding of national morale. Our schools, through their courses in history, civics, economics, geography, sociology and international relations, are challenged today not only to confirm the spirit of our youths for the war in which many of them may be active participants but also to prepare them for their rôles as American citizens in a circumambient world order after the war.

Finally, our homes should be the refuge and the sanctuary of the sorely tried spirits of our people wherein they may find that peace of spirit which the world outside will deny them as long as the war lasts.

The war demands a Spartan discipline of our people — thrift, frugality, self-sacrifice. These virtues may best be practiced at home. When each member assumes his task, each home will become a strong nucleus of national power in the emergency.

Morale Building

JOHN W. STUDEBAKER
U. S. Commissioner of Education

in Our Schools and Colleges

WHAT can schools and colleges do to build an invincible morale? The answer has already been given by thousands of our schools and colleges in actual practice. First, they are continuing in uninterrupted operation. That in itself is a distinct contribution to the spirit of the civilian population. With the conversion of industry and disruption of economic life, security in the homes of the land must be maintained. A large element in the security of homes is the feeling that children and youth are being properly cared for.

Can Organize Nursery Schools

Small children in elementary schools have little to contribute directly to a successful prosecution of the war. These children must be made to feel secure and their parents must be relieved of anxiety concerning them. As more and more mothers leave the home for employment in war industries, they must know that their children are being well cared for. The schools can help to organize nursery schools and to train lay volunteers for the before-and-after school care of children.

Parents must know also that proper provision has been made by school authorities for the safety of children at school through the organization of approved air-raid measures of precaution.

Schools are also contributing to morale by giving attention to mental hygiene measures affecting school children. With the family dislocations of war—with fathers or brothers in the military services, with mothers or sisters at work in war industries—children must find security in the calm and sympathetic understanding of teachers. They must be protected against demoralization of family life and lack of supervision. This calls for a strengthening of the social services of the schools, for home calls or visiting teacher services to deal understandingly with the causes of school non-attendance or incipient juvenile delinquency.

In war time the schools are making better provision for the physical hygiene and care of children and youths. It is entirely possible that war-time needs for medical men and for trained nurses will so deplete American schools of the services of nurses and physicians that teachers will be called upon to carry increased responsibility for health services to children.

Again, the schools are contributing to civilian morale in the health field by measures for the proper nutrition of children. The schools can do much to see to it that every child has an adequate school lunch. In this connection many schools are planning school gardens and the provision of school lunchroom facilities to ensure a nutritious luncheon, at public expense if necessary, to every child in school.

If morale in the elementary school is made up chiefly of the ingredient of security, morale building in the secondary school is to a large extent a matter of participation in useful work for the common cause. High school youths can be given an important part to play in civilian defense. Older high school boys can act as messengers, as auxiliary firemen; the girls can make bandages and surgical dressings in home economics classes; they can serve as nursing aids; they can help in emergency feeding depots if necessary.

Perhaps the most realistic service that high school youths can render is to get themselves ready to take an efficient part in the productive life of the community. We are going to need all our productive man power. Boys, and some girls too, must learn how to tend lathes, to plant and harvest crops, to work in mines, shipyards and aircraft factories. There is a growing reorientation of the high school curriculum in the direction of training for work.

Educational and vocational guidance services in the schools are being expanded. In many high schools and colleges at least one professionally

trained person has been assigned the responsibility of counseling youths, presenting them with the facts concerning the various possibilities for service. Here, in this guidance service, are places for vital contributions from many competent volunteer workers.

Finally, the local school systems, the high schools and the colleges are building morale by becoming centers for adult education. Civilian morale in a democracy must be built upon the wisdom and understanding of the ordinary man and woman. "Freedom's Forums" for organized discussion of public affairs aimed at real and full understanding of the meaning of this world-wide struggle and of ways to participate in the prosecution of the war, may, therefore, be regarded as a major contribution of school and college administrators to civilian morale.

Schools Have Chance to Serve

Today the schools and colleges of the nation have an unparalleled opportunity to act with unity and vision, to submerge provincialism and institutional vested interests in a great national cause. Schools and colleges are being recognized as a great national service agency as they are called upon to organize civilian participation in the educational phases of health, welfare and related activities; to expand their training programs for workers in the war industries; to channel the enthusiasm and energy of youths into a wide variety of needed community services.

Let us all stand behind our professional organization; let us all follow its leadership, and let us act with zeal to carry out the policies enunciated in its recent pronouncement, "A War Policy for American Schools." Thus, shall we build morale in our schools and colleges—a morale based on the clear understanding, the certainty of purpose and the deep convictions that will carry us through to victory.

1) Morale depends Confidence - (1) Cause (2) Leadership
(3) Victory. If one missing - undermine not
sharing - create - Initial enthusiasm
not consequential - Sustained faith - objective
- Paramount

2). The Cause - just - Classic Trial of Am - at Stalls
- in one form or another - fight to defend
Our Far neighbors - Hitler, 2 worlds
much more → Shall men be Free?
Secure in his Vulnerable spot! -
Shall gods continue to derive - after
Equal before law? - all these of issue

3). Time and again these liberties - against
Power must be - Never permanent Secure!
Least secure - taken for granted
Always the few protect - not rewarded
think only - Subjugated Oppressed
Always poised for attack - waiting
Vigilant - when free, Freedom - complacent
ff-guard

4). At no time have these faces - so skillful

last mothers - cow members - mass attack
upon sp. & simple. order ⁽²⁾

{ - Reunited Universal Bratt-dean-Blackout
- Axis Victory - End - way life - Pennsylvania
know social struggle / duties

1. This way of life - worth fighting for - Dying
a life of freedom + dignity - God meant
Our Fathers achieved it - we must
Ours First Great Confidence! Unshakable
belief in Eternal Validity - ideals
- at whose command alters - Scattered

2. Gen. people slow at first to grasp
full implications - scorning Europe
Total sp. + intellectual Anarchy - Degradation
Bury a Peace - loving - Recovery
walk w/ credit - Refuse to be
con involved - discontent
Dense. peoples - geograph. much closer

similarly needed to figure - play dates⁽³⁾
Since paid - back just for right
attempts to appear - unashamed McLah
math Es seem behind walls - Newspaper
- rotation

1). Am. people sharply divided - hot - later
many sincere - deluded - agents - surface
bickering issue

It should have been clear - interview
considering our position - No Isd. at
possible for - local - sign of interlocked
the choices - corporate authority - a
want -

→ But those on Convales were divided -
very slow no longer . We understand
also the Desperate character - might -
reserveness - hardness - viciousness
and the Cost - Already suffered
lost also Delusions - It is as a
zombie - 'Ghosts'

- 8) Leadership - we have at least - inspiration⁽⁴⁾
Patriotism - Courage - Sacrifice
- Blessed - Honor, Destiny -
Neither Rev. Abol - easy - speedy
- ? long years - required to revere & 4
in neither warfare - armies - Apathy
- But - Gen. Rev. Washington - Lincoln
- W. providentially passed - iron - key
alone
- Lincoln - strength, element - head
his Orde - an on play Moscow
- I Moderation - look ahead
- This war - too matched his time
- Our win - from in the - acute
in persever stay correct - practical
Great ideal - not Victor
- Understand Social History
- Reconstruction Imperialism
- Innovation - War - Way - De-
 - Fatigati

9) Men who surround him - who occupy⁽⁵⁾
loyalty - flattery - for every has
In hasty impetuosity - gauth, they
among a people - here - mostly org
little intention of sabotage - from other
place another

Much demand cash - knowledges

10). Vietnamese Victory

Great danger in self-confidence!
A illusion - men under all circum-
we may lose - from behind

Potential Resources - Every nation can
obey - unwilling - unable Motiv,
we may lose - need not - Given the
SP forces - altruism - obedience,
- all else

A billion people - common Victory

Ranged on one side - China - Russia
British - Gallant allies

Great want to plant - Indochina

- 11). Undermine - hot war strategy - Axis (6)
Victory - negotiated peace
- will be hard from - defeats
Reprisals
- Farben, Past War -

12). Politicians -

13). Recent & Relyables antagonists with
Clarke Nogi telephone

- Ever since they came to power
- Every antis = a 5th columnist
- More dangerous - Parachuted
- Major - cannot way han-Bretton

14). Spiritual - agrees

Church - survival - cannot afford
- devote itself - after war

Fascist Axis - dominated

Evil Hitler - antisocial - heister - fascist

A World Federation - comprachista

A new Charter - Mistakes of Versailles

- 1) Our schools - great role - building (?)
our educational system - explored
meaning - What are - What is true,
way of life? What is it attractive?
What would we lose - doctrines
- Motivations - not only - practical
current study of an institution - tackle.
- How have we fried?
- Stretch Intel. horizons - new
- Tasks naturally intended - South
- A better informed - centrifugal - white
Patriots - as peace & security
- Our Schools - history etc w/
My culture - for home

10) How - Refugee - ~~East~~ particular
discipline - Each

11) Adam

THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS

A Department of the National Education Association of the United States

OFFICIAL PROGRAM

72nd Annual Convention
SAN FRANCISCO

February 21-26
1942



CONVENTION THEME
Education for a
Free People

DIRECTORY OF MEETINGS

ORGANIZATIONS	SAT. 21			SUN. 22			MON. 23			TUES. 24			WED. 25			THURS. 26		
	A. M.	P. M.	EVE.	A. M.	P. M.	EVE.	A. M.	P. M.	EVE.	A. M.	P. M.	EVE.	A. M.	P. M.	EVE.	A. M.	P. M.	
American Association of School Administrators—General Sessions.....						3	5	6		7	8		9	10		12	13	14
American Association of School Administrators—Discussion Groups.....									15			18			22			
Glimpses of the Golden West.....										6			9			12		
Patriotic Films.....													9					
British War Films.....																12		14
American Educational Research Association.....									27	27	27	27	27					
Department of Classroom Teachers.....		28	28	28	28				28	28				28		28		28
Department of Elementary School Principals.....									29	29	29		29		30	30		
Department of Rural Education.....						30			30				31		31			
Department of Supervisors and Directors of Instruction.....	32	32		32					32	33		33	34			34		
Department of Vocational Education.....													34			34		
National Association of Secondary-School Principals.....				34						35			35			35		
National Association of State High School Supervisors and Directors.....	36	36																
National Council of Chief State School Officers.....										37								
National Council of Childhood Education.....															37	37		
National Council of Education.....												38		38				
National Society for the Study of Education.....					39						39							
National Society of College Teachers of Education.....				40						41	41		41	41				
Breakfasts—Luncheons—Dinners.....				43	43	43	44	44	44	44	44	45	45	46	47	47	47	47
Other Meetings.....	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48	48

Figures in chart refer to page numbers.

GENERAL PROGRAM

THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS

A Department of the National Education Association of the United States

OUR POLICY—The American Association of School Administrators endorses no individual or group of individuals or any sentiment expressed by any speaker or other participant in its programs, except by resolution or by motion approved by a vote of its members.

CONVENTION THEME

Education for a Free People

FIRST GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

Vesper Service—Spiritual Values in Education

SUNDAY
Feb. 22
3:30 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

Their only hope of genuine victory here is the building in all haste of powerful spiritual ramparts for the defense of the democratic faith.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, Superintendent of Schools, Schenectady, N. Y.; President, American Association of School Administrators

INSTRUMENTAL PRELUDE (3:30 to 4:00 P. M.)

INVOCATION

The Very Reverend Thomas H. Wright, D.D., Dean, Grace Cathedral, San Francisco, Calif.

SAN FRANCISCO STATE COLLEGE CHORAL-INSTRUMENTAL ENSEMBLE—William E. Knuth, *Chairman*

VESPER MUSICALE—“Let Every Tongue Adore Thee”

An original vesper program with presentation of music planned by the music students of the San Francisco State College under the inspiration of the convention theme, “Education for a Free People.” The music has been selected, arranged, and composed by students and faculty. The choral-instrumental ensemble represents an integration of the College Band, Symphony Orchestra, Madrigal Singers, A Cappella Choir, Men’s Glee Club, and the Oratorio Chorus, and is conducted by the following members of the music faculty—William E. Knuth, Karl D. Ernst, Eileen L. McCall, Roy E. Freeburg, Raymond L. White, and Wendell Otey.

PRIORITIES FOR EDUCATORS

The Reverend Bruce R. Baxter, Resident Bishop, The Methodist Church, The Portland Area, Portland, Oregon

BENEDICTION

Platform Guests—Executive Committee of the American Association of School Administrators, Superintendent Joseph P. Nourse of San Francisco

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

SUNDAY
Feb. 22
3:30 P. M.
Congregational
Methodist
Temple

FIRST GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Vesper Service—Spiritual Values in Education

Their only hope of genuine victory here is the building in all haste of powerful spiritual ramparts for the defense of the democratic faith.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, Milton C. Potter, Superintendent of Schools, Milwaukee, Wis.; Past-President of the Association

ORGAN PRELUDE (3:30 to 4:00 P. M.)—Raymond L. White, San Francisco State College

INVOCATION

The Reverend Jason Noble Pierce, Pastor, Congregational-Methodist Temple, San Francisco, Calif.

HUMBOLDT STATE COLLEGE A CAPPELLA CHOIR—Edmund V. Jeffers, *Director*

O Brother Man.....	Kemmer
Tenebrae Factae Sunt.....	Palestrina
Crucifixus.....	Lotti
Rise Up, My Love (Song of Solomon).....	Willan

COLLEGE OF THE PACIFIC STRING QUARTET—Horace I. Brown, *Director*; Violins—Mildred Marsh, Carolyn Herrick; Viola—Vivian Bradley; Cello—Jack Lighthart

Fuga from Quartet in F.....	Mozart
Landscapes—Alpestre—Tongataboo	Bloch

THE CHOIR

Angelus	Elgar
The Day of Judgment.....	Arkhangelsky
Nunc Dimittis.....	Gretchaninoff

THE FAITH OF A TEACHER

Willis A. Sutton, Superintendent of Schools, Atlanta, Ga.; and Past-President of the National Education Association

BENEDICTION

ORGAN POSTLUDE

Platform Guests—Past-Presidents of the American Association of School Administrators

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

SECOND GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

A CONCERT OF PAN-AMERICAN MUSIC
by the

San Francisco Public Schools

Students of the San Francisco public high schools join in the presentation of this concert under the direction of Charles M. Dennis.

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

I. THE ALL-CITY HIGH-SCHOOL BAND—Elmo Wemmer, Sidney H. Wills, *Directors*

The Star-Spangled Banner.....*Smith*

Richard Vartanian, Polytechnic
High School Student Conductor

Amparito Roca.....*Texidor*

Malaguena (Suite Espagnol).....*Leuconia*

Land of the Maple.....*Laurendeau*

Andalucia (Suite Espagnol).....*Leuconia*

II. COMBINED GIRLS CHORUSES—Flossita Badger, *Director*; Gertrude Norgard,
Accompanist

Little Papoose on the Windswept Bough.....Indian.....*Cadman*

The Mill.....French Canadian.....*Treharne*

River, River.....Chilean.....*Zoltar*

The Shepherds and the Inn.....Mexican.....*Gaul*

The Goat Herders Song.....Mexican.....*Baldwin*

III. THE ALL-CITY JUNIOR HIGH-SCHOOL ORCHESTRA—Martin Pihl, *Director*;
Edward Plutte, Kenneth H. Ball, *Associate Directors*

A Bunch of Roses.....*Chapi*

Serenade Mexicaine

Lemont

La Joya

Repper

Serenada Incaica

Tucci

Danza Chilena y Estilo.....*Tucci*

IV. THE COMBINED MIXED CHORUSES—Charles M. Dennis, Director of Music, San
Francisco Public Schools

Land of Our Hearts.....*Chadwick*

A Cantata for Chorus and Orchestra

SEATING—*Doors will close promptly at 7:40 P. M. Because of the nature of the program it will not be possible to seat late-comers. The concert will be repeated at 9:10 P. M. Admission by AASA or NEA membership badge.*

SECOND GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Second Presentation of

A CONCERT OF PAN-AMERICAN MUSIC

For complete program, see above.

SUNDAY
Feb. 22
7:40 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

SUNDAY
Feb. 22
9:10 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

MONDAY
Feb. 23
9:00 A. M.
Fox Theatre

THIRD GENERAL SESSION

Education and Government

To each party involved in the control of public education—to government, to the teacher, and to the people—belong appropriate responsibilities and obligations.
—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

A Welcome with Flowers. As the session opens, the audience will be greeted by girls of the San Francisco schools who will distribute flowers to all.

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

ORGAN PRELUDE (9:00 to 9:15 A. M.)—Clarence Kaull, Martinez Junior High School, San Francisco, Calif.

INVOCATION

Rabbi Saul White, President, Northern California Board of Rabbis, San Francisco, Calif.

THE CONVENTION EXHIBIT

H. C. Grubbs, President, Associated Exhibitors of the National Education Association

EDUCATION FOR A FREE PEOPLE—THE ESSENTIALS OF A PERMANENT MORALE

Frederick M. Hunter, Chancellor, State System of Higher Education, University of Oregon, Eugene, Oregon

THE CONTRIBUTION OF EDUCATION TO THE WINNING OF THE WAR

George D. Strayer, Professor of Education and Director, Division of Organization and Administration of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

THE ROLE OF THE SCHOOLS IN THE PRESENT EMERGENCY

Alexander J. Stoddard, Superintendent of Schools, Philadelphia, Pa.

Platform Guests—Educational Policies Commission

Resolutions—An open meeting of the Committee on Resolutions will be held at 11:00 A. M., Monday, February 23, in Room 403, Civic Auditorium.

All resolutions must be in writing and must be presented not later than the Tuesday morning General Session, thus allowing time for consideration by the Committee on Resolutions. In accordance with action taken by the Atlantic City convention in 1938, all resolutions must be available in printed form Wednesday morning in order that they may be acted upon by the convention at the Thursday morning General Session.

MONDAY
2:30 P. M.

DISCUSSION GROUPS

Afternoon discussion groups. For complete programs, see pages 15-26.

MONDAY
4:45 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

SPECIAL FEATURE

“This Is My Land,” a thirty-minute presentation of the San Francisco public schools in which the audience will be given glimpses of the Golden West.

FOURTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

LISTEN, MR. SPEAKER

MONDAY
Feb. 23
7:30 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

A Patriotic Revue—Dedicated to American Youth

Presented by

THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS OF OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA

Story and Lyrics by

JEAN BYERS

Music by

MURIEL OLOFSON EWING

SCENE I. A PUBLIC PLACE

We want to march!
To let the world see
A nation that's free,
To show to the world
A flag that's unfurled
For liberty!
We want to march!

SCENE II. AMERICANS CAN SING

There's a rhythmic heart in America
Like the steady pounding of the sea
It's deep down part of America
Where the soul of the people is free.

SCENE III. MY HOME IN MY LITTLE HOME TOWN

Wherever I'll go
I'll love it I know,
My home in my little home town.

SCENE IV. THE HISTORY CLASS

Who Made America? What's It All About?

SCENE V. THE PRAYER

Oh God, let me be an American,
Not for the name alone,
But for the hope, the vision, the power
That are deep in this, my America.

SEATING—*Doors will close promptly at 7:30 P. M. Because of the nature of the program it will not be possible to seat late-comers. The revue will be repeated at 9:15 P. M. Admission by AASA or NEA membership badge.*

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

MONDAY
Feb. 23
8:00 P. M.
High School
of Commerce

FOURTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Joint Meeting with the National Committee on Education and Defense and the U. S. Office of Education Wartime Commission

Presiding, George F. Zook, President, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

THE OVER-ALL PICTURE FOR EDUCATION IN WARTIME

John Lund, Senior Specialist in Education of School Administrators, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

ACCELERATING STUDENTS

IN SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Paul E. Elcker, Secretary, National Association of Secondary-School Principals, Washington, D. C.

IN COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

Frederick M. Hunter, Chancellor, State System of Higher Education, University of Oregon, Eugene, Oregon

IN TEACHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS

Karl W. Bigelow, Director, Commission on Teacher Education, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

THE NATIONAL COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND DEFENSE

Clarence S. Marsh, Vicepresident, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

EDUCATIONAL RECONSTRUCTION AFTER THE WAR

Reinhold Schairer, U. S. Committee on Educational Reconstruction, 2 West 45th Street, New York, N. Y.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
9:15 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

FOURTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION C

Second Showing of

LISTEN, MR. SPEAKER—A PATRIOTIC REVUE

For complete program, see page 7.

FIFTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

Morale Building

The point cannot be overstressed that democracy, as well as autocracy, has its loyalties, that the strength and vigor of democracy depend on the strength and vigor of these loyalties among its citizens.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

ORGAN PRELUDE (9:00 to 9:15 A. M.)—*Margaret Thomas Weyand, San Jose State College, San Jose, Calif.*

INVOCATION

The Reverend James T. O'Dowd, Superintendent of Catholic Schools, San Francisco, Calif.

IN BRITAIN

Sir Gerald Campbell, Director General, British Information Services, New York, N. Y.

IN AMERICA

Rabbi Abba Hillel Silver, The Temple, Cleveland, Ohio

(Continued on next page)

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

BUSINESS MEETING

Report of Audit Committee

Ray E. Cheney, Superintendent of Schools, Elizabeth, N. J.

Nomination of Officers from the Floor

Second Vicepresident for One Year

Member of Executive Committee for Four Years

Platform Guests—Audit Committee

Resolutions—All resolutions must be presented in writing before the close of this session, since the Committee on Resolutions must complete its deliberations and have its printed report ready for distribution Wednesday morning.

FIFTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Presiding, Frank Cody, Superintendent of Schools, Detroit, Mich.; Past-President of the Association

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
9:00 A. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

THE NAVY AND THE SCHOOLS

Paul Smith, Lieutenant Commander, United States Navy, Washington, D. C.

EDUCATION IN THE WAR ECONOMY

B. W. Venable, Colonel, General Staff, War Department, Washington, D. C.

MORALE BUILDING IN OUR SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C.

PATRIOTIC FILMS

Films for classroom use in United States history. These films of important historical episodes serve as invaluable teaching aids in stimulating and inspiring love of country—shown thru the courtesy of Teaching Film Custodians, Inc., 25 West 43d Street, New York City.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
1:00 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

DISCUSSION GROUPS

Afternoon discussion groups. For complete programs, see pages 15-26.

TUESDAY
2:30 P. M.

SPECIAL FEATURE

"This Is My Land," a thirty-minute presentation of the San Francisco public schools in which the audience will be given glimpses of the Golden West.

TUESDAY
4:45 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

SIXTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

Program Presented by the Associated Exhibitors

The school should organize its resources for the purpose of rearing a generation eager to serve community, nation, and mankind in times of peace as well as war—able, fearless, incorruptible, and loyal.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
8:30 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

The American Education Award

TRIBUTE TO THE RECIPIENT OF THE AMERICAN EDUCATION AWARD

H. C. Grubbs, President of the Associated Exhibitors of the NEA

PRESENTATION OF THE AMERICAN EDUCATION AWARD TO ROBERT ANDREWS MILLIKAN

Mr. Grubbs

RESPONSE

Robert Andrews Millikan, Chairman of Executive Council, California Institute of Technology, Pasadena, Calif.

(Continued on next page)

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

Music and Entertainment

NBC SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA—Under the direction of Ricardo

THE MILESTONE CAVALCADE—Introducing the various types of entertainment in California down thru the years. Singers, dancers, comedians will delight the audience.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
8:00 P. M.
High School
of Commerce

SIXTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Joint Meeting with the U. S. Office of Education Wartime Commission and the National Committee on Education and Defense

Presiding, Willard E. Givens, Executive Secretary, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

THE PURPOSE OF THE WARTIME COMMISSION

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C.

THE PROGRAM IN THE SCHOOLS

Harry A. Jager, Chief, Division of Occupational Guidance and Information, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

WARTIME CURRICULUM CHANGES

David E. Weglein, Superintendent of Schools, Baltimore, Md.

SCHOOL FACILITIES IN DEFENSE AREAS

Henry F. Alves, Senior Specialist in State School Administration, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND THE DEFENSE PROGRAM

L. H. Dennis, Executive Secretary, American Vocational Association, Washington, D. C.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
9:00 A. M.
Fox Theatre

SEVENTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

Health in Schools

Democracy was conceived, not by cowards and weaklings but by men of destiny, strong and fearless.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, John L. Bracken, Superintendent of Schools, Clayton, Mo.; Chairman, 1942 Yearbook Commission on Health in Schools

ORGAN PRELUDE (9:00 to 9:15 A. M.)—William A. Fuhrmann, Humboldt Evening High School, San Francisco, Calif.

INVOCATION

Rabbi Morris Goldstein, Temple Sherith Israel, San Francisco, Calif.

PRESENTATION OF THE YEARBOOK, "HEALTH IN SCHOOLS"

Mr. Bracker

ACCEPTANCE OF THE YEARBOOK

Worth McClure, Superintendent of Schools, Seattle, Wash.; Vicepresident of the Association

HEALTH AND NATIONAL DEFENSE

Ray Lyman Wilbur, President, Stanford University, Calif.

HEALTH AND THE HOME

Mrs. Willie Snow Ethridge, Author, Louisville, Ky.

Platform Guests—1942 Yearbook Commission on Health in Schools

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

SEVENTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

School of the Air of the Americas

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
9:00 A. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

A special program sponsored by the Columbia Broadcasting System, including demonstration of a "School of the Air of the Americas" broadcast and its reception for classroom purposes.

As one democracy after another has fallen before the totalitarian advance beyond the seas, the Americas are called upon to assume an ever greater role in the defense of the democratic faith.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, Mrs. Myrtle Hooper Dahl, Hiawatha School, Minneapolis, Minn.; President, National Education Association

EDUCATION AND RADIO

W. Howard Pillsbury, Superintendent of Schools, Schenectady, N. Y.; President, American Association of School Administrators

THE SCHOOL OF THE AIR OF THE AMERICAS

Earl Glade, Vicepresident of Station KSL, Salt Lake City, Utah; Member of the Board of Directors of the National Association of Broadcasters, representing CBS Department of Education

RADIO BROADCAST—A Dramatization of "Stronghold of the Buccaneers"

This colorful presentation in costume from the series "New Horizons" of the School of the Air of the Americas is the story of the notorious pirate, Sir Henry Morgan. Written by Hans Christian Adamson, assistant to the president of the American Museum of Natural History; directed by Earl McGill, CBS chief director.

CLASS DISCUSSION OF THE BROADCAST

Students from the Commodore Sloat Elementary School, San Francisco, Mrs. Gladys M. Leiser, Teacher

MUSIC OF THE AMERICAS—A Program of "Transportation Music"

Ox Driving Song	TEXAS
La Mula	ARGENTINA
Aeroplane Song	PANAMA
La Plante du eoueur de bois, voyageur song	CANADA
Bicycle Built for Two	UNITED STATES
El Carretero	MEXICO

TRAINING FOR DEFENSE OF THE AMERICAS

Colonel Kenneth B. McNaughton, Director, Air Training Center, Moffit Field, Calif.

Major Hans Christian Adamson, Special Assistant to the Chief of the Army Air Forces

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
11:00 A. M.
to 6:00 P. M.

BALLOT BOXES OPEN—REGISTRATION DESK IN THE CIVIC AUDITORIUM AND AT THE WAR MEMORIAL OPERA HOUSE

Between the hours of 11:00 A. M. and 6:00 P. M. ballots may be cast for the following officers of the American Association of School Administrators:

Second Vicepresident for One Year
Member of Executive Committee for Four Years

DISCUSSION GROUPS

WEDNESDAY
2:30 P. M.

Afternoon discussion groups. For complete programs, see pages 15-26.

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

WEDNESDAY
1:00 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

BRITISH WAR FILMS

Thru a group of timely films, sponsored by the British Government, convention members will be given a picture of conditions existing in Britain today. These films were prepared primarily for home consumption with a view to building morale among the English people. These films are shown thru the courtesy of the British Library of Information, 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, N. Y.

WEDNESDAY
4:45 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

SPECIAL FEATURE

Chinese children of the Oakland public schools will present a thirty-minute musical program, when they will charm the audience with such typical music as that of the song bells.

WEDNESDAY
6:00 P. M.

COLLEGE DINNERS

College dinners will be held Wednesday evening as usual. For complete list of breakfasts, luncheons, and dinners, see pages 43-47.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
8:15 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

EIGHTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

America and the Far East

Democracy represents today the hope of the friends of human freedom everywhere.
—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

ORGAN PRELUDE (8:15 to 8:30 P. M.)—Louis R. Flint

WRHS CHINESE LIFE

PART I

By the Children of Commodore Stockton School

Introductory Comments on Arts, Crafts, Culture, and Traditions of China..... Ching Wah Lee

Illustrated by the Children

Da Gai-Mo Yin (Shuttle-Cock)..... By the Boys
Mo Goong Fu (Chinese Shadow Boxing)..... By the Boys
Chinese Dance..... Helen Fong and Flora Lee

Accompaniment on Yeung Kum (Butterfly Harp)

Foong Yeung Fah Goo (Song of the Beggars)..... Glee Club

Chee Lai (Chinese Song of the Volunteers)..... Chorus

America the Beautiful..... Chorus

PART II

By the Adults

Ribbon and Sword Dance..... Katherine Lee, Patricia Joe
Chinese Fashion Show..... Young People of Chinatown

CHINA TODAY

Chih-Tsing Feng, Consul-General of the Republic of China

BEHIND THE CONFLICT IN THE PACIFIC

Walter H. Judd, Outstanding Authority on the Orient

ORGAN POSTLUDE

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

EIGHTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

Wartime Projects in the Schools

Presiding, Joseph M. Gwinn, Professor Emeritus, San Jose State College, San Jose, Calif.; Past-President of the Association

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
8:15 P. M.
**High School
of Commerce**

SCHOOL BUILDINGS AND THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN

A. S. Chenoweth, Superintendent of Schools, Atlantic City, N. J.

WAR AGAINST WASTE

C. Ray Gates, Superintendent of Schools, Grand Island, Nebr.

VOLUNTEER SERVICES IN SCHOOLS

Orville C. Pratt, Superintendent of Schools, Spokane, Wash.

CARE OF CHILDREN OF WORKING MOTHERS

Ruth Andrus, Chief, Bureau of Child Development and Parent Education, State Education Department, Albany, N. Y.

EDUCATIONAL CAMPS

Ray E. Cheney, Superintendent of Schools, Elizabeth, N. J.

TRAINING AUXILIARY POLICEMEN, FIREMEN, AND AIR RAID WARDENS

E. E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools, Houston, Texas

VACATION PROJECTS

George W. Frasier, President, Colorado State College of Education, Greeley, Colo.

KEEPING HIGH-SCHOOL PUPILS INFORMED

William G. Carr, Secretary, Educational Policies Commission, Washington, D. C.

Time Allotment for each speaker limited to 11 minutes.

NINTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION A

America's Destiny

American democracy can and will survive and, surviving, preserve for the world the vision of a society of free men.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

THURSDAY
Feb. 26
9:00 A. M.
Fox Theatre

Presiding, W. Howard Pillsbury, President of the Association

ORGAN PRELUDE (9:00 to 9:15 A. M.)—George D. Ingram, Mission High School, San Francisco, Calif.

INVOCATION

The Reverend James H. Long, Past-Superintendent of Catholic Schools, San Francisco, Calif.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON RESOLUTIONS

James M. Spinning, Superintendent of Schools, Rochester, N. Y., *Chairman*

PRESENTDAY PROBLEMS OF THE FUTURE

Robert Gordon Sprout, President, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

THE SELECTIVE SERVICE AND THE SCHOOLS

General Lewis B. Hershey, Director, Selective Service System, Washington, D. C.

SHOWING OF WARTIME FILMS

Platform Guests—Committee on Resolutions

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—GENERAL SESSIONS

THURSDAY

Feb. 26

9:00 A. M.

**War Memorial
Opera House**

NINTH GENERAL SESSION—SECTION B

America's Destiny

Presiding, E. E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools, Houston, Texas; Past-President of the Association

THE POST-WAR WORLD

Chester Rowell, Editor, *San Francisco Chronicle*; Member, American Youth Commission

POST-WAR EDUCATION

William F. Russell, Director, National Citizenship Education Program, Washington, D. C.; Dean, Teachers College, Columbia University

THURSDAY

1:00 P. M.

**War Memorial
Opera House**

BRITISH WAR FILMS

A second group of films presenting activities of the British people in wartime, shown thru the courtesy of the British Library of Information, 30 Rockefeller Plaza, New York, N. Y.

THURSDAY

Feb. 26

1:30 P. M.

**War Memorial
Opera House**

TENTH GENERAL SESSION

Youth Programs for a Free People

It is possible to revive for the youth of America a vision of a good society—good for even the humblest citizen.—THE EDUCATION OF FREE MEN IN AMERICAN DEMOCRACY.

Presiding, A. L. Threlkeld, Superintendent of Schools, Montclair, N. J.

EXPLORING THE PROBLEMS BEFORE US

George D. Stoddard, Dean, Graduate College, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa; Commissioner Designate, New York State Education Department

SECONDARY SCHOOL ISSUES

George S. Counts, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

WORK EXPERIENCE

L. H. Dennis, Executive Secretary, American Vocational Association, Washington, D. C.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

John K. Norton, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SCHOOL BOARD

James Marshall, President, Board of Education, New York, N. Y.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF TELLERS

Platform Guests: Board of Tellers, All Incoming and Retiring Officers

Convention Summary—Thruout the week reporters have covered every general session and discussion group of the Association. Their written reports will be in print and ready for distribution at the close of this session. One free copy will be issued to each member. Additional copies may be purchased at 10¢ each.

AFTERNOON DISCUSSION GROUPS

of the American Association of School Administrators

Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday at 2:30 P. M.

MONDAY

Promoting Health in Schools thru the Implementation of Procedures Presented in the 1942 Yearbook

Chairman, William J. Hamilton, Superintendent of Schools, Oak Park, Ill.

IMPLEMENTATION THRU ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

John L. Bracken, Superintendent of Schools, Clayton, Mo.; Chairman, 1942 Yearbook Commission

IMPLEMENTATION THRU TEACHER TRAINING

Roseoe Pulliam, President, Southern Illinois Normal University, Carbondale, Ill.

IMPLEMENTATION THRU EXTRA-SCHOOL AGENCIES

W. W. Bauer, Director, Bureau of Health Education, American Medical Association, Chicago, Ill.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
Health Center
Building

Character Education

Chairman, David E. Weglein, Superintendent of Schools, Baltimore, Md.

CHARACTER EDUCATION IN THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

Claude V. Courter, Superintendent of Schools, Cincinnati, Ohio

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Room 1
Veterans'
Building

CHARACTER EDUCATION IN THE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS

E. W. Jacobsen, Dean, School of Education, University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, Pa.

CHARACTER EDUCATION IN THE SENIOR HIGH SCHOOLS

Howard E. Wilson, Associate Professor of Education, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.

Adjustment of Rural Schools to Present Needs

Joint Meeting with the Department of Rural Education

Chairman, Frank W. Cyr, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Gold Room
Fairmont Hotel

PANEL DISCUSSION

Mrs. Grace J. Corrigan, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Santa Fe, N. Mex.

Howard A. Dawson, Director of Rural Service, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

Paul R. Hanna, Stanford University, Calif.; Special Consultant, National Resources Planning Board

(Continued on next page)

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

Helen Heffernan, Chief, Division of Elementary Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

Mrs. Daisy E. Howard, County Commissioner of Schools, Flint, Mich.

Edwin Kent, County Superintendent of Schools, Santa Rosa, Calif.

Roben J. Maaske, President, Eastern Oregon College of Education, La Grande, Oregon

Charles F. Maxwell, County Superintendent of Schools, Greensburg, Pa.

William McKinley Robinson, Director, Department of Rural Education, Western Michigan College of Education, Kalamazoo, Mich.

School Equipment and Supplies

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Room 403
Civic
Auditorium

Chairman, Homer W. Anderson, Superintendent of Schools, St. Louis, Mo.

PURCHASING AND DISTRIBUTING SUPPLIES IN SMALLER COMMUNITIES
R. D. Case, Superintendent of Schools, Salinas, Calif.

PRESENT PURCHASING PROBLEMS IN LARGE CITIES
James J. Lee, Supply Commissioner, Board of Education, St. Louis, Mo.

PRIORITIES AND SCHOOL EQUIPMENT

L. E. Parmenter, Executive Secretary, National School Supplies and Equipment Association, Chicago, Ill.

DISCUSSION LED BY

H. H. Eelkema, Superintendent of Schools, Duluth, Minn.

James J. Ball, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Denver, Colo.

William G. Paden, Superintendent of Schools, Alameda, Calif.

Parent Education

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Room 213
Veterans'
Building

Chairman, Gertrude Laws, Director of Education for Women, Public Schools, Pasadena, Calif.

PROBLEMS A SUPERINTENDENT MUST FACE
Herbert R. Stoltz, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

QUESTIONS OF CERTIFICATION AND FINANCIAL SUPPORT

Sidney B. Hall, Professor of Educational Administration, George Washington University, Washington, D. C.

HOW SHALL LEADERS AND TEACHERS BE PREPARED?

Mildred E. English, Superintendent, Peabody Training School, Georgia State College for Women, Milledgeville, Ga.

WAYS IN WHICH A LAY ORGANIZATION CAN HELP BUILD A PROGRAM

Mrs. Naomi Rufer, Chairman of School Education, California Congress of Parents and Teachers, Santa Monica, Calif.

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE EXTENSION DIVISION OF THE UNIVERSITY

Knute O. Broady, Director, University Extension Division, University of Nebraska, Lincoln, Nebr.

PHILOSOPHICAL IMPLICATIONS OF EDUCATION FOR HOME AND FAMILY LIVING

E. W. Jacobsen, Dean, School of Education, University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, Pa.

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Led by the chairman—speakers and audience participating

School Problems in Defense Boom Cities

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
High School
of Commerce

Chairman, Hobart M. Corning, Superintendent of Schools, Omaha, Nebr.

THE NATIONAL PROBLEM OF MAINTAINING EDUCATIONAL SERVICES IN DEFENSE BOOM COMMUNITIES

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Federal Security Agency, Washington, D. C.

PANEL DISCUSSION—PROBLEMS IN MY COMMUNITY AND METHODS EMPLOYED TO SOLVE THEM

Will C. Crawford, Superintendent of Schools, San Diego, Calif.

Maude Frazier, Superintendent of Schools, Las Vegas, Nevada

Charles B. Glenn, Superintendent of Schools, Birmingham, Ala.

L. W. Mayberry, Superintendent of Schools, Wichita, Kansas

Worth McClure, Superintendent of Schools, Seattle, Wash.

Leon N. Neulen, Superintendent of Schools, Camden, N. J.

Walter P. Sweet, Superintendent of Schools, Danbury, Conn.

The School Library—A Laboratory for the Development of Good Citizens

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Room 202
Veterans'
Building

Chairman, S. M. Stouffer, Superintendent of Schools, Wilmington, Del.

THE FUNCTION AND SCOPE OF SCHOOL LIBRARY SERVICE IN THE LIGHT OF RECENT SOCIAL AND EDUCATIONAL CHANGES

William S. Gray, Professor of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

FINANCING AND ADMINISTERING THE SCHOOL LIBRARY PROGRAM

Frank Cody, Superintendent of Schools, Detroit, Mich.

THE SCHOOL LIBRARY AT WORK IN LONG BEACH

Kenneth E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools, Long Beach, Calif.

Planning the Curriculum for the Thirteenth and Fourteenth School Years

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Italian Room
St. Francis
Hotel

Joint Meeting with the National Association of Secondary-School Principals

Chairman, John A. Sexson, Superintendent of Schools, Pasadena, Calif.

WHAT EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCES SHOULD THE JUNIOR COLLEGE OFFER FOR AMERICAN YOUTH?

Alvin Christian Eurich, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

WHAT ARE OUR JUNIOR COLLEGES NOW DOING FOR AMERICAN YOUTH?

Byron Sharpe Hollinshead, President, Scranton-Keystone Junior College, LaPlume, Pa.

HOW THE FOUR-YEAR JUNIOR COLLEGE FACILITATES CURRICULAR REORGANIZATION

John W. Harbeson, Principal, Pasadena Junior College, Pasadena, Calif.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Francis L. Bacon, Superintendent, Evanston Township High School, Evanston, Ill.

Percy R. Davis, Superintendent of Schools, Santa Monica, Calif.

C. A. Howard, President, Oregon College of Education, Monmouth, Oregon

R. L. Williams, Superintendent of Schools, Lockhart, Texas

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

***What Shall Be Our Program for Men Entering Military Service
as Graduates of Our High Schools?***

Chairman, Vierling Kersey, Superintendent of Schools, Los Angeles, Calif.

SHORT-TIME AND LONG-TERM OPPORTUNITIES IN THE RANKS OF THE ENLISTED MEN
John N. Andrews, Colonel, Infantry, Reemployment Division, U. S. Selective Service System, Washington, D. C.

**PREREQUISITE TRAINING BASIC TO ADVANCEMENT AFTER ENLISTMENT OR INDUCTION
INTO THE ARMED FORCES**

Will C. Crawford, Superintendent of Schools, San Diego, Calif.

METHODS OF STUDYING BUSINESS TRENDS AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR RETURNING SERVICE MEN

Willard S. Ford, Superintendent of Schools, Glendale, Calif.

THE RELATIONSHIP OF SCHOOLS TO ENLISTMENT, ADVANCEMENT, AND CAREER OPPORTUNITIES IN THE ARMED FORCES AND CIVILIAN LIFE ACTIVITY FOLLOWING DISCHARGE

Zenos E. Scott, Superintendent of Schools, Louisville, Ky.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Room 404
Civic
Auditorium

The Guidance Program and Occupational Adjustment

Chairman, E. E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools, Houston, Texas

WHAT IS A FUNCTIONAL PROGRAM OF GUIDANCE FOR SECONDARY SCHOOLS?
Millard C. Lefler, Superintendent of Schools, Lincoln, Nebr.

HOW GUIDANCE CAN FUNCTION IN OCCUPATIONAL ADJUSTMENT

L. John Nuttall, Jr., Superintendent of Schools, Salt Lake City, Utah

WHAT ADAPTATIONS OF GUIDANCE PROGRAMS AND OCCUPATIONAL ADJUSTMENT ARE NECESSARY IN THIS EMERGENCY AND THE PERIOD FOLLOWING?

William C. Bagley, Editor, *School and Society*, New York, N. Y.

SUMMARIZATION

Harl R. Douglass, Director, College of Education, University of Colorado, Boulder, Colo.

TUESDAY

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
Health Center
Building

Vitalizing Health Education

Chairman, Bernice Moss, Director of Health, Physical Education, and Recreation, State Department of Public Instruction, Salt Lake City, Utah

VITALIZING HEALTH EDUCATION THRU COOPERATIVE CURRICULUM BUILDING
Rosalind Cassidy, Convenor, School of Education, Mills College, Calif.

VITALIZING HEALTH EDUCATION THRU IMPROVED INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAMS
Mabel E. Ruge, Associate Professor of Health Education, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.

VITALIZING HEALTH EDUCATION THRU UTILIZING COMMUNITY RESOURCES
J. C. Moffitt, Superintendent of Schools, Provo, Utah

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

Schools and Religious Education

Chairman, Merle J. Abbott, Superintendent of Schools, Fort Wayne, Ind.

ACTIVITIES, ATTITUDES, AND CITIZENSHIP

John Guy Fowlkes, Professor of Education, University of Wisconsin

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION AND THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

E. W. Jacobsen, Dean, School of Education, University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, Pa.

CHARACTER EDUCATION

Edgar G. Doudna, Secretary, State Board of Regents of Normal Schools, Madison, Wis.

DISCUSSION LED BY

E. H. Fishback, Supervising Principal, Junior High Schools, Anderson, Ind.

E. W. Montgomery, Superintendent, Union High School and Junior College, Phoenix, Ariz.

L. John Nuttall, Jr., Superintendent of Schools, Salt Lake City, Utah

Carrying the School into the Community

Chairman, Stanley H. Rolfe, Superintendent of Schools, Newark, N. J.

THRU GOOD SERVICES

Premises by Mr. Rolfe

THRU ADULT EDUCATION

John H. Bosshart, Superintendent of Schools, South Orange and Maplewood, N. J.

THRU AN INTERPRETIVE PROGRAM

M. A. Kopka, Superintendent of Schools, Hamtramck, Mich.

THRU MEETING WARTIME NEEDS

Joseph P. Nourse, Superintendent of Schools, San Francisco, Calif.

Adult Civic Education

Chairman, Frank A. Henderson, Superintendent of Schools, Santa Ana, Calif.

THE FEDERAL FORUM AND ADULT CIVIC EDUCATION

Arthur F. Corey, Director of Public Relations, California Teachers Association, Los Angeles, Calif.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION IN ADULT CIVIC EDUCATION

Paul H. Sheats, Assistant Professor of Education, University of Wisconsin

ADULT CIVIC EDUCATION AND THE WORLD FEDERATION OF EDUCATION ASSOCIATIONS

S. D. Copeland, Superintendent of Schools, Augusta, Ga.

ASPECTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF CITIZENSHIP AMONG ADULTS

Willis A. Sutton, Superintendent of Schools, Atlanta, Ga.

PANEL DISCUSSION

Caroline J. Evingson, County Superintendent of Schools, Fargo, N. Dak.

David L. MacKaye, Director of Adult Education, Public Schools, San Jose, Calif.

John J. Desmond, Jr., Superintendent of Schools, Chicopee, Mass.

J. W. Gowans, Superintendent of Schools, Hutchinson, Kansas

David W. Reidy, Director, Late Afternoon and Evening Classes, Pasadena Junior College, Pasadena, Calif.

Hubert Phillips, Dean, Lower Division, Fresno State College, Fresno, Calif.

Hobart M. Corning, Superintendent of Schools, Omaha, Nebr.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
High School
of Commerce

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 404
Civic
Auditorium

Supervision in Relation to School Administration

Chairman, Lowell P. Goodrich, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Milwaukee, Wis.

HOW CAN WE EVALUATE SUPERVISION IN TERMS OF EDUCATION FOR A FREE PEOPLE?
Arthur B. Moehlman, Professor of Administration and Supervision, School of Education, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.; Editor, *The Nation's Schools*

HOW GENERAL AND HOW SPECIAL SHALL SUPERVISION BE?
William F. Redding, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Providence, R. I.

DOES SUCCESSFUL SUPERVISION IMPLY ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITY?
Merton E. Hill, Professor of Education, University of California; Superintendent of Schools, Beverly Hills, Calif.

SUMMARY
B. F. Pittenger, Dean, School of Education, University of Texas, Austin, Texas

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
War Memorial
Opera House

How Can the School Develop Democratic Attitudes?

Chairman, John J. Loftus, Assistant Superintendent of New York City Schools, 110 Livingston Street, Brooklyn, N. Y.

WHAT DEMOCRATIC ATTITUDES SHOULD SCHOOLS ATTEMPT TO DEVELOP?
John N. Andrews, Colonel, Infantry, Reemployment Division, U. S. Selective Service System, Washington, D. C.

HOW CAN DEMOCRATIC ATTITUDES BE DEVELOPED IN OUR PUPILS AND TEACHERS?
Ralph W. Tyler, Chairman, Department of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

HOW CAN DEMOCRATIC ATTITUDES BE DEVELOPED IN PARENTS AND LOCAL COMMUNITIES?
Charles Leslie Cushman, Field Coordinator, Commission on Teacher Education, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

HOW CAN DEMOCRATIC ATTITUDES BE DEVELOPED IN SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION?
John Guy Fowlkes, Professor of Education, University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wis.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 403
Civic
Auditorium

The Schools and Radio

Chairman, Kenneth C. Ray, State Director of Education, Columbus, Ohio

UTILIZING RADIO AS AN EDUCATIONAL RESOURCE
I. Keith Tyler, Director, Evaluation of School Broadcasts, Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio

WHAT WE DO ABOUT RADIO:
BY USING LOCAL SUPPLEMENTARY PROGRAMS
William H. Johnson, Superintendent of Schools, Chicago, Ill.

RADIO IN A STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
John W. Gristream, Director, Radio and Visual Education, State Department of Education, Austin, Texas

BY USING NATIONAL NETWORK PROGRAMS AND RECORDINGS
Elizabeth Goudy, Director of Radio and Curriculum Assistant, Los Angeles County Schools, Los Angeles, Calif.

BY STUDENT PARTICIPATION IN RADIO ACTIVITIES
Mrs. Verna Fogg Walters, Supervisor of Elementary Grades, Public Schools, Zanesville, Ohio

BY MAKING USE OF OUT-OF-SCHOOL RADIO RESOURCES
William R. Odell, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

Financing the Schools

Chairman, Emerson H. Landis, Superintendent of Schools, Dayton, Ohio

FEDERAL SUPPORT FOR FINANCING A DEFENSE PROGRAM IN THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

James L. Hanley, Superintendent of Schools, Providence, R. I.

THE STATE'S RESPONSIBILITY IN FINANCING PUBLIC EDUCATION IN THE LOCAL COMMUNITIES WITH PARTICULAR REFERENCE TO THE OHIO SCHOOL FOUNDATION PROGRAM

E. L. Bowsher, Superintendent of Schools, Toledo, Ohio

THE RESPONSIBILITY OF A SCHOOL SUPERINTENDENT IN MAINTAINING A NORMAL PROGRAM OF PUBLIC EDUCATION IN LIGHT OF DECREASED REVENUES BECAUSE OF RISING COSTS DUE TO THE NATIONAL EMERGENCY

John A. Sexson, Superintendent of Schools, Pasadena, Calif.

The Integration of Vocational Education with General Education

Chairman, J. W. Ramsey, Superintendent of Schools, Fort Smith, Ark.

MEETING VOCATIONAL OBJECTIVES OF YOUTH THRU THE GENERAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

Rall I. Grigsby, Curriculum Consultant, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

CONTRIBUTIONS OF GENERAL EDUCATION TO SPECIFIC TRAINING FOR EMPLOYMENT
C. T. Reid, Director of Education, Douglas Aircraft Company, Santa Monica, Calif.

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS IN GENERAL EDUCATION AFFECTING VOCATIONAL ADJUSTMENT OF YOUTH

M. R. Trabue, Dean, School of Education, Pennsylvania State College, State College, Pa.

DISCUSSION

Charles C. Mason, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Tulsa, Okla.

O. B. Badger, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Portland, Oregon

Gifted Children

Chairman, Ernest R. Caverly, Superintendent of Schools, Brookline, Mass.

THE ADULT LIFE OF GIFTED CHILDREN

Lewis M. Terman, Professor of Psychology, Stanford University, Calif.

EDUCATION FOR GIFTED CHILDREN IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS, WITH SPECIAL REFERENCE TO READING

William S. Gray, Professor of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

DISCUSSION

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 213
Veterans'
Building

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 402
Civic
Auditorium

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 303
Veterans'
Building

WEDNESDAY

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Humboldt Hall
Empire Hotel

**Practical Procedures for Improving Health Guidance
and Health Education**

Sponsored by the Joint Committee on Health Problems in Education of the National Education Association and the American Medical Association, with the Cooperation of the American Association for Health, Physical Education, and Recreation; the Department of Home Economics; and the Department of Science Instruction

Chairman, Charles C. Wilson, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Presiding, George D. Stoddard, Dean, Graduate College, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa

How CAN SCHOOLS IMPROVE THE NUTRITION OF PUPILS?

Agnes Fay Morgan, Professor of Home Economics, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

How CAN THE TEACHING OF SCIENCE CONTRIBUTE TO PUPILS' APPRECIATION OF HEALTH AND INFLUENCE THEIR DAY-BY-DAY LIVING?

Jack Hudspeth, Box 16, Austin, Texas; President, Department of Science Instruction, NEA

How CAN PHYSICAL EDUCATION TEACHERS CONTRIBUTE TO HEALTH EDUCATION AND PROTECT PUPILS' HEALTH?

Anne Schley Duggan, Director of Health and Physical Education, Texas State College for Women, Denton, Texas; President, American Association for Health, Physical Education, and Recreation, NEA

How CAN THE PROGRAMS OF TEACHERS, SCHOOL MEDICAL ADVISERS, AND SCHOOL NURSES BE COORDINATED?

C. Morley Sellery, Director, School Health Service, Board of Education, Los Angeles, Calif.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Homer W. Anderson, Superintendent of Schools, St. Louis, Mo.

Edna W. Bailey, Professor of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

Charles A. Dukes, Vicepresident, American Medical Association, 426 Seventeenth Street, Oakland, Calif.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
Health Center
Building

New Voter Preparation and Recognition

Chairman, Hugh S. Bonar, Superintendent of Schools, Manitowoc, Wis.

GOVERNMENT BY THE PEOPLE

William F. Russell, Director, National Citizenship Education Program, Washington, D. C.; Dean, Teachers College, Columbia University

PANEL DISCUSSION

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

Paul H. Sheats, Assistant Professor of Education, University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wis.

PROGRAMS OF PREPARATION

Lyle W. Ashby, Assistant Director, Division of Publications, National Education Association

URBAN ASPECTS

Prudence Cutright, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Minneapolis, Minn.

(Continued on next page)

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

RURAL ASPECTS

M. T. Buckley, County Superintendent of Schools, West Bend, Wis.

ALIENS PREPARING TO BECOME CITIZENS

Frank W. Cyr, Associate Director, National Citizenship Education Program, Washington, D. C.; Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University

IS THIS A FUNCTION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES OR IS IT A FUNCTION OF OTHER GOVERNMENTAL OR COMMUNITY AGENCIES?

Vierling Kersey, Superintendent of Schools, Los Angeles, Calif.

The Evaluation and Selection of Textbooks

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

Room 202

Veterans'

Building

Chairman, W. W. Ankenbrand, Superintendent of Schools, Yonkers, N. Y.

WHO SHOULD DECIDE WHETHER IT IS TIME TO SELECT A NEW TEXT AND ON WHAT BASIS SHOULD THIS DECISION BE MADE?

Lloyd N. Morrisett, Professor of Education, University of California at Los Angeles

CRITERIA OF BASES FOR EVALUATING AND SELECTING TEXTS

Pliny H. Powers, Professor of Education, New York University, New York, N. Y.

THE DANGERS AND ADVANTAGES INHERENT IN STATE ADOPTION AND STATE PRINTING OF TEXTBOOKS

Leon N. Neulen, Superintendent of Schools, Camden, N. J.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Everett W. Ireland, Superintendent of Schools, Somerville, Mass.

U. B. Jeffries, Superintendent of Schools, Charleston, Ill.

Current Problems in the Elementary Schools

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

War Memorial

Opera House

Joint Meeting with the Department of Elementary School Principals

Chairman, Worth McClure, Superintendent of Schools, Seattle, Wash.

THE EVOLVING ELEMENTARY-SCHOOL PLANT

N. L. Engelhardt, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

CAPITALIZING EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES OF THE COMMUNITY

Paul R. Hanna, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

LEADERSHIP CHALLENGES IN THE NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

William H. Burton, Director of Apprenticeship, School of Education, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.

PANEL DISCUSSION

Bernice Baxter, Coordinator of Instruction, Public Schools, Oakland, Calif.

John F. Cramer, Superintendent of Schools, Eugene, Oregon

Helen Heffernan, Chief, Division of Elementary Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

C. Paine Shangle, Superintendent of Schools, Bellingham, Wash.

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

Room 311

Veterans' Building

Vocational Training for Girls

Chairman, Mildred Bray, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Carson City, Nevada

TRAINING WOMEN FOR HOMEMAKING

Claribel Nye, Acting State Home Demonstration Leader, Agricultural Extension Service, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

TRAINING WOMEN AS AGRICULTURALISTS

Julian A. McPhee, Chief, Bureau of Agricultural Education, California State Department of Education; President, California Polytechnic School, San Luis Obispo, Calif.

TRAINING WOMEN FOR INDUSTRY

Mrs. Marguerite W. Zapoleon, Specialist, Occupations for Girls and Women, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

TRAINING WOMEN FOR BUSINESS

Ira W. Kirby, Chief, Bureau of Business Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Doris Dozier, Recorder and Secretary of Placement, Mills College, Calif.

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

Room 213

Veterans' Building

The Development of Critical Thinking in Secondary Education

Chairman, Howard R. Anderson, Associate Professor of Education, Cornell University; Director of Social Studies, Public High Schools, Ithaca, N. Y.

WHAT IS CRITICAL THINKING?

Frederick G. Marcham, Professor of English History, Cornell University, Ithaca, N. Y.

WHAT PROCEDURES AND MATERIALS CONTRIBUTE TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF SKILL IN CRITICAL THINKING?

Howard E. Wilson, Associate Professor of Education, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.

WHAT ARE SOME PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING CRITICAL THINKING?

Hilda Taba, Assistant Professor of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

Auditorium

High School

of Commerce

For These Americas

Chairman, Harold Benjamin, Dean, College of Education, University of Maryland, College Park, Md.

EDUCATION FOR DEFENSE OF THE WESTERN HEMISPHERE

Clarence Howe Thurber, Lecturer to Teachers in Service, Santa Barbara State College, Santa Barbara, Calif.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Virgil M. Rogers, Superintendent of Schools, River Forest, Ill.

L. John Nuttall, Jr., Superintendent of Schools, Salt Lake City, Utah

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

Room 314

Veterans' Building

Education and Public Relations

Chairman, Edwin R. Van Kleeck, Assistant State Commissioner of Education, State Education Department, Albany, N. Y.

DISCUSSION

John S. Brubacher, Associate Professor of Education, Yale University, New Haven, Conn.

(Continued on next page)

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS—DISCUSSION GROUPS

Arvid J. Burke, Director of Studies, New York State Teachers Association, Albany, N. Y.

Frank Cody, Superintendent of Schools, Detroit, Mich.

Otis A. Crosby, Administrative Assistant, Board of Education, Detroit, Mich.

John W. Dodd, Superintendent of Schools, Freeport, N. Y.

Donald DuShane, Secretary, Commission for the Defense of Democracy thru Education, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

Edward S. Evenden, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Belmont M. Farley, Director of Public Relations, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

Carlyle C. Ring, Superintendent of Schools, New Britain, Conn.

Juvenile Delinquency

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 404
Civic
Auditorium

Chairman, R. E. Dugdale, Superintendent of Schools, Portland, Oregon

DELINQUENCY AND MODERN SOCIAL TRENDS

Richard T. LaPiere, Professor of Sociology, Stanford University, Calif.

EARLY DISCOVERY OF TENDENCIES IN THE INDIVIDUAL TOWARD DELINQUENCY

Ruth T. Storey, Stanford University, Calif., formerly psychologist for the San Francisco Juvenile Court

COMMUNITY PREVENTION OF DELINQUENCY THRU CHILD WELFARE PROGRAMS

Aleta Brownlee, Regional Child Welfare Consultant, U. S. Children's Bureau, San Francisco, Calif.

MODIFICATION OF BEHAVIOR IN CHILDHOOD THRU ENVIRONMENTAL INFLUENCES

R. Nevitt Sanford, Assistant Professor of Psychology, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

Is Education Destined To Become a Federal Function?

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 303
Veterans'
Building

Chairman, H. Claude Hardy, Superintendent of Schools, White Plains, N. Y.

PANEL DISCUSSION

John H. Bosshart, Superintendent of Schools, South Orange and Maplewood, N. J.

Edgar G. Doudna, Secretary, State Board of Regents of Normal Schools, Madison, Wis.

Arvie Eldred, Executive Secretary, New York State Teachers Association, Albany, N. Y.

A. C. Flora, Superintendent of Schools, Columbia, S. C.

W. C. Griggs, Superintendent of Schools, Mobile, Ala.

George C. Mann, Director of Student Work, NYA, Washington, D. C.

E. E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools, Houston, Texas

Agnes Samuelson, Executive Secretary, Iowa State Teachers Association, Des Moines, Iowa

SUMMARIZATION AND APPRAISAL

Frank N. Freeman, Dean, College of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 403
Civic
Auditorium

School Forums as a Community Project

Chairman, Newell D. McCombs, Superintendent of Schools, Des Moines, Iowa

DISCUSSION—THE MAINSPRING OF DEMOCRACY

Mr. McCombs

GROWTH IN THE SCHOOLS

Harrison M. Sayre, President, American Education Press, Columbus, Ohio; Chairman, Ohio Commission for Democracy

GROWING OUT FROM THE SCHOOLS

David L. MacKaye, Director of Adult Education, Public Schools, San Jose, Calif.

THE FORUMS AND NATIONAL MORALE

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Federal Security Agency, Washington, D. C.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

The Junior Red Cross

Chairman, Belle M. Ryan, Assistant Superintendent in Charge of Elementary Schools, Omaha, Nebr.

THE EDUCATION OF CIVILIANS FOR NATIONAL SERVICE

Frank W. Hart, Professor of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

JUNIOR RED CROSS IN THE SECONDARY SCHOOL IN THE PRESENT CRISIS

J. Frederic Ching, Principal, Westlake Junior High School, Oakland, Calif.

JUNIOR RED CROSS IN THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL IN THE PRESENT CRISIS

Sue M. Powers, County Superintendent of Schools, Memphis, Tenn.

AN OVERVIEW OF JUNIOR RED CROSS IN THE WORLD TODAY WITH A VIEW TO FUTURE SERVICE

James T. Nicholson, Vice Chairman in charge of the American Junior Red Cross, Washington, D. C.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 319
Veterans'
Building

Safety Education and National Defense

Chairman, John E. Bryan, County Superintendent of Schools, Birmingham, Ala.

SPECIFIC SAFETY PROBLEMS IN DEFENSE AREAS AS RELATED TO SCHOOL ORGANIZATION

William R. Odell, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

SAFEGUARDING SCHOOL EQUIPMENT AND APPLYING INDUSTRIAL SAFETY PRINCIPLES TO THE SCHOOL DEFENSE SHOP SAFETY PROGRAM

Percy R. Davis, Superintendent of Schools, Santa Monica, Calif.

SPECIFIC SAFETY PROBLEMS IN PUPIL TRANSPORTATION DUE TO THE DEFENSE EFFORT—HOW TO MEET THEM

Amos E. Neuhart, Administrative Head, Institute of Public Safety, Pennsylvania State College, State College, Pa.

DISCUSSION LED BY

William G. Paden, Superintendent of Schools, Alameda, Calif.

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

American Educational Research Association

A Department of the National Education Association

President, T. R. McConnell, Associate Dean, College of Science, Literature, and the Arts, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minn.

Secretary-Treasurer, Helen M. Walker, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Section 1. "Problems of Experimental Design and Statistical Analysis." E. F. Lindquist, Professor of Education, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa, presiding.—ROOM 215, VETERANS' BUILDING. **MONDAY**
Feb. 23
9:00 A. M.

Section 2. "Research in Reading." Arthur I. Gates, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y., presiding.—ROOM 223, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 3. "School Administration." Jesse B. Sears, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif., presiding.—ROOM 212, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Joint Meeting with the National Society for the Study of Education. For program, see page 39.—HUMBOLDT HALL, EMPIRE HOTEL. **MONDAY**
1:45 P. M.

Business Meeting. HUMBOLDT HALL, EMPIRE HOTEL. **MONDAY**
4:00 P. M.

Annual Banquet followed by Discussion Groups. Address by Frank N. Freeman, Dean, College of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.—**MONDAY**
HUMBOLDT HALL, EMPIRE HOTEL. **6:45 P. M.**

Section 4. "Child Development." Harold E. Jones, Director, Institute of Child Welfare, University of California, Berkeley, Calif., presiding.—ROOM 319, VETERANS' BUILDING. **TUESDAY**
Feb. 24
9:00 A. M.

Section 5. "Research in the Education of Teachers." W. E. Peik, Dean, College of Education, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minn., presiding.—ROOM 316, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 6. "Research in Educational Appraisal." Alvin C. Eurich, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif., presiding.—ROOM 324, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 7. "Problems of Instruction." George C. Kyte, Professor of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif., presiding.—ROOM 322, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 8. "The Psychology of Learning." G. T. Buswell, Professor of Educational Psychology, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill., presiding.—ROOM 319, VETERANS' BUILDING. **TUESDAY**
1:45 P. M.

Section 9. "Social Studies and Social Behavior." Ernest Horn, Professor of Education, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa, presiding.—ROOM 322, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 10. "The Research Bureau in a School System." Helen M. Walker, Secretary-Treasurer of the Association, presiding.—ROOM 324, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 11. "Research in the Education of Teachers." Maurice E. Troyer, Associate in Evaluation, Commission on Teacher Education, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C., presiding.—ROOM 316, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Department of Classroom Teachers

President, Katy V. Anthony, Binford Junior High School, Richmond, Va.

Secretary, Mrs. Eleanor F. Edmiston, Woodrow Wilson Junior High School, San Diego, Calif.

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
2:00 P. M.

Joint Conference on Teacher Education. For program see page 40.—COLONIAL ROOM, ST. FRANCIS HOTEL.

SATURDAY
8:00 P. M.

Open House. Mabel Studebaker, Gridley Junior High School, Erie, Pa., Northeastern Regional Director of the Department, and Margery Alexander, Plaza Road School, Charlotte, N. C., Southeastern Regional Director of the Department, hostesses for this get-together, will welcome members and friends.—CALIFORNIA ROOM, HOTEL WHITCOMB.

SUNDAY
10:30 A. M.

Conference on Coordination in Teacher Education.—ITALIAN ROOM, ST. FRANCIS HOTEL.

SUNDAY
1:30 P. M.

Conference of Presidents of local, county, and state teachers associations. Mrs. Beulah Keeton Walker, Activity Director, Alexander Spence Junior High School, Dallas, Texas, South Central Regional Director of the Department, presiding.—CALIFORNIA ROOM, HOTEL WHITCOMB.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
11:00 A. M.

Advisory Council Coffee Hour.—Open to all classroom teachers. C. Marguerite Morse, Clearwater Senior High School, Clearwater, Fla., Vicepresident of the Department, presiding. Mrs. Myrtle Hooper Dahl, Hiawatha School, Minneapolis, Minn., President of the National Education Association, will speak.—CALIFORNIA ROOM, HOTEL WHITCOMB.

MONDAY
4:00 P. M.

Six Regional Meetings. Regional Directors, presiding.—ROOM 311, VETERANS' BUILDING.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:00 P. M.
California
Room
Whitecomb
Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

Teachers Fit for Tomorrow's Schools

Presiding, Mrs. Eleanor F. Edmiston, Secretary of the Department

THE PROFESSIONALLY ALERT AND INTELLECTUALLY FIT TEACHER

Jay D. Conner, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, San Diego, Calif.

THE PHYSICALLY FIT TEACHER

Harriett B. Randall, School Physician, Los Angeles, Calif.

THE SPIRITUALLY FIT TEACHER

The Reverend James King, S.J., Principal, St. Ignatius High School, San Francisco, Calif.

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
12:30 P. M.
Gold Room
Fairmont
Hotel

Annual Luncheon. Katy V. Anthony, President of the Department, presiding. Donald DuShane, Secretary, National Commission for the Defense of Democracy thru Education, will speak on "The Dependence of Democracy upon Education"; Alonzo F. Myers, School of Education, New York University, on "The Defense of Democracy and of Education thru Professional Associations"; and Irwin O. Addicott, Professor of Education, University of Denver, on "The NEA Department of Classroom Teachers' Denver Summer Conference in 1942—Meeting Our Responsibilities as Classroom Teachers."

THURSDAY
Feb. 26
11:00 A. M.

Evaluation Conference. Wilbur W. Rainsner, James Denman Junior High School, San Francisco, Calif., Southwestern Regional Director of the Department; Mary E. Bond, Whatcom Junior High School, Bellingham, Wash., Northwestern Regional Director of the Department, presiding.—CALIFORNIA ROOM, HOTEL WHITCOMB.

Department of Elementary School Principals

President, Robert H. Edgar, Principal, Bedford School, Pittsburgh, Pa.

Executive Secretary, Eva G. Pinkston, 1201 Sixteenth Street, N. W., Washington, D. C.

An Acquaintance Breakfast—CONCERT ROOM, PALACE HOTEL—for members and friends of the Department.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
7:30 A. M.

GENERAL SESSION

The Part the Elementary School Plays in Our Democratic Living

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Gold Ballroom
Palace Hotel

Presiding, Robert H. Edgar, President of the Department

COMMUNITY SINGING—Led by Dan H. Gilson, Horace Mann School, Oakland, Calif.; Pianist, Arthur W. Foshay, Melrose School, Oakland, Calif.

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON LONG-TERM PLANNING

Mason A. Stratton, Director of Elementary Education, Atlantic City, N. J.

LEARNING THE DEMOCRATIC WAY OF LIFE IN THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Helen Heffernan, Chief, Division of Elementary Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

The Annual Banquet, "Golden California," thru dramatic sketches will keep the chronological thread unwinding from Columbus thru Cortez, Cabrillo, Father Serra, the Spanish domination of the Roaring Fifties, and the Stars and Stripes. Dramatic program by Los Angeles Principals' Club, C. W. Presioa, president; Evalyn Dobyns, drama chairman; John Goodwin, Oakland, song leader. Banquet hosts: Executive Board of the Bay Section, California Elementary School Principals Association, Kenneth Forry, Martinez, president; Sarah L. Young, Oakland, general chairman.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
6:00 P. M.
Gold Ballroom
Palace Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

The Elementary School of Tomorrow

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Gold Ballroom
Palace Hotel

Program in charge of the California Elementary School Principals Association

Presiding, Robert H. Edgar, President of the Department

COMMUNITY SINGING—Led by Dan H. Gilson, Horace Mann School, Oakland, Calif.; Pianist, Arthur W. Foshay, Melrose School, Oakland, Calif.

GREETINGS—Emil J. Spiering, President, California Elementary School Principals Association

ANNOUNCEMENTS—Mr. Edgar

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OF TOMORROW

Chairman, Mr. Spiering

Discussion Leader, Paul R. Hanna, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

Walter H. Brown, Professor of Hygiene and Physical Education, Stanford University, Calif.

Willard S. Elsbree, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Roy Freeburg, Assistant Professor of Music, San Francisco State College, San Francisco, Calif.

Roma Gans, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Doris Gates, Instructor of Librarianship, San Jose State College, San Jose, Calif.

Helen Heffernan, Chief, Division of Elementary Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

Alice Schoelkopf, Supervisor of Art in Secondary Grades, Public Schools, Oakland, Calif.

Corinne A. Seeds, Assistant Professor of Education and Principal, University of California Elementary School, Los Angeles

Herbert R. Stoltz, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

10:00 A. M.

Representatives Meeting—TAPESTRY ROOM, PALACE HOTEL—All state, district, county, and city representatives of the Department will meet to discuss problems of the enrolment campaign.

WEDNESDAY

Feb. 25

2:30 P. M.

DISCUSSION GROUP
Joint meeting with the American Association of School Administrators. For program, see page 23.—WAR MEMORIAL OPERA HOUSE

Department of Rural Education

President, Mrs. Daisy E. Howard, County School Commissioner, Flint, Mich.

Recording Secretary, Lois M. Clark, Adviser, Early Childhood and Elementary Education, State Department of Public Instruction, Harrisburg, Pa.

Executive Secretary, Howard A. Dawson, Director of Rural Service, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

SUNDAY

Feb. 22

1:00 P. M.

Garden Room

Fairmont Hotel

Joint Luncheon Conference with Alliance for Guidance of Rural Youth and Rural Section of National Vocational Guidance Association. Howard A. Dawson, Executive Secretary, will summarize the Department yearbook, "Guidance in the Rural School." Discussion introduced by Ralph E. Noble, State Commissioner of Education, Montpelier, Vt. Mrs. Daisy E. Howard, President of the Department, presiding.

MONDAY

Feb. 23

12:00 Noon

MONDAY

2:30 P. M.

Luncheon Conference. Willis A. Sutton, Superintendent of Schools, Atlanta, Ga., will speak on "What the Rural Schools Ought To Teach."—RED ROOM, FAIRMONT HOTEL.

Joint Session with American Association of School Administrators. For program, see page 15.—GOLD ROOM, FAIRMONT HOTEL.

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

GENERAL SESSION

Presiding, Mrs. Daisy E. Howard, President of the Department

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Room 1
Veterans'
Building

THE RURAL SCHOOL OF TOMORROW

Roscoe Pulliam, President, Southern Illinois Normal University, Carbondale, Ill.

THE CONTRIBUTION OF RURAL PEOPLE TO THE AMERICAN WAY OF LIFE

J. R. Jewell, Dean, School of Education, University of Oregon, Eugene, Oregon

DISCUSSION BASED ON THE TWO ADDRESSES

Leader, Roben J. Maaske, President, Eastern Oregon College of Education, La Grande, Oregon

C. R. Bowman, County Superintendent of Schools, Medford, Oregon

Mrs. Letha Jenkins, Principal, Ross Elementary School, Ross, Calif.

A. E. O'Donnell, Secretary, Alameda County Farm Bureau, Hayward, Calif.

BUSINESS MEETING

SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

Presiding, F. Ray Power, Assistant State Superintendent of Schools, Charleston, W. Va.; President of the Division

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
9:00 A. M.
Room 219
Veterans'
Building

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE SCHOOL ORGANIZATION FACTOR IN ORGANIZING AND FINANCING SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION

A. C. Lambert, Professor of Educational Administration, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah

A REPORT ON PRIORITIES FOR SCHOOL BUSES

Howard A. Dawson, Executive Secretary of the Department

DISCUSSION—(1) Regional conferences on school bus transportation, (2) The revision of national standards of school bus construction

BUSINESS SESSION—Reports of committees, Election of officers

COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS DIVISION

The Place of the Rural School in the National Defense Program

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 1
Veterans'
Building

Presiding, Charles F. Maxwell, County Superintendent of Schools, Greensburg, Pa.; President of the Division

THE PLACE OF THE SCHOOL IN BUILDING MORALE

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C.

EDUCATION IN RURAL SCHOOLS FOR NATIONAL DEFENSE

Jere A. Wells, County Superintendent of Schools, Atlanta, Ga.

PANEL DISCUSSION: THE PLACE OF THE RURAL SCHOOL IN THE NATIONAL DEFENSE PROGRAM—Frank W. Cyr, *Leader*, Teachers College, Columbia University; Lelia Ann Taggart, County Director of Education, Santa Barbara, Calif.; H. B. McDaniel, Vocational Counselor, Public Schools, San Diego, Calif.; J. T. Reece, State Education Department, Santa Fe, N. Mex.; Rex C. Haight, State Department of Public Instruction, Missoula, Mont.; Francis L. Drag, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.; Leonard Gridstaff, General County Supervisor of Schools, Alturas, Calif.; Bernard Lonsdale, County Field Assistant, Los Angeles, Calif.; J. A. Guitteau, State Supervisor of Vocational Education, Olympia, Wash.; F. C. Ransdell, County Superintendent of Schools, Kenton, Ohio.

Department of Supervisors and Directors of Instruction

President, Dale Zeller, Associate Professor of Education, Kansas State Teachers College, Emporia, Kansas

Executive Secretary, Ruth M. Cunningham, 1201 Sixteenth Street, Northwest, Washington, D. C.

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
9:00 A. M.
Empire Room
Sir Francis
Drake Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

Joint Meeting with the Society for Curriculum Study

THE CHALLENGE TO CURRICULUM LEADERSHIP IN TODAY'S WORLD

Chairman, Lorraine Miller Sherer, Los Angeles County Schools, Calif.

Speaker, George S. Counts, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

PROBLEMS IN CURRICULUM LEADERSHIP

Chairman, Herbert R. Stoltz, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

COORDINATING THE LEADERSHIP OF SUPERVISORS AND CURRICULUM DIRECTORS IN IMPROVING INSTRUCTION

Dale Zeller, President of the Department

LEADERSHIP IN COORDINATING SOCIAL AGENCIES

Bess Goodykoontz, Assistant Commissioner, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

LEADERSHIP IN THE STUDY OF THE CHILD

Gilbert Wrenn, College of Education, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minn.

DISCUSSION

Milton W. Carothers, Director, Division of Instruction, State Department of Education, Tallahassee, Fla.

Prudence Cutright, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Minneapolis, Minn.

Lelia Taggart Ormsby, Santa Barbara County Schools, Calif.

Warren C. Seyfert, School of Education, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.

SATURDAY
2:00 P. M.

SUNDAY
10:30 A. M.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
9:00 A. M.
Colonial Room
St. Francis
Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

EDUCATION AND OUR CULTURE PATTERN

Chairman, Dale Zeller, President of the Department

Speakers, Everett R. Clinchy, President, National Conference of Christians and Jews, New York, N. Y.

Reginald Bell, Stanford University, Calif.

BUSINESS MEETING

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

DISCUSSION GROUPS

Developing Personal Security, Understanding, and Appreciation

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.

Section 1. "Majority Cultures." Rudolph D. Lindquist, *Chairman*, Cranbrook School, Bloomfield Hills, Mich.; Woodrow Chan, Central Chinese High School in America, San Francisco, Calif.; Stewart G. Cole, Service Bureau for Intercultural Education, New York City; Elizabeth M. Engle, Chicago Teachers College; Mrs. Ching Wah Lee, California Congress of Parents and Teachers, San Francisco; Elma Neal, San Antonio Schools, Texas; Mildred M. Prince, Probation Commission, San Francisco, Calif.; Esther Swenson, Ball State Teachers College, Muncie, Ind.; Wallace Taylor, Francisco Junior High School, San Francisco, Calif.; Mrs. T. Yamamoto, California Congress of Parents and Teachers, San Francisco, Calif.—Room 215, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 2. "Minority Cultures." C. O. Arndt, *Chairman*, Northwestern University; Ella Flynn, LeMoyne School, Chicago, Ill.; Walter Kaulfers, Stanford University; Mrs. William Kletzer, National Congress of Parents and Teachers, Chicago, Ill.; Pauline Knobbs, Northeast Missouri State Teachers College, Kirksville; Lillian A. Lamoreaux, Santa Barbara Schools, Calif.; Annie Clo Watson, International Institute, San Francisco, Calif.—Room 319, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 3. "Enemy Cultures." Holland Roberts, *Chairman*, Stanford University; Dorothy W. Baruch, Whittier College, Pasadena, Calif.; Lowell P. Goodrich, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Milwaukee, Wis.; Lelia Taggart Ormsby, Santa Barbara County Schools, Calif.; Mrs. M. C. Sloss, Children's Society, San Francisco, Calif.—Room 308, VETERANS' BUILDING.

Section 4. "Coordinating Our Efforts in Intercultural Education." Hollis L. Caswell, *Chairman*, Teachers College, Columbia University. (This Section will be for invited representatives of various organizations which have programs in intercultural education.)—Room 305, VETERANS' BUILDING.

GENERAL SESSION

Joint Meeting with the National Council of Teachers of English and the Society for Curriculum Study

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
9:00 A. M.
Gold Ballroom
Palace Hotel

AMERICANS ALL: STUDIES IN INTERCULTURAL EDUCATION

Chairman, William T. Melchior, Syracuse University, Syracuse, N. Y.

PRESENTATION OF YEARBOOK

C. O. Arndt, *Chairman*, Committees for the Yearbook

ACCEPTANCE OF YEARBOOK

Dale Zeller, President of the Department

PANEL DISCUSSION: ISSUES IN INTERCULTURAL EDUCATION

Chairman, Rudolph D. Lindquist, Director, Cranbrook School, Bloomfield Hills, Mich.

C. O. Arndt, Northwestern University, Evanston, Ill.

Lloyd Cook, Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio

Kenneth L. Heaton, Northwestern University, Evanston, Ill.

Helen Heffernan, California State Department of Public Instruction

Mrs. William Kletzer, President, National Congress of Parents and Teachers

Eason Monroe, Menlo Junior College, Menlo Park, Calif.

J. Cecil Parker, Michigan State Department of Public Instruction

Paul Witty, Northwestern University, Evanston, Ill.

Dale Zeller, President of the Department

COORDINATING OUR EFFORTS IN INTERCULTURAL EDUCATION

Chairman, Hollis L. Caswell, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

REPORT OF JOINT CONFERENCE ON INTERCULTURAL EDUCATION DISCUSSION

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

**TUESDAY and
WEDNESDAY**
**2:30 to
5:30 P. M.**

Intercultural Education Laboratory. Materials which relate to intercultural education will be on exhibit. Consultants will be available to those interested in intercultural education programs. Ruth Edmonds, Colusa County Schools, Calif., Chairman.—Room 210, St. FRANCIS HOTEL.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
12:30 P. M.

Luncheon. Topic: "Our Department Program." Bernard Lonsdale, President, California School Supervisors' Association, presiding. Report by Ruth Cunningham, Executive Secretary of the Department.—ITALIAN ROOM, ST. FRANCIS HOTEL.

Department of Vocational Education

President, Harry Tiemann, State Director of Vocational Education, Denver
Secretary, Paul Thomas, Dean of Men, Central Trade School, Oakland, Calif.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
12:30 P. M.
**Central Trade
School**
**3rd Avenue &
East 11th St.**
Oakland

LUNCHEON MEETING

Presiding, John C. Beswick, State Director of Vocational Education, Sacramento
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS IN VOCATIONAL TRAINING FOR DEFENSE WORKERS

H. N. Wright, Supervisor of National Defense, Public Schools, Oakland, Calif.
COOPERATION OF DEFENSE INDUSTRIES IN THE TRAINING PROGRAM

James Moore, Vicepresident, Moore Drydock Corporation, Oakland, Calif.
THE PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT SERVICE CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL DEFENSE

Peter Kristick, Area Supervisor, California State Department of Employment
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF LABOR IN THE PROGRAM OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING FOR DEFENSE WORKERS

C. D. Gibbon, Business Representative, Steamfitters Local No. 342, Oakland

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Room 322
**Veterans'
Building**
San Francisco

GENERAL SESSION

Presiding, L. E. Wormley, Director of Vocational Education, Public Schools, San Francisco, Calif.

PRODUCTION FOR DEFENSE IN PUBLIC VOCATIONAL SCHOOLS
Milton C. Potter, Superintendent of Schools, Milwaukee, Wis.

PROVIDING AN ADEQUATE PROGRAM OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING FOR DEFENSE
Edwin A. Lee, Dean, School of Education, University of California at Los Angeles

Note: Commentators from representative employer, labor, and military organizations will present their views on the subject.

National Association of Secondary-School Principals

A Department of the National Education Association

President, John E. Wellwood, Principal, Central High School, Flint, Mich.
Executive Secretary, Paul E. Elcker, 1201 Sixteenth Street, Northwest, Washington, D. C.

CONVENTION THEME: *The Schools Carry On*

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
6:00 P. M.
Colonial Room
**St. Francis
Hotel**

Annual Banquet. "How the Schools Should Carry On" will be discussed by Charles P. Taft, Coordinator of Health, Welfare, and Related Defense Activities, Federal Security Agency, Washington, D. C.; Tully C. Knobles, President, College of the Pacific, Stockton, Calif.; John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C. John E. Wellwood, President of the Association, presiding. Music by Girls' Chorus, Balboa High School, San Francisco, Calif., Gertrude Norgard, Director.

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

FIRST GENERAL SESSION

Providing Educational Leadership for the Needs of Youth

Joint Meeting with the Association of California Secondary-School Principals

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Colonial Room
St. Francis Hotel

Presiding, Earle E. Crawford, Principal, Glenn County Union High School, Willows, Calif.; President, Association of California Secondary-School Principals

PREPARING TEACHERS FOR THE SECONDARY SCHOOL OF THE FUTURE

Karl W. Bigelow, Director, Commission on Teacher Education, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

WORK EXPERIENCES IN SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Henry A. Cross, Dean, San Luis Obispo Junior College, Calif.

A PROGRAM FOR YOUTH IN THESE TIMES

Forrest G. Murdock, Principal, San Jose High School, Calif.

JUNIOR COLLEGE SECTION

Joint Meeting with the American Association of School Administrators. For program, see page 17.—ITALIAN ROOM, ST. FRANCIS HOTEL.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.

SECOND GENERAL SESSION

How the Association Carries On

Presiding, Virgil M. Hardin, Principal, Pipkin and Reed Junior High Schools, Springfield, Mo.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Colonial Room
St. Francis Hotel

IMPROVING PERSONNEL RECORDS OF SECONDARY-SCHOOL STUDENTS

Will French, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.; Chairman, Implementation Commission

RESOURCE UNITS FOR SCHOOLS ON VITAL CONTEMPORARY SOCIAL PROBLEMS—A report of the Study on Democratic Citizenship

Paul B. Jacobson, Principal, University of Chicago High School, Chicago, Ill.

PLANNING FOR SECONDARY EDUCATION

Francis L. Bacon, Principal, Evanston Township High School, Evanston, Ill.

THE ASSOCIATION AT WORK

Paul E. Elicker, Executive Secretary of the Association

ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING

THIRD GENERAL SESSION

Education for Youth in These Times

Presiding, E. R. Jobe, State Supervisor of High Schools, Jackson, Miss.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Colonial Room
St. Francis Hotel

WHAT KIND OF SECONDARY EDUCATION TOMORROW

Floyd W. Reeves, Director, American Youth Commission, Washington, D. C.

DISCUSSION PANEL

Leader, Jesse B. Davis, Dean, School of Education, Boston University, Boston, Mass.

THE EAST ASKS THE WEST ABOUT THE CORE CURRICULUM

Team of four representing the East

Warren Seyfert, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass., *Chairman*

I. Keith Tyler, Associate Professor of Education, Ohio State University

J. Cecil Parker, State Department of Public Instruction, Lansing, Mich.

Paul B. Jacobson, Principal, University of Chicago High School

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

Team of four representing the West

John W. Wilson, Principal, David Starr Jordan Senior High School, Long Beach, Calif., *Chairman*

William Brown, Head, Curriculum Department, Public Schools, Los Angeles, Calif.

Andrew P. Hill, District Superintendent of Schools, Santa Maria, Calif.

Harvey J. Holt, Principal, Santa Barbara High School, Calif.

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Community
Playhouse
Western
Women's Club

JUNIOR HIGH-SCHOOL SECTION

Today's Program for Pupil Growth and Development in the Junior High School

Presiding, George E. Hook, Principal, Lake Junior High School, Denver, Colo.

IN THE FIELD OF HEALTH

Anne S. Duggan, Texas State College for Women, Denton, Texas; President, American Association for Health, Physical Education, and Recreation

IN THE FIELD OF EMOTIONS

Herbert R. Stoltz, Assistant Superintendent of Schools, Oakland, Calif.

IN THE FIELD OF CURRICULUM

Grayson N. Kefauver, Dean, School of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

National Association of State High School Supervisors and Directors

President, R. R. Vance, State Department of Education, Nashville, Tenn.

Secretary-Treasurer, Paul D. Collier, State Department of Education, Hartford, Conn.

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
9:00 A. M.
Green Room
St. Francis
Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

STANDARDIZATION, ACCREDITATION, AND IMPROVEMENT OF SCHOOLS

Paul Eddy, Supervisor of School Education, State Department of Education, Tallahassee, Fla.

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

SATURDAY
12:30 P. M.

Luncheon Meeting—GREEN ROOM, ST. FRANCIS HOTEL—Aubrey A. Douglass, Assistant Superintendent of Public Instruction and Chief, Division of Secondary Education, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif., will speak on "Trends in the Organization of Basic High School Program of Studies."

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
2:30 P. M.
Green Room
St. Francis
Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

THE NATIONAL DEFENSE PROGRAM AND THE SECONDARY SCHOOL

Roscoe Pulliam, President, Southern Illinois Normal University, Carbondale, Ill.

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

National Council of Chief State School Officers

President, Colie English, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Tallahassee, Fla.

Secretary, H. V. Holloway, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Dover, Del.

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

LUNCHEON MEETING

Presiding, Mrs. Inez Johnson Lewis, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Denver, Colo.

PROBLEMS OF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION DURING THE WAR

John W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C.

DISCUSSION LED BY

Walter F. Dexter, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Sacramento, Calif.

National Council of Childhood Education

Participating Groups

ASSOCIATION FOR CHILDHOOD EDUCATION—President, Marjorie Hardy, Principal, Lower School, Germantown Friends School, Philadelphia, Pa.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR NURSERY EDUCATION—President, Amy Hostler, Dean, Mills School, New York, N. Y.

FIRST GENERAL SESSION

Education and Welfare of Young Children in a Democracy

Presiding, Rose H. Alschuler, Vicepresident, National Association for Nursery Education, Washington, D. C.

WARTIME POLICY FOR AMERICAN EDUCATION

William G. Carr, Secretary, Educational Policies Commission, National Education Association, Washington, D. C.

WARTIME CONDITIONS AFFECTING YOUNG CHILDREN

Lois Meek Stoltz, Oakland, Calif.

Informal Luncheon—Roof Lounge, Clift Hotel—An opportunity to meet and talk with friends. Hostesses: Irene T. Heineman, Assistant Superintendent, State Department of Education, Los Angeles, Calif.; Esther M. Lipp, Whittier University Elementary School, Berkeley, Calif.

SECOND GENERAL SESSION

A Community Plans How Best To Serve Young Children in This Emergency

Presiding, Helen Christianson, Vicepresident, Association for Childhood Education, University of California, Los Angeles, Calif.

COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Leader—George C. Kyte, Professor of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

CULTURAL RESOURCES—Clara Belle Baker, National College of Education, Evanston, Ill.

EDUCATION—Rose H. Alschuler, National Commission for Young Children, Washington, D. C.; Hope L. Cahill, State Director, Division of Community Service Programs, WPA, San Francisco, Calif.; Helen M. Reynolds, Director of Kindergarten-Primary Education, Board of Education, Seattle, Wash.; Isabel J. Robinson, Assistant Specialist in Family Life Education, WPA, Washington, D. C.; Pearl A. Wanamaker, State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Olympia, Wash.; Ruth Newby, Public Schools, Pasadena, Calif.

HOUSING—Florence Friedmar, Visitacion Valley Center, San Francisco, Calif.; Dorothy Henry, Golden Gate Nursery School, San Francisco, Calif.

LIBRARY—Mildred Batchelder, American Library Association, Chicago, Ill.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
12:30 P. M.
Tapestry Room
Palace Hotel

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
9:00 A. M.
Delphian
Room
Clift Hotel

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
12:00 Noon

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25
2:30 P. M.
Roof Lounge
Clift Hotel

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

PARENTS—Mrs. William Kletzer, President, National Congress of Parents and Teachers, Chicago, Ill.

PUBLIC HEALTH—William A. Shepard, Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, San Francisco, Calif.

RECREATION—George W. Braden, National Recreation Association, Pasadena, Calif.

SOCIAL WELFARE—H. E. Chamberlain, Consulting Psychiatrist, Child Welfare Services, State Department of Public Welfare, Sacramento, Calif.; Cecilia C. Heichemer, Consultant, Child Welfare Division, Children's Bureau, Department of Labor, Washington, D. C.

SUMMARY—Helen Christianson

National Council of Education

President, Louis A. Pechstein, Dean, Teachers College, University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, Ohio

Secretary, Margaret Kiely, Dean, Queens College, Flushing, N. Y.

MONDAY
Feb. 23
2:30 P. M.
Community
Playhouse
Western
Women's Club

FIRST SESSION

Presiding, Louis A. Pechstein, President of the Council

EDUCATIONAL PROGRESS DURING THE PAST YEAR

Carter V. Good, Professor of Education, University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, Ohio

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

EDUCATION—THE MAIN SAFEGUARD OF FREEDOM IN A DEMOCRACY

Leader, William F. Russell, Director, National Citizenship Education Program, Washington, D. C.; Dean, Teachers College, Columbia University

Alexander J. Stoddard, Superintendent of Schools, Philadelphia, Pa.

Henry H. Hill, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Ky.

George F. Zook, President, American Council on Education, Washington, D. C.

Worth McClure, Superintendent of Schools, Seattle, Wash.

Claude V. Courter, Superintendent of Schools, Cincinnati, Ohio

George S. Counts, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:30 P. M.
Community
Playhouse
Western
Women's Club

SECOND SESSION

Presiding, Frank N. Freeman, Dean, College of Education, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

FEDERAL YOUTH AGENCIES AND THE SCHOOLS—Report of Committee on Educational Recommendations: Frank N. Freeman, *Chairman*; William G. Carr, W. W. Charters, George S. Counts, Newton Edwards, Carter V. Good, Ben G. Graham, Charles H. Judd, Paul R. Mort, Floyd W. Reeves, John A. Sexson, Frank W. Thomas, Goodwin B. Watson.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

William G. Carr, Educational Policies Commission, Washington, D. C.

Aubrey A. Douglass, State Department of Education, Sacramento, Calif.

Sidney B. Hall, George Washington University, Washington, D. C.

Charles H. Judd, 4418 Circle View Boulevard, Los Angeles, Calif.

John K. Norton, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Floyd W. Reeves, American Youth Commission, Washington, D. C.

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR

BUSINESS MEETING (For Council Members only)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

National Society for the Study of Education

Chairman, Board of Directors, William C. Bagley, Editor, *School and Society*, 425 West 123d Street, New York, N. Y.

Secretary-Treasurer, Nelson B. Henry, Associate Professor of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

FIRST SESSION—PANEL DISCUSSION

Philosophies of Education

This session will be devoted to a panel discussion of Part I of the Forty-First Yearbook of the Society, "Philosophies of Education," in which prominent representatives of different schools of thought have contributed to a comparative exposition of the philosophies of education embodied in pragmatism, idealism, realism, Aristotelianism, and Catholicism.

Presiding, William C. Bagley, Chairman of the Society's Board of Directors

Panel Chairman, John S. Brubacher, Associate Professor of the History and Philosophy of Education, Yale University, New Haven, Conn.; Chairman, Yearbook Committee

PRAGMATISM

Chapter Author: William H. Kilpatrick, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

Panel Representative: Professor Kilpatrick

REALISM

Chapter Author: Frederick S. Breed, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

Panel Representative: Professor Breed

IDEALISM

Chapter Author: Herman H. Horne, Professor of Education, New York University, New York, N. Y.

Panel Representative: Elmer H. Staffelbach, Professor of Education, San Jose State College, San Jose, Calif.

ARISTOTELIANISM

Chapter Author: Mortimer J. Adler, Associate Professor of the Philosophy of Law, University of Chicago

Panel Representative: James L. Haggerty, Dean, School of Arts and Letters, St. Mary's College, Calif.

CATHOLICISM

Chapter Author: William J. McGucken, S. J., Director, Department of Education, St. Louis University, St. Louis, Mo.

Panel Representative: Dean McGucken

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
8:00 P. M.
Auditorium
Veterans'
Building

SECOND SESSION

Psychology of Learning

Joint Meeting with American Educational Research Association

This session will be devoted to Part II of the Forty-First Yearbook of the Society, "Psychology of Learning," which deals with the concepts of learning as expressed in terms of conditioning, connectionism, and the field theory of learning and explains the relation of the concepts to certain aspects of learning under school conditions.

Presiding, T. R. McConnell, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minn.; President, American Educational Research Association; and Chairman of the Society's Yearbook Committee

MONDAY
Feb. 23
1:45 P. M.
Humboldt Hall
Empire Hotel

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

THE PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF THE YEARBOOK

Mr. McConnell

TOO GOOD TO BE TRUE: A CRITIQUE OF SLOGANS

Harold Benjamin, Dean, College of Education, University of Maryland, College Park, Md.

CRITIQUES OF THE YEARBOOK

Ernest R. Hilgard, Professor of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

Stephen M. Corey, Professor of Educational Psychology, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

THE IMPORTANCE OF RESEARCH ON LEARNING ON THE SCHOOL SITUATION

Charles H. Judd, 4418 Circle View Boulevard, Los Angeles, Calif.

National Society of College Teachers of Education

President, A. R. Mead, Director of Educational Research, University of Florida, Gainesville, Fla.

Secretary-Treasurer, Clifford Woody, Professor of Education, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.

SATURDAY
Feb. 21
2:00 P. M.
Colonial Room
St. Francis
Hotel

FIFTH ANNUAL JOINT CONFERENCE ON TEACHER EDUCATION IN THE UNITED STATES

Group Planning and Action in Teacher Education

Presiding, M. R. Trabue, Dean, School of Education, Pennsylvania State College, State College, Pa.; President, National Association of Colleges and Departments of Education

Major problems to be discussed by the speakers include the following: "Getting Together," "Working Together," "Using Resources," and the "Role of Leadership."

CONCRETE EXPERIENCES IN THE FIELD:

GROUP ACTION IN A SCHOOL SYSTEM

H. P. Study, Superintendent of Schools, Springfield, Mo.

GROUP ACTION IN A STATE

M. W. Carothers, Director, Division of Instruction, State Department of Public Instruction, Tallahassee, Fla.

GROUP ACTION IN THE COOPERATIVE STUDY OF TEACHER EDUCATION

W. Earl Armstrong, Field Coordinator, Commission on Teacher Education

DISCUSSION

BASIC PRINCIPLES AND THEIR APPLICATION IN WARTIME

BASIC PRINCIPLES OF GROUP ACTION

Karl W. Bigelow, Director, Commission on Teacher Education

ROLE OF GROUP ACTION IN WARTIME

Edwin A. Lee, Dean, School of Education, University of California at Los Angeles

DISCUSSION

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

GENERAL SESSION

The Society's Investigations and Yearbooks: Problems and Policies

Presiding, A. R. Mead, President of the Society

THE STUDY OF TEACHER EDUCATION AND THE YEARBOOK

Harold Benjamin, Dean, School of Education, University of Maryland, College Park, Md.; Chairman of the Committee

THE STUDY OF EVALUATION AND THE YEARBOOK

Bruce R. Raup, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.; Chairman of the Committee

THE PROBLEMS AND POLICIES OF THE SOCIETY REGARDING YEARBOOKS

William S. Gray, Professor of Education, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.; Chairman of the Committee

Luncheon Meeting—Room 220, St. Francis Hotel—Rufus B. von KleinSmid, President, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, Calif., will speak on "Education: War and Peace."

Joint Meeting—Empire Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel—with the National Association of Supervisors of Student Teaching. Theme: "The Internship in Teacher Education."

MONDAY
Feb. 23
9:00 A. M.
Italian Room
St. Francis
Hotel

GENERAL SESSION

State-Wide Programs of Pre-Service and In-Service Education of Teachers and Improvement of Education

Presiding, A. R. Mead, President of the Society

IN A SOUTHWESTERN STATE—PLANS, WORK, AND EVALUATION OF THE STATE PROGRAM IN TEXAS

Fred C. Ayer, Professor of Educational Administration, University of Texas

IN A NORTHWESTERN AREA—A STATE AND REGIONAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

Edgar M. Draper, Professor of Education, University of Washington, Seattle

IN A NORTHCENTRAL STATE—THE COOPERATIVE TEACHER EDUCATION STUDY IN MICHIGAN—H. L. Turner, Lansing, Mich., Director

IN A SOUTHEASTERN STATE—THE COOPERATIVE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM IN GEORGIA

Zach. S. Henderson, Dean, Georgia Teachers College, Collegeboro, Ga.

BUSINESS MEETING—Topics for discussion: (1) Expansion of membership, (2) Regional meetings, (3) Proposed cooperative organization or affiliation among the organizations interested in teacher education

Section 1. Room 311, VETERANS' BUILDING—"Child Growth and Educational Psychology." Alvin C. Eurich, Professor of Education, Stanford University, presiding. John E. Anderson, University of Minnesota; Harold E. Jones, University of California at Berkeley; George D. Stoddard, State University of Iowa; Lois Meek Stoltz, Oakland, Calif.

TUESDAY
Feb. 24
2:00 P. M.

Section 2. Room 308, VETERANS' BUILDING—"Comparative Education and History of Education." Walter V. Kaulfers, Stanford University, presiding. Charles F. Arrowood, University of Texas; Frederick Lilge, University of California at Berkeley; George S. Counts, Teachers College, Columbia University; Marie Lien, University of Minnesota; William G. Campbell, University of Southern California; Claude A. Nichols, Southern Methodist University; Fletcher H. Swift, University of California at Berkeley; William A. Smith, University of California at Los Angeles.

(Continued on next page)

ALLIED ORGANIZATIONS

Section 3. Room 215, VETERANS' BUILDING—"Educational Sociology." David Snedden, Emeritus Professor of Educational Sociology, Teachers College, Columbia University, presiding. C. C. Crawford, University of Southern California; Charles E. Hutchinson, University of New Mexico; Junius L. Meriam, University of California at Los Angeles; Donald S. MacKay, University of California at Berkeley; John E. Corbally, University of Washington; J. R. Jewell, University of Oregon.

Section 4. Room 219, VETERANS' BUILDING—"Administration and Supervision." George C. Kyte, University of California at Berkeley, presiding. William H. Burton, Harvard University; Graham C. Loofbourrow, Chico State College, Chico, Calif.; Worth McClure, Superintendent of Schools, Seattle, Wash.

SEMINAR

American Association of School Administrators

Youth Programs for a Free People

Closed Meetings—Monday and Tuesday, February 23-24, at 2:30 P. M.
Room 2001, Palace Hotel

A. L. THRELKELD, Chairman, Superintendent of Schools.....	Montclair, N. J.
PANSY JEWETT ABBOTT, County Superintendent of Schools.....	Redwood City, Calif.
FRED C. AYER, University of Texas.....	Austin, Texas
MILDRED BRAY, State Superintendent of Public Instruction.....	Carson City, Nevada
JOHN E. BRYAN, County Superintendent of Schools.....	Birmingham, Ala.
WILLIAM G. CARR, Secretary, Educational Policies Commission.....	Washington, D. C.
A. S. CHENOWETH, Superintendent of Schools.....	Atlantic City, N. J.
GEORGE S. COUNTS, Teachers College, Columbia University.....	New York, N. Y.
L. H. DENNIS, Executive Secretary, American Vocational Association.....	Washington, D. C.
R. E. DUGDALE, Superintendent of Schools.....	Portland, Oregon
ARVIE ELDRED, Executive Secretary, New York State Teachers Association.....	Albany, N. Y.
PAUL L. ESSERT, Superintendent of Schools.....	Grosse Pointe, Mich.
E. SCOTT HOLBECK, Major, Infantry, Reserve Officers' Training Corps, Pasadena Junior College.....	Pasadena, Calif.
O. S. HUBBARD, County High School Curriculum Coordinator.....	San Jose, Calif.
FREDERICK M. HUNTER, University of Oregon.....	Eugene, Oregon
H. M. IVY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Meridian, Miss.
PAUL B. JACOBSON, Principal, University of Chicago High School.....	Chicago, Ill.
FRED J. KELLY, Chief, Division of Higher Education, U. S. Office of Education.....	Washington, D. C.
EDWIN A. LEE, Dean, School of Education, University of California.....	Los Angeles, Calif.
JAMES MARSHALL, President, New York City Board of Education.....	Brooklyn, N. Y.
JESSE H. MASON, Superintendent of Schools.....	Canton, Ohio
G. L. MAXWELL, Assistant Secretary, Educational Policies Commission.....	Washington, D. C.
JOHN K. NORTON, Teachers College, Columbia University.....	New York, N. Y.
E. GEORGE PAYNE, New York University.....	New York, N. Y.
REINHOLD SCHAIER, U. S. Committee on Educational Reconstruction, 2 W. 45th Street.....	New York, N. Y.
GEORGE D. STODDARD, Dean, Graduate College, State University of Iowa.....	Iowa City, Iowa
GEORGE D. STRAYER, Teachers College, Columbia University.....	New York, N. Y.
EMILY TARBELL, Vocational High School.....	Syracuse, N. Y.
EDWIN R. VAN KLEECK, Assistant State Commissioner of Education.....	Albany, N. Y.
W. FRANK WARREN, Superintendent of Schools.....	Durham, N. C.
CARLETON W. WASHBURN, Superintendent of Schools.....	Winnetka, Ill.

BREAKFASTS, LUNCHEONS, DINNERS

TICKETS AND FURTHER INFORMATION may be obtained from Macie D. Templeman at registration headquarters, San Francisco Civic Auditorium. The name given in each of the following announcements is that of the person in charge. California State Tax 3%.

Dinner

FRIDAY
Feb. 20

American Association of Teachers Colleges—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Italian Room. Price, \$2.00. Charles W. Hunt, State Normal School, Oneonta, N. Y.

Luncheons

SATURDAY
Feb. 21

Association of California Secondary School Principals, State Representative Council—12:00 Noon. Palace Hotel, French Parlor. Earle E. Crawford, Glenn County Union High School, Willows, Calif.

Consumer Education Association—12:00 Noon. Bellevue Hotel. O. B. Paulsen, Union High School, Hayward, Calif.

National Advisory Council on School Building Problems—12:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Borgia Room. Price, \$1.50. Alice Barrows, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C.

National Association of State High School Supervisors and Directors—12:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Green Room. Price \$1.25. R. R. Vance, War Memorial Bldg., Nashville, Tenn.

National Conference on Research in English—12:30 P. M. Bellevue Hotel, Jade Room. Mildred Dawson, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, Tenn.

National Council for the Social Studies—12:00 Noon. Clift Hotel, Roof Lounge. Price, \$1.40. Wilbur F. Murra, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

National Council of Teachers of Mathematics—12:00 Noon. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$1.75. Mrs. Ruth Sumner, Oakland High School, Oakland, Calif.

Society for Curriculum Study—12:15 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Franciscan Room. Price, \$1.30. J. Paul Leonard, School of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

Dinners

Department of Home Economics—6:30 P. M. Fairmont Hotel, Gold Room. Price, \$2.50. Mrs. Edith Murphy, 93 Grove St., San Francisco, Calif.

Epsilon Pi Tau—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 220. Price, \$2.00. Marion Weatherford, San Jose State College, San Jose, Calif.

National Association of Secondary-School Principals—6:00 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Colonial Room. Price, \$2.25. Paul E. Elicker, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

National Association of Teacher Education Institutions in Metropolitan Districts—6:00 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Green Room. Price, \$2.00. W. E. Lessenger, Wayne University, Detroit, Mich.

National Council of Teachers of Mathematics—6:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$2.75. Mary K. McBride, Lowell High School, San Francisco, Calif.

Breakfasts

SUNDAY
Feb. 22

College Professors of Secondary Education—8:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, Room 201. DeWitt S. Morgan, Superintendent of Schools, Indianapolis, Ind.

National Association of Teacher Education Institutions in Metropolitan Districts—7:30 A. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 220. Price, \$1.15. W. E. Lessenger, Wayne University, Detroit, Mich.

BREAKFASTS, LUNCHEONS, DINNERS

SUNDAY
Feb. 22

Luncheons

Advisory Council of the American Association of School Administrators—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Tapestry Room. S. D. Shankland, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C. (Council members only.)

Alliance for Guidance of Rural Youth, Department of Rural Education of the National Education Association, and National Vocational Guidance Association (Rural Section)—1:00 P. M. Fairmont Hotel, Garden Room. Price, \$1.25. Mildred Bright, Gresham Court, Richmond, Va.

Conference on Textbook Problems—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$1.40. C. B. Ulery, 536 S. Clark St., Chicago, Ill.

Minnesota Luncheon sponsored by University of Minnesota College of Education and Minnesota Education Association—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Comstock Room. Price, \$1.50. C. P. Archer, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minn.

National Association of Colleges and Departments of Education—12:45 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Parlor B. Price, \$1.30. William S. Taylor, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Ky.

National Association of School Secretaries—12:30 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Empire Room. Price, \$1.75. Mrs. Virginia A. Halsey, Board of Education, Montclair, N. J.

School Public Relations Association—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, French Parlor. Price, \$1.50. Karl H. Berns, 213 E. Broad St., Columbus, Ohio.

Western Institutional Teacher Placement Association—12:30 Noon. Clift Hotel, Roof Lounge. Price, \$1.50. Mrs. Alma Downey, San Francisco State College, San Francisco, Calif.

Dinners

California Society of Secondary Education, Board of Trustees—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 210. A. C. Argo, Sequoia Union High School, Redwood City, Calif. (Board members only.)

Commission on Teacher Education of the American Council on Education (For presidents and secretaries of organizations sponsoring the Joint Conference on Teacher Education)—5:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 220. Harold E. Snyder, 744 Jackson Place, Washington, D. C.

Delta Kappa Gamma—6:00 P. M. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$2.25. Mrs. Esther M. Lipp, 98 Stratford Road, Berkeley, Calif.

Horace Mann League—6:00 P. M. Palace Hotel, California Room. Price \$2.75. Carroll G. Pearse, 1721 Ludington Ave., Milwaukee, Wis. (Members and guests.)

Ninety-Six Club—6:00 P. M. Palace Hotel, Comstock Room. Price, \$2.00. W. W. Borden, Superintendent of Schools, Whiting, Ind.

Phi Sigma Sigma—6:30 P. M. Whitecomb Hotel, Corinthian Room. E. M. Hosman, University of Omaha, Omaha, Nebr.

Pi Lambda Theta—6:30 P. M. Empire Hotel, Humboldt Hall. Price, \$2.00. Mrs. Edith B. Hafer, 1478 20th Ave., San Francisco, Calif.

State University of Iowa—6:00 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Franciscan Room. Price, \$2.00. Bruce E. Mahan, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa.

MONDAY
Feb. 23

Breakfasts

Department of Elementary School Principals—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$1.25. Sarah L. Young, Principal, Parker School, Oakland, Calif.

National Committee on Coordination in Secondary Education—8:00 A. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Room 221. Price, \$1.05. Jesse B. Davis, Boston University, Boston, Mass.

National Council on Work-Study-Play Activities—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, Tapestry Room. Price, \$1.20. H. G. Masters, 341 Bellefield Ave., Pittsburgh, Pa.

Luncheons

American Association of Visiting Teachers—12:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Borgia Room. Price, \$1.50. Mirjam Spreng, Board of Education, San Diego, Calif.

Association for Education by Radio—12:15 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Franciscan Room. Price, \$1.25. Erle A. Kenney, Board of Education, Alameda, Calif.

BREAKFASTS, LUNCHEONS, DINNERS

Colorado Education Association—12:30 P. M. Bellevue Hotel, Mirror Room. Price, \$1.05. W. B. Mooney, 230 Coronado Bldg., Denver, Colo.

MONDAY
Feb. 23

Department of Rural Education—12:00 Noon. Fairmont Hotel, Red Room. Price, \$1.40. Eloise Mays, General Supervisor, Marin County Schools, San Rafael, Calif.

Missouri State Teachers Association—12:15 P. M. Palace Hotel, Comstock Room. Price, \$1.25. Everett Keith, Missouri State Teachers Association, Columbia, Mo.

National Association of Secondary-School Principals—12:30 P. M. Bellevue Hotel, Gold Room. Price, \$1.00. Paul E. Elicker, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

National Association of State Directors of Teacher Education and Certification—12:30 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Room 210. Price, \$1.25. Russell E. Jonas, State Board of Educational Examiners, Des Moines, Iowa.

National Council of Chief State School Officers—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Tapestry Room.

National Federation of Modern Language Teachers and American Classical League—12:30 P. M. Clift Hotel, Parlor C. Price, \$1.25. F. H. Reinsch, 405 Hilgard Ave., Los Angeles, Calif.

National Federation of State High School Athletic Associations—12:00 Noon. Whitecomb Hotel, Corinthian Room. Price, \$1.25. H. V. Porter, 7 S. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill.

National Society of College Teachers of Education—12:15 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 220. Price, \$1.50. Clifford Woody, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.

Save the Children Federation—12:30 P. M. Empire Hotel, Sonoma Room. Price, \$1.25. H. Claude Hardy, Superintendent of Schools, White Plains, N. Y.

State Teachers Magazines, Inc.—12:00 Noon. Palace Hotel, French Parlor. Georgia C. Rawson, 307 N. Michigan, Chicago, Ill.

Dinners

Allied Youth—6:00 P. M. Stewart Hotel, East Room. Price, \$1.50. W. Roy Breg, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

American Educational Research Association—6:45 P. M. Empire Hotel, Humboldt Hall. Helen M. Walker, 525 West 120th St., New York, N. Y.

Colorado State College—6:30 P. M. Alameda Hotel, Alameda, California. Price, \$1.00. Charles R. Bromley, 2109 Clinton Ave., Alameda, Calif.

Department of Adult Education—6:30 P. M. Bellevue Hotel, Crystal Room. Price, \$1.50. George C. Mann, 311 State Bldg., Los Angeles, Calif.

Department of Art Education—7:00 P. M. Fairmont Hotel, Red Room. Price, \$2.25. Mrs. Lydia Fuller-Largent, Unified School District, San Francisco, Calif.

Department of Elementary School Principals—6:00 P. M. Palace Hotel, Gold Ballroom. Price, \$2.50. Sarah L. Young, Principal, Parker School, Oakland, Calif.

Indiana University—6:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, California Room. Price, \$2.00. H. E. Moore, Indiana University, Bloomington, Ind.

National Conference on Family Relations, California Section—12:00 Noon. The Mart Club, Green Room, 1355 Market St. Price, \$1.30. Noel Keys, University of California, Berkeley, Calif.

Breakfasts

TUESDAY
Feb. 24

Georgia Education Association—8:00 A. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Room 214. Ralph L. Ramsey, 704 Walton Bldg., Atlanta, Ga.

Illinois Breakfast—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, Concert Room. Price, \$1.25. John W. Thalman, 1612 N. Sheridan Road, Waukegan, Ill.

Indiana State Teachers Association—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, California Room. Price, \$1.00. Robert H. Wyatt, 203 Hotel Lincoln, Indianapolis, Ind.

Kansas State Teachers Association—7:30 A. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Franciscan Room. Price, \$1.05. F. L. Schlagle, Superintendent of Schools, Kansas City, Kansas.

(Continued on next page)

BREAKFASTS, LUNCHEONS, DINNERS

TUESDAY
Feb. 24

Michigan Breakfast sponsored by University of Michigan School of Education—8:00 A. M. St. Francis Hotel, Colonial Room. Price, \$1.00. J. B. Edmonson, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.

National Advisory Council of Superintendents of the Civics Research Institute—8:00 A. M. Mark Hopkins Hotel, Room A. E. A. Tuite, 3506 Patterson St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

National Association of Secondary-School Principals (For presidents, secretaries, and officers of state secondary-school principals associations)—8:00 A. M. St. Francis Hotel, Grill. Price, 50¢. Paul E. Elicker, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

National League of Teachers Associations—8:00 A. M. Whitcomb Hotel, Corinthian Room. Price, \$1.00. Helen F. Holt, 1543-B Santa Clara Ave., Alameda, Calif.

New Mexico Educational Association—7:45 A. M. Palace Hotel, Room 2050. Price, \$1.20. R. J. Mullins, 114 E. Marcy St., Santa Fe, N. Mex.

Ohio Education Association—8:00 A. M. Palace Hotel, Room A. Price, \$1.20. Helen Bradley, 2349 Ashland Ave., Cincinnati, Ohio.

Oklahoma Education Association—8:00 A. M. Alexander Hamilton Hotel, Parlor B. Price, \$1.05. C. M. Howell, 316 Key Bldg., Oklahoma City, Okla.

Pennsylvania State Education Association—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, French Parlor. Price, \$1.20. H. E. Gayman, 400 N. Third St., Harrisburg, Pa.

Texas Breakfast—7:30 A. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Empire Room. Price, \$1.00. Roy J. Beard, Box 1207, Houston, Texas.

University of Southern California—7:30 A. M. Whitcomb Hotel, Roof Garden. Price, \$1.00. Osman R. Hull, University of Southern California, Los Angeles, Calif.

Utah Education Association—7:30 A. M. Bellevue Hotel, Mirror Room. Price, \$1.00. Hazel Brockbank, 316 Beneficial Life Bldg., Salt Lake City, Utah.

West Virginia State Education Association—8:00 A. M. Bellevue Hotel, Gold Room. Price 75¢. R. B. Marston, 1816 Washington St., Charleston, W. Va.

Luncheons

Chicago Principals' Club in honor of Superintendent William H. Johnson—12:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Green Room. Price, \$2.25. Margaret M. Feeney, 6940 Merrill Ave., Chicago, Ill.

Department of Visual Instruction—12:15 P. M. Whitcomb Hotel, Corinthian Room. Price, \$1.25. W. Gayle Starnes, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Ky.

Department of Vocational Education—12:30 P. M. Central Trade School, 237 E. 11th St., Oakland, Calif. Price, 80¢. Paul D. Thomas, 237 E. 11th St., Oakland, Calif.

Educational Press Association of America—12:15 P. M. Palace Hotel, California Room. Price, \$1.50. Lyle W. Ashby, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C.

Kiwanis Club—12:10 Fairmont Hotel, Gold Room. J. C. Wardlaw, 223 Walton St., N. W., Atlanta, Ga.

National Conference on Research in English—12:00 Noon. Empire Hotel, Humboldt Hall. Price, \$1.30. Mildred Dawson, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, Tenn.

National Conference on Supervised Correspondence Study—12:00 Noon. Clift Hotel, Parlor B. Price, \$1.25. Fred T. Wilhelms, University of Maryland, College Park, Md.

National Council of Administrative Women in Education—12:30 P. M. Western Women's Club, Main Dining Room. Price, \$1.65. Mary J. Sweeney, 118 26th Ave., San Francisco, Calif.

National Council on Teacher Retirement—12:30 P. M. Bellevue Hotel, Mirror Room. Price, \$1.40. Jenzie Roch, 703 Carondelet St., New Orleans, La.

National Schoolmasters Lions Club—12:10 P. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Empire Room. Warren A. Sherman, City Hall, Apponaug, R. I.

Phi Delta Kappa—12:00 Noon. Fairmont Hotel, Terrace Room. Price, \$1.25. Paul M. Cook, 2034 Ridge Road, Homewood, Ill.

School and College Civilian Morale Service—12:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Comstock Room. J. W. Studebaker, U. S. Commissioner of Education, Washington, D. C.

Yale University—12:15 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Room 220. Price, \$1.50. Donald H. Madsen, John Swett School, Oakland, Calif.

BREAKFASTS, LUNCHEONS, DINNERS

Dinner

TUESDAY
Feb. 24

Kappa Delta Pi—6:30 P. M. Fairmont Hotel, Gold Room. Price, \$2.00. E. I. F. Williams, Heidelberg College, Tiffin, Ohio.

Breakfasts

WEDNESDAY
Feb. 25

Arizona Education Association—7:30 A. M. Bellevue Hotel, Jade Room. Price, \$1.00. Nolan D. Pulliam, 403 Security Bldg., Phoenix, Ariz.

California Association of Adult Education Administrators, Workshops Committee—7:30 A. M. Palace Hotel, California Room. Helen Ward, Salinas Evening School, Salinas, Calif.

Legionnaire Schoolmasters Club—7:15 A. M. Mart Club Dining Room, 1355 Market St. Price, \$1.10. Charles F. Dienst, Deputy State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Lincoln, Nebr., and James K. Fisk, Veterans' Bldg., San Francisco, Calif.

Wesleyan University—8:00 A. M. Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Room 221. Price, \$1.00. H. Claude Hardy, Superintendent of Schools, White Plains, N. Y.

Luncheons

Department of Classroom Teachers—12:30 P. M. Fairmont Hotel, Gold Room. Price, \$1.50. Luella Sibbald, 1426 Washington St., San Francisco, Calif.

Department of Supervisors and Directors of Instruction—12:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Italian Room. Price, \$1.50. Wilma Cheatham, Contra Costa County Schools, Martinez, Calif.

National Council of Childhood Education—12:00 Noon. Clift Hotel, Roof Lounge. Price, \$1.50. Mrs. Esther M. Lipp, 98 Stratford Road, Berkeley, Calif.

National Council of State School Boards Associations—12:30 P. M. Whitcomb Hotel, Roof Garden. Price, \$1.15. Mrs. I. E. Porter, 6 Professional Bldg., Bakersfield, Calif.

National Safety Education Association—12:00 Noon. Bellevue Hotel, Jade Room. Elmer B. Siebrecht, 20 Washington Square North, New York, N. Y.

Schoolmasters Rotary Club—12:15 P. M. Palace Hotel, Palm Court. Price, \$1.50. Raymond C. Burdick, Superintendent of Schools, Huntington, N. Y.

Dinners

Harvard University—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Green Room. Price, \$2.00. Evan R. Collins, Harvard University, Cambridge, Mass.

Stanford University—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Colonial Room. Price, \$2.00. J. Paul Leonard, School of Education, Stanford University, Calif.

Teachers College, Columbia University—6:30 P. M. Palace Hotel, Gold Ballroom. Price, \$2.00. Arthur V. Linden, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y.

University of Chicago—6:30 P. M. St. Francis Hotel, Italian Room. Price, \$2.00. William C. Reavis, University of Chicago, Chicago, Ill.

University of Idaho—7:30 P. M. Whitecomb Hotel, Corinthian Room. Price, \$1.65. Joseph W. Burke, 275 Juanita Way, San Francisco, Calif.

Breakfast

THURSDAY
Feb. 26

California Association of Adult Education Administrators, Directors—7:00 A. M. Palace Hotel, Room 2011. Helen Ward, Salinas Evening School, Salinas, Calif.

OTHER MEETINGS

Allied Youth meets at the Stewart Hotel: Monday, February 23, at 5:00 P. M., with a dinner at 6:00 P. M. followed by panel discussion. W. Roy Breg, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C., *Executive Secretary*.

American Association of Teachers Colleges has headquarters at the St. Francis Hotel, Friday and Saturday, February 20-21, with meetings as follows: Friday morning and afternoon, also dinner, Italian Room; Saturday morning, Italian Room; afternoon, Joint Conference on Teacher Education, Colonial Room (See page 40); evening, Italian Room. Charles W. Hunt, State Normal School, Oneonta, N. Y., *Secretary-Treasurer*.

American Association of Visiting Teachers holds a luncheon meeting Monday, February 23, at 12:30 P. M. in the Borgia Room, St. Francis Hotel. Mary J. McGee, 1118 Jennings St., Sioux City, Iowa, in charge.

American Classical League (See National Federation of Modern Language Teachers).

American Industrial Arts Association meets Monday and Tuesday, February 23-24, at 2:30 P. M. in Room 313, Veterans' Building. William E. Warner, Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio, in charge.

Association for Education by Radio meets jointly with the California State Association of English Teachers, Monday morning, February 23, in the NBC Building, Taylor and O'Farrell Streets. This includes also a tour of the new NBC studios. Holds a luncheon Monday at 12:15 P. M. in the Franciscan Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel. On Monday afternoon the two Associations will make a tour of the radio studios of the San Francisco schools. The Association for Education by Radio will present radio recordings in Room 220, St. Francis Hotel, Wednesday and Thursday, February 25-26. Major Harold W. Kent, Bureau of Public Relations, War Department, Washington, D. C., in charge.

Association of California Secondary School Principals holds a meeting of the State Representatives Council, Saturday, February 21, at 9:30 A. M.; a luncheon at 12:00 Noon, followed by an afternoon meeting, all in the French Parlor, Palace Hotel; joint meeting with the National Association of Secondary-School Principals, Monday, February 23, at 2:30 P. M. (See page 35); general session Tuesday, February 24, 2:30 P. M. Concert Room, Palace Hotel. Earle E. Crawford, Glenn County Union High School, Willows, Calif., *President*.

California Association of Adult Education Administrators meets at the Palace Hotel: Breakfast for Workshops Committee at 7:00 A. M., Wednesday, February 25, in the California Room; breakfast for Association Directors at 7:00 A. M., Thursday, February 26, in Room 2011; business meeting of the Association at 9:00 A. M., Thursday, in the California Room. Helen Ward, Salinas Evening School, Salinas, Calif., *President*.

California Elementary School Principals Association holds an all-day meeting Monday, February 23, in the Roof Garden, Whitcomb Hotel.

California Inter-Scholastic Federation meets at the Whitecomb Hotel: Monday, February 23, 4:30-8:00 P. M., White and Gold Room; 8:00 P. M., Roof Garden. H. W. Jennings, Berkeley High School, Berkeley, Calif., in charge.

California Society of Secondary Education, Board of Trustees, holds a dinner meeting, Sunday, February 22, 6:30 P. M., Room 210, St. Francis Hotel. Edward H. Redford, 77 Rossmoor Drive, San Francisco, Calif., in charge.

California State Association of English Teachers—For joint meetings see National Conference on Research in English, also Association for Education by Radio. George Murphy, Humboldt State College, Arcata, Calif.

Commission on Teacher Education of the American Council on Education sponsors a Joint Conference on Teacher Education, Saturday, February 21, at 2:00 P. M. (See page 40); also sponsors a meeting Sunday, February 22, at 10:30 A. M. in the Italian Room, St. Francis Hotel; maintains Work Shop headquarters in Room 212, St. Francis Hotel, thruout the convention. Harold E. Snyder, 744 Jackson Place, Washington, D. C., in charge.

Conference of Oriental Specialists, school and college administrators, curriculum workers and teachers, sponsored by the American Council on Education—Sunday, February 22, 2:00 P. M., Auditorium of Veterans' Building. Presiding,

OTHER MEETINGS

Ray Lyman Wilbur, President, Stanford University; Speaker, His Excellency Dr. Hu-Shih, Chinese Ambassador to the United States; Discussion leaders: Howard E. Wilson, Graduate School of Education, Harvard University; Roy A. Price, Syracuse University; Truman G. Reed, Principal, Lewis and Clark High School, Spokane, Wash.

Conference on Textbook Problems meets at the Palace Hotel, Sunday, February 22: 10:00 A. M. in the Gold Ballroom; luncheon at 12:30 P. M. in the Concert Room. C. B. Ulery, 536 S. Clark St., Chicago, Ill., *Secretary*.

Consumer Education Association meets at the Bellevue Hotel, Saturday, February 21: morning meeting at 9:30 in the Crystal Room; luncheon at 12:00 Noon in the Mirror Room. O. B. Paulsen, Union High School, Hayward, Calif., in charge.

Council of Guidance and Personnel Associations has headquarters and meetings at the Fairmont and Mark Hopkins Hotels, Tuesday thru Friday, February 17-20.

Department of Adult Education meets Monday, February 23, at 2:00 P. M. in Room 223, Veterans' Building; holds a dinner at 6:30 P. M. in the Crystal Room, Bellevue Hotel; meets Tuesday, February 24, at 9:30 A. M. in Room 215, Veterans' Building; at 2:00 P. M. in Room 223, Veterans' Building; Wednesday, February 25, at 2:00 P. M. in Room 223, Veterans' Building. M. S. Robertson, State Department of Education, Baton Rouge, La., *President*.

Department of Art Education holds an afternoon meeting Monday, February 23, in the San Francisco Museum of Art, followed by a dinner in the Red Room, Fairmont Hotel; afternoon meetings, Tuesday and Wednesday, February 24-25, in the San Francisco Museum of Art. Ray Faulkner, Teachers College, Columbia University, New York, N. Y., *President*.

Department of Home Economics meets at the Fairmont Hotel as follows: Saturday, February 21, all-day meeting in the Red Room followed by a dinner meeting at 6:30 P. M. in the Gold Room. Sunday, February 22, sightseeing tour and tea, 2:30-5:00 P. M., 100 San Pablo Avenue, Clara Lee Cone, Public Schools, Atlanta, Ga., *President*.

Department of Visual Instruction meets in the Veterans' Building as follows: Monday, February 23, 9:30 A. M. and 2:15 P. M., Room 314; Tuesday, February 24, 9:30 A. M., Room 314; three group meetings at 10:00 A. M. in Room 311, Room 313, Room 314; luncheon at 12:15 P. M. in the Corinthian Room, Whitcomb Hotel, followed by 3:00 P. M. meeting in Room 314, Veterans' Building. W. Gayle Starnes, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Ky., *President*.

Educational Press Association of America holds a meeting at the Palace Hotel, Tuesday, February 24, 9:00 A. M. in the Comstock Room, followed by a luncheon at 12:15 P. M. in the California Room. Lyle W. Ashby, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C., in charge.

Inter-American Affairs meeting sponsored by the NEA Committee on International Relations—Thursday, February 26, at 9:15 A. M., Room 1, Veterans' Building. Ben M. Cherrington, Director, Foundation for the Advancement of the Social Sciences, Chairman of the Committee. Speakers: Herbert E. Bolton, Head, Department of History, University of California; Kenneth Holland, Director, Education Section, Office of the Coordinator of Inter-American Affairs, Washington, D. C.

Kappa Delta Pi meets at the Fairmont Hotel: Monday, February 23, all-day meeting and luncheon in the Terrace Room; Tuesday, February 24, all-day meeting and luncheon in the Red Room, and dinner in the Gold Room; Wednesday, February 25, all-day meeting and luncheon in the Red Room. E. I. F. Williams, Heidelberg College, Tiffin, Ohio, *Recorder-Treasurer of Executive Council*.

Music Education Forum, under auspices of California-Western Music Educators Conference, meets Wednesday, February 25, at 9:45 A. M., in the Auditorium of the John Muir Elementary School, at Webster and Page Streets, San Francisco. The forum panel will be made up of three school administrators and three representatives from the field of public school music. The program will include an orchestral demonstration by students of the Longfellow Elementary School in Berkeley. Mrs. Helen C. Dill, 304 North La Peer Drive, Beverly Hills, Calif., *President*. Charles M. Dennis, Director of Music, Public Schools, San Francisco, Calif., *Program Coordinator*.

National Advisory Council on School Building Problems holds an all-day meeting Saturday, February 21, with a luncheon at 12:30 P. M. in the Borgia

OTHER MEETINGS

Room, St. Francis Hotel. Alice Barrows, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C., in charge.

National Association of Colleges and Departments of Education meets at the Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Sunday, February 22: 9:30 A. M., Franciscan Room; luncheon meeting at 12:45 P. M., Parlor B. William S. Taylor, College of Education, University of Kentucky, Lexington, Ky., in charge.

National Association of Deans of Women has headquarters and meetings at the Fairmont Hotel, Tuesday thru Friday, February 17-20. Kathryn G. Heath, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C., *Executive Secretary*.

National Association of School Secretaries holds functions in the Empire Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel; Saturday, February 21, 9:00 P. M., reception; Sunday, February 22, 12:30 P. M., luncheon. Virginia A. Halsey, Board of Education, Montclair, N. J., *President*.

National Association of Secretaries of State Teachers Associations meets Monday, February 23, at 9:30 A. M. in the French Parlor, Palace Hotel. Roy W. Cloud, 155 Sansome St., San Francisco, Calif., in charge.

National Association of State Directors of Teacher Education and Certification meets at the Sir Francis Drake Hotel, Monday, February 23: 9:30 A. M. in Room 214; luncheon at 12:30 P. M. in Room 210; 2:00 P. M. meeting in Room 214. Russell E. Jonas, State Board of Educational Examiners, Des Moines, Iowa, in charge.

National Association of Supervisors of Student Teaching meets jointly with the National Society of College Teachers of Education, Monday, February 23, at 2:00 P. M. in the Empire Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel.

National Association of Teacher Education Institutions in Metropolitan Districts holds functions at the St. Francis Hotel: Dinner, Saturday, February 21, at 6:00 P. M. in the Green Room; breakfast, Sunday, February 22, at 7:30 A. M. in Room 220. W. E. Lessenger, College of Education, Wayne University, Detroit, Mich., *Secretary-Treasurer*.

National Association of Teachers of Educational Measurements meets Tuesday, February 24, at 9:00 A. M. and 2:15 P. M. in Room 305, Veterans' Building. Frank S. White, Fairmont State Teachers College, Fairmont, W. Va., *Secretary-Treasurer*.

National Committee on Coordination in Secondary Education holds a breakfast meeting Monday, February 23, at 8:00 A. M. in Room 221, Sir Francis Drake Hotel. Carl A. Jessen, U. S. Office of Education, Washington, D. C., *Secretary*.

National Conference on Family Relations, California Section holds a luncheon Monday, February 24, at 12:00 Noon in the Green Room, Mart Club, 1355 Market St. Noel Keys, University of California, Berkeley, Calif., in charge.

National Conference on Research in English holds a luncheon Saturday, February 21, at 12:30 P. M. in the Jade Room, Bellevue Hotel; meets with the California Association of English Teachers, Monday, February 23, at 9:00 A. M. in the Auditorium of the Veterans' Building. On Tuesday, February 24, meets with the California Association of English Teachers at 9:00 A. M. in the Auditorium of the Veterans' Building; holds a luncheon at 12:00 Noon in Humboldt Hall, Empire Hotel. Mildred A. Dawson, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, Tenn., *President*.

National Conference on Supervised Correspondence Study meets at the Clift Hotel, Tuesday, February 24, 9:00 A. M. in Parlor C, followed by a luncheon at 12:00 Noon in Parlor B. Fred T. Wilhelms, University of Maryland, College Park, Md., *Secretary*.

National Council for the Social Studies meets at the Clift Hotel, Saturday, February 21: 9:30 A. M., Delphian Room; 12:00 Noon, luncheon, Roof Lounge; 2:00 P. M., Delphian Room. Wilbur F. Murra, 1201 16th St., N. W., Washington, D. C., *Executive Secretary*.

National Council of Administrative Women in Education holds a luncheon Tuesday, February 24, 12:30 P. M., Western Women's Club. Mary Sweeney, 118-26 Ave., San Francisco, Calif., in charge.

National Council of State School Boards Associations holds a luncheon meeting Wednesday, February 25, at 12:30 P. M. in the Roof Garden, Whitecomb Hotel. Mrs. I. E. Porter, Professional Building, Bakersfield, Calif., *President*.

National Council of Teachers of Mathematics has headquarters and meetings at the Palace Hotel, Friday and Saturday, February 20-21. Mary A. Potter, Public Schools, Racine, Wis., *President*.

OTHER MEETINGS

National Council on Teacher Retirement meets Monday, February 23, 1:00 P. M., Room 316, Veterans' Building; Tuesday, February 24, Bellevue Hotel; 9:30 A. M., Jade Room; luncheon, 12:30 P. M., followed by afternoon meeting, Mirror Room; Wednesday, February 25, 9:30 A. M., Room 316, Veterans' Building. Mildred Medinger, 911 Lexington Bldg., Baltimore, Md., *Chairman*.

National Council on Work-Study-Play Activities holds a breakfast meeting Monday, February 23, at 7:30 A. M. in the Tapestry Room, Palace Hotel. H. G. Masters, Public Schools, Pittsburgh, Pa., *Chairman*.

National Federation of Modern Language Teachers holds a joint luncheon with the American Classical League, Monday, February 23, at 12:30 P. M. in Parlor C, Clift Hotel. This is immediately followed by a joint meeting at 2:15 P. M. in the Delphian Room, Clift Hotel. F. H. Reinsch, University of California at Los Angeles, in charge.

National Federation of State High School Athletic Associations meets at the Whitecomb Hotel: Sunday, February 22, at 8:00 P. M. in the California Room; Monday, February 23, at 9:00 A. M. in the Georgian Room; luncheon followed by business meeting, Corinthian Room. H. V. Porter, 7 S. Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill., *Secretary*.

National Handwriting Council meets Wednesday, February 25, at 9:30 A. M. in Room 202, Veterans' Building. Alma E. Dorst, Public Schools, Oak Park, Ill., *President*.

National Institutional Teacher Placement Association holds meetings as follows: Saturday, February 21, 8:30 A. M., Parlor B, Clift Hotel; 2:00 P. M., joint conference on Teacher Education, Colonial Room, St. Francis Hotel (See page 40); Sunday, February 22, 9:00 A. M., Parlor B, Clift Hotel. E. W. Goetch, Iowa State Teachers College, Cedar Falls, Iowa, *President*.

National League of Teachers Associations has headquarters and meetings at Hotel Whitecomb: Sunday, February 22, reception at 5:00 P. M., Windsor Room; Monday, February 23, 2:00 P. M., meeting, Georgian Room; 8:00 P. M., open house in headquarters suite; Tuesday, February 24, breakfast at 8:00 A. M., Corinthian Room; meeting at 4:00 P. M., Windsor Room. Helen F. Holt, 1543-B Santa Clara Ave., Alameda, Calif., *President*.

National Safety Education Association holds a meeting Wednesday, February 25, at 9:00 A. M. in the Mirror Room, Bellevue Hotel, followed by a luncheon at 12:00 Noon in the Jade Room. Elmer B. Siebrecht, New York University, New York, N. Y., in charge.

National Vocational Guidance Association has headquarters and meetings at the Fairmont and Mark Hopkins Hotels, Tuesday thru Friday, February 17-20. Clarence W. Failor, 425 W. 123rd St., New York, N. Y., *Executive Secretary*.

Peoples Platform radio broadcast will be presented by the Columbia Broadcasting System, Saturday, February 21, at 1:00 P. M. in the Gold Ballroom, Palace Hotel. Moderator—Ray Lyman Wilbur, Chancellor, Stanford University. (By invitation.)

School Public Relations Association meets at the Palace Hotel: Sunday, February 22, at 9:30 A. M., luncheon at 12:30 P. M., followed by an afternoon meeting, all in the French Parlor; also meets Tuesday, February 24, at 2:30 P. M. in Room 401, Civic Auditorium. Karl H. Berns, 21 E. State St., Columbus, Ohio, in charge.

Society for Curriculum Study meets Saturday, February 21, 9:00 A. M. Joint with Department of Supervisors and Directors of Instruction (See page 32); luncheon 12:15 P. M., Franciscan Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel; four forum sessions at 2:30 P. M., as follows: Room 210, Room 214, Room 217, St. Francis Hotel; Room 214, Sir Francis Drake Hotel; Monday, February 23, 9:00 A. M., discussion session, Room 401, Civic Auditorium; Tuesday, February 24, 9:00 A. M., joint meeting with Department of Supervisors and Directors of Instruction (See page 33). J. Paul Leonard, Stanford University, Calif., *Executive Secretary*.

State Teachers Magazines, Inc. holds a luncheon meeting Monday, February 23, at 12:00 Noon in the French Parlor, Palace Hotel. W. B. Bliss, 213-215 E. Broad St., Columbus, Ohio, in charge.

Western Institutional Teacher Placement Association holds a luncheon Sunday, February 22, at 12:30 P. M. in the Roof Lounge, Clift Hotel. Alma Downey, San Francisco State College, San Francisco, Calif., *Secretary*.

American Association of School Administrators

Officers, 1941-42

<i>President</i> , W. HOWARD PILLSBURY Superintendent of Schools.....	Schenectady, N. Y.
<i>First Vicepresident</i> , CARROLL R. REED First Assistant Superintendent of Schools.....	Washington, D. C.
<i>Second Vicepresident</i> , WORTH MCCLURE Superintendent of Schools.....	Seattle, Wash.
<i>Executive Secretary</i> , SHEEWOOD D. SHANKLAND 1201 Sixteenth Street, Northwest.....	Washington, D. C.

Executive Committee

J. W. RAMSEY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Fort Smith, Ark.
WILLIAM J. HAMILTON, Superintendent of Schools.....	Oak Park, Ill.
HOMER W. ANDERSON, Superintendent of Schools.....	St. Louis, Mo.
STANLEY H. ROLFE, Superintendent of Schools.....	Newark, N. J.
The President, First and Second Vicepresidents, <i>ex officio</i> .	

Commission on Health in Schools—1942 Yearbook

JOHN L. BRACKEN, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	Clayton, Mo.
W. W. BAUER, M.D., Director, Bureau of Health Education, American Medical Association, 535 North Dearborn Street.....	Chicago, Ill.
MARGARET BELL, M.D., F.A.C.P., Professor of Hygiene and Physical Education, Chairman of the Department of Physical Education for Women, and Physician in the Health Service, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mich.	
ROBERT G. BERNREUTER, Professor of Psychology, Pennsylvania State College.....	State College, Pa.
JOHN E. BURKE, M.D., Assistant Superintendent of Schools.....	Schenectady, N. Y.
A. C. FLORA, Superintendent of Schools.....	Columbia, S. C.
WILLIAM J. HAMILTON, Superintendent of Schools.....	Oak Park, Ill.
DANIEL J. KELLY, former Superintendent of Schools.....	Binghamton, N. Y.
BERNICE MOSS, Director of Health, Physical Education, and Recreation, State Department of Public Instruction.....	Salt Lake City, Utah
C. E. TURNER, DR. P.H., Professor of Biology and Public Health, Massachusetts Institute of Technology.....	Cambridge, Mass.
CHARLES C. WILSON, M.D., Professor of Health and Physical Education, Teachers College, Columbia University.....	New York, N. Y.

Commission on Youth Problems—1943 Yearbook

DEWITT S. MORGAN, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools....	Indianapolis, Ind.
EDMUND DES. BRUNNER, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University.....	New York, N. Y.
PAUL L. ESSERT, Superintendent of Schools.....	Grosse Pointe, Mich.
HEROLD C. HUNT, Superintendent of Schools.....	Kansas City, Mo.
PAUL B. JACOBSON, Principal, University High School, University of Chicago.....	Chicago, Ill.
CLAUDE L. KULP, Superintendent of Schools.....	Ithaca, N. Y.
CHARLES H. LAKE, Superintendant of Schools.....	Cleveland, Ohio
EDWIN A. LEE, Dean, School of Education, University of California.....	Los Angeles, Calif.
BARBARA H. WRIGHT, Supervisor of Counselors, Board of Education	Minneapolis, Minn.

Advisory Council

ALABAMA—Charles B. Glenn, Superintendent of Schools.....	Birmingham
ARIZONA—H. E. Hendrix	Phoenix
ARKANSAS—J. W. Ramsey, Superintendent of Schools.....	Fort Smith
CALIFORNIA—John A. Sexson, Superintendent of Schools.....	Pasadena
COLORADO—James H. Risley, Superintendent, School District No. 1	Pueblo
CONNECTICUT—Fred D. Wish, Jr., Superintendent of Schools	Hartford
DELAWARE—H. V. Holloway, State Superintendent of Public Instruction	Dover
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA—Frank W. Ballou, Superintendent of Schools	Washington
FLORIDA—R. C. Marshall.....	Jacksonville
GEORGIA—Willis A. Sutton, Superintendent of Schools.....	Atlanta
IDAHO—Glenn W. Todd, President, State Normal School.....	Lewiston
ILLINOIS—William J. Hamilton, Superintendent of Schools.....	Oak Park
INDIANA—J. Ralph Irons, Superintendent of Schools.....	Evansville
IOWA—Jordan L. Larson, Superintendent of Schools.....	Dubuque
KANSAS—L. W. Mayberry, Superintendent of Schools.....	Wichita
KENTUCKY—Lee Kirkpatrick, Superintendent of Schools.....	Paris
LOUISIANA—Nicholas Bauer.....	New Orleans
MAINE—	
MARYLAND—David E. Weglein, Superintendent of Schools.....	Baltimore
MASSACHUSETTS—John J. Desmond, Jr., Superintendent of Schools.....	Chicago
MICHIGAN—Otto W. Haisley, Superintendent of Schools	Ann Arbor
Paul T. Rankin, Supervising Director of Research and Informational Service, Board of Education.....	Detroit
MINNESOTA—	
MISSISSIPPI—H. M. Ivy, Superintendent of Schools.....	Meridian
MISSOURI—Willard E. Goslin, Superintendent of Schools.....	Webster Groves
MONTANA—Payne Templeton, Superintendent of Schools	Helena
NEBRASKA—C. Ray Gates, Superintendent of Schools	Grand Island
NEVADA—Mildred N. Bray, State Superintendent of Public Instruction	Carson City
NEW HAMPSHIRE—James N. Pringle, State Commissioner of Education	Concord
NEW JERSEY—John H. Bosshart, Superintendent of Schools.....	South Orange and Maplewood
A. S. Chenoweth, Superintendent of Schools.....	Atlantic City
NEW MEXICO—John P. Steiner, Superintendent of Schools	Portales
NEW YORK—Claude L. Kulp, Superintendent of Schools	Ithaca
Harry W. Langworthy, Superintendent of Schools	Gloversville
NORTH CAROLINA—W. Frank Warren, Superintendent of Schools	Durham
NORTH DAKOTA—H. H. Kirk, Superintendent of Schools	Fargo
OHIO—George A. Bowman, Superintendent of Schools	Youngstown
Claude V. Courier, Superintendent of Schools	Cincinnati
OKLAHOMA—John S. Vaughan, President, Northeastern State Teachers College	Tahlequah
OREGON—Frederick M. Hunter, Chancellor, State System of Higher Education, University of Oregon	Eugene
PENNSYLVANIA—Robert R. Abernethy, Superintendent of Schools	Harrisburg
Ben G. Graham, Superintendent of Schools	Pittsburgh
RHODE ISLAND—James L. Hanley, Superintendent of Schools	Providence
SOUTH CAROLINA—James H. Hope, State Superintendent of Education	Columbia
SOUTH DAKOTA—John C. Lindsey, Superintendent of Schools	Mitchell
TENNESSEE—W. T. Robinson, Superintendent of Schools	Chattanooga
TEXAS—E. E. Oberholtzer, Superintendent of Schools	Houston
William M. Green, Superintendent of Schools	Fort Worth
UTAH—L. John Nuttall, Jr., Superintendent of Schools	Salt Lake City
VERMONT—F. S. Irons, District Superintendent of Schools	Bennington
VIRGINIA—Omer Carmichael, Superintendent of Schools	Lynchburg
WASHINGTON—Orville C. Pratt, Superintendent of Schools	Spokane
WEST VIRGINIA—W. W. Trent, State Superintendent of Free Schools	Charleston
WISCONSIN—G. F. Loomis, Superintendent of Schools	Kenosha
WYOMING—A. A. Slade, Superintendent of Schools	Laramie
UNITED STATES OFFICE OF EDUCATION—John W. Studebaker, Commissioner of Education, Federal Security Agency	Washington, D. C.

Convention Summarization Committee

HENRY H. HILL, <i>Chairman</i> , Dean, University of Kentucky.....	Lexington, Ky.
FRANK W. HUBBARD, <i>Secretary</i> , Director of Research, National Education Association.....	Washington, D. C.
A. HELEN ANDERSON, Supervisor of Publications, Public Schools.....	Denver, Colo.
G. DERWOOD BAKER, Superintendent of Schools.....	Boulder, Colo.
KNUTE O. BROADY, Director, University Extension Division, University of Nebraska.....	Lincoln, Nebr.
HOMER H. CORNICK, Superintendent of Schools.....	Santa Cruz, Calif.
ROBERT E. CRALLE, Superintendent of Schools.....	Inglewood, Calif.
PAUL H. DEMAREE, District Superintendent of Schools.....	Anaheim, Calif.
G. E. DILLE, Superintendent of Schools.....	Peoria, Ill.
JOHN W. DODD, Superintendent of Schools.....	Freeport, N. Y.
H. H. EELKEMA, Superintendent of Schools.....	Duluth, Minn.
E. A. ELLIOTT, Superintendent of Schools.....	Joplin, Mo.
PHILO T. FARNSWORTH, Superintendent, Granite School District.....	Salt Lake City, Utah
WILLARD S. FORD, Superintendent of Schools.....	Glendale, Calif.
OTTO W. HAISLEY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Ann Arbor, Mich.
FRANK W. HART, Professor of School Administration, University of California.....	Berkeley, Calif.
LESTER D. HENDERSON, District Superintendent of Schools.....	Burlingame, Calif.
BERYL HENRY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Hope, Ark.
W. KARL HOPKINS, Superintendent of Schools.....	Ogden, Utah
O. S. HUBBARD, County High School Curriculum Coordinator.....	San Jose, Calif.
J. STEVENS KADESCH, Superintendent of Schools.....	Medford, Mass.
M. A. KOPKA, Superintendent of Schools.....	Hamtramck, Mich.
FORREST W. MURPHY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Greenville, Miss.
ELMA A. NEAL, Assistant Superintendent of Schools.....	San Antonio, Texas
KENNETH E. OBERHOLTZER, Superintendent of Schools.....	Long Beach, Calif.
ROSS N. ROBINSON, Superintendent of Schools.....	Kingsport, Tenn.
W. T. ROWLAND, JR., Superintendent of Schools.....	Lexington, Ky.
WILLIAM F. SHIRLEY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Marshalltown, Iowa
DALY THOMPSON, Superintendent of Schools.....	Franklin, Tenn.
MRS. ARDELLA BITNER TIBBY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Compton, Calif.
GLENN W. TODD, President, State Normal School.....	Leviston, Idaho
Z. M. WALTER, Superintendent of Schools.....	Wyoming, Ohio
FRANK M. WRIGHT, District Superintendent of Schools.....	El Monte, Calif.

Board of Tellers

PAUL LOSER, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	Trenton, N. J.
JULIUS E. SCOTT, Superintendent of Schools.....	Peekskill, N. Y.
HARVEY A. SMITH, Superintendent of Schools.....	Lancaster, Pa.

Convention Exhibit Committee

HOMER W. ANDERSON, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	St. Louis, Mo.
BEN G. GRAHAM, Superintendent of Schools.....	Pittsburgh, Pa.
PHILIP J. HICKEY, Secretary and Treasurer, Board of Education.....	St. Louis, Mo.

Audit Committee

JESSE H. BINFORD, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	Richmond, Va.
RAY E. CHENEY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Elizabeth, N. J.
EVAN E. JONES, Superintendent of Schools.....	Port Chester, N. Y.

Educational Policies Commission

ALEXANDER J. STODDARD, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools	Philadelphia, Pa.
EDMUND E. DAY, President, Cornell University	Ithaca, N. Y.
GEORGE D. STRAYER, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University	New York, N. Y.
JAMES B. CONANT, President, Harvard University	Cambridge, Mass.
CHARLES B. GLENN, Superintendent of Schools	Birmingham, Ala.
SIDNEY B. HALL, Professor of Education, George Washington University	Washington, D. C.
FREDERICK M. HUNTER, Chancellor, Oregon State System of Higher Education, University of Oregon	Eugene, Oregon
JOHN K. NORTON, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University	New York, N. Y.
EMILY A. TARBELL, Teacher, Vocational High School	Syracuse, N. Y.
GEORGE S. COUNTS, Professor of Education, Teachers College, Columbia University	New York, N. Y.
J. B. EDMONSON, Dean, School of Education, University of Michigan	Ann Arbor, Mich.
AGNES SAMUELSON, Executive Secretary, Iowa State Teachers Association	Des Moines, Iowa
JOHN A. SEXSON, Superintendent of Schools	Pasadena, Calif.
J. W. STUDEBAKER, U. S. Commissioner of Education	Washington, D. C.
GEORGE F. ZOOK, President, American Council on Education	Washington, D. C.
MYRTLE HOOPER DAHL, President, National Education Association	Minneapolis, Minn.
W. HOWARD PILLSBURY, President, American Association of School Administrators	Schenectady, N. Y.
KATY V. ANTHONY, President, Department of Classroom Teachers	Richmond, Va.
WILLARD E. GIVENS, Executive Secretary, National Education Association	Washington, D. C.
S. D. SHANKLAND, Executive Secretary, American Association of School Administrators	Washington, D. C.

Committee on Resolutions

JAMES M. SPINNING, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools	Rochester, N. Y.
JOHN H. BOSSHART, Superintendent, South Orange and Maplewood Schools	South Orange, N. J.
GEORGE A. BOWMAN, Superintendent of Schools	Youngstown, Ohio
EDGAR G. DOUDNA, Secretary, State Board of Regents of Normal Schools	Madison, Wis.
J. B. EDMONSON, Dean, School of Education, University of Michigan	Ann Arbor, Mich.
W. C. GRIGGS, Superintendent of Schools	Mobile, Ala.
F. E. HENZLIK, Dean, Teachers College, University of Nebraska	Lincoln, Nebr.
H. M. IVY, Superintendent of Schools	Meridian, Miss.
Mrs. INEZ JOHNSON LEWIS, State Superintendent of Public Instruction	Denver, Colo.
JOHN D. LOPER, Superintendent of Schools	Phoenix, Ariz.
C. G. MANNING, Superintendent of Schools	Lewistown, Mont.
LAWRENCE W. MAYBERRY, Superintendent of Schools	Wichita, Kansas
VERNON L. NICKELL, Superintendent of Schools	Champaign, Ill.
L. JOHN NUTTALL, JR., Superintendent of Schools	Salt Lake City, Utah
CLYDE U. PHILLIPS, Superintendent of Schools	Hays, Kansas
SUE M. POWERS, County Superintendent of Schools	Memphis, Tenn.
ORVILLE C. PRATT, Superintendent of Schools	Spokane, Wash.
WILLIAM C. REAVIS, Professor of Education, University of Chicago	Chicago, Ill.
AGNES SAMUELSON, Executive Secretary, Iowa State Teachers Association	Des Moines, Iowa
L. E. STUTSMAN, Superintendent of Schools	San Antonio, Texas
EDMUND L. TINK, Superintendent of Schools	Kearney, N. J.
CURTIS E. WARREN, Superintendent of Schools	Santa Barbara, Calif.

Committee on the CCC and the NYA

A. L. THRELKELD, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	Montclair, N. J.
JAMES L. HANLEY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Providence, R. I.
H. M. IVY, Superintendent of Schools.....	Meridian, Miss.
CLAUDE L. KULP, Superintendent of Schools.....	Ithaca, N. Y.
ALEXANDER J. STODDARD, Superintendent of Schools.....	Philadelphia, Pa.

Committee on Priorities

DAVID E. WEGLEIN, <i>Chairman</i> , Superintendent of Schools.....	Baltimore, Md.
H. A. ALLAN, Business Manager, National Education Association.....	Washington, D. C.
CHARLES H. LAKE, Superintendent of Schools.....	Cleveland, Ohio

CONFERENCE ON PRIORITIES FOR SCHOOL SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT

Monday, February 23—8:00 P. M.

Empire Room, Sir Francis Drake Hotel

*Under Joint Auspices of
American Association of School Administrators, NEA
and
National School Supplies and Equipment Association*

A symposium of ways and means for school administrators, school business officials, equipment manufacturers, and distributors.

Chairman, L. E. Parmenter, Executive Secretary, National School Supplies and Equipment Association, Chicago, Illinois.

Committee Announcements

American Association of School Administrators

Committee on Resolutions holds an open meeting Monday, February 23, at 11:00 A. M. in Room 403, Civic Auditorium. James M. Spinning, *Chairman*.

Convention Summarization Committee has a headquarters office in Rooms 2024-2026, Palace Hotel. Members reporting the convention sessions are requested to turn in their written summaries to this office promptly. Henry H. Hill, *Chairman*; Frank W. Hubbard, *Secretary*.

Consultants of the Educational Policies Commission meet Saturday, February 21, at 8:00 P. M. in the Gold Ballroom, Palace Hotel. Alexander J. Stoddard, presiding. William G. Carr, *Secretary*.

Board of Tellers meets Tuesday, February 24, at 4:30 P. M. in Room 403, Civic Auditorium. Paul Loser, *Chairman*.

National Education Association—Officers, 1941-42

President, MYRTLE HOOPER DAHL

Hiawatha School Minneapolis, Minn.

Executive Secretary, WILLARD E. GIVENS

1201 Sixteenth Street, Northwest Washington, D. C.

Associate Secretary, WILLIAM G. CARR

1201 Sixteenth Street, Northwest Washington, D. C.

Treasurer, B. F. STANTON

Superintendent of Schools Alliance, Ohio

Honorary

JOHN DEWEY, Honorary President New York, N. Y.

MRS. SUSAN M. DORSEY, Honorary President Los Angeles, Calif.

J. W. CRABTREE, Secretary Emeritus Washington, D. C.

Executive Committee

MYRTLE HOOPER DAHL, Chairman Minneapolis, Minn.

HELEN T. COLLINS New Haven, Conn.

FRED D. CRAM Cedar Falls, Iowa

DONALD DU SHANE Washington, D. C.

A. C. FLORA Columbia, S. C.

JOSEPH H. SAUNDERS Newport News, Va.

B. F. STANTON Alliance, Ohio

JOHN W. THALMAN Waukegan, Ill.

ANNIE C. WOODWARD Somerville, Mass.

Board of Trustees

JOSEPH H. SAUNDERS, Chairman Newport News, Va.

EDGAR G. DOUDNA, Secretary Madison, Wis.

MYRTLE HOOPER DAHL Minneapolis, Minn.

FLORENCE HALE Darien, Conn.

THOMAS J. WALKER Columbia, Mo.

Official Meetings

National Education Association

Executive Committee will meet Monday, February 23, and Tuesday, February 24, both meetings to convene at 2:00 P. M. in the Madera Room, Empire Hotel.

Committee Meetings

National Education Association

National Commission for the Defense of Democracy thru Education
meets Sunday, February 22, at 2:00 P. M. in the Madera Room, Empire Hotel,
Alonzo F. Myers, *Chairman*.

NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION—COMMITTEES

Legislative Commission meets Sunday, February 22, at 8:00 P. M. in the Gold Ballroom, Palace Hotel, H. M. Ivy, *Chairman*.

National Council on Teacher Retirement of the NEA meets as follows: Monday, February 23, at 1:00 P. M. in Room 316, Veterans' Building; Tuesday, February 24, at 9:30 A. M. in the Jade Room, Bellevue Hotel; luncheon, 12:30 P. M. in the Mirror Room, Bellevue Hotel, followed by a meeting in the same room; Wednesday, February 25, at 9:30 A. M. in Room 316, Veterans' Building, Mildred Medinger, *Chairman*.

Committee on Tenure meets Monday, February 23, at 2:00 P. M. in the Monterey Room, Empire Hotel. Frances Jelinek, *Chairman*. The Committee will maintain headquarters for conference purposes in the Empire Hotel thruout convention week.

Joint Committee of the NEA and NCPT will have a breakfast meeting, Tuesday, February 24, at 7:30 A. M. in the Grill Room, Empire Hotel, Agnes Samuelson, *Chairman*.

Committee on Equal Opportunity meets Tuesday, February 24, at 2:00 P. M. in the Monterey Room, Empire Hotel. R. L. Hunt, *Chairman*.

Committee on New Voter Preparation and Recognition meets Tuesday, February 24, at 4:00 P. M. in the Monterey Room, Empire Hotel, Hugh S. Bonar, *Chairman*.

Committee on International Relations holds an open meeting Thursday, February 26, at 9:15 A. M. in Room 1, Veterans' Building. Ben M. Cherrington, Director, Foundation for the Advancement of the Social Sciences, *Chairman*. Speakers: Herbert E. Bolton, Head, Department of History, University of California, Berkeley; Kenneth Holland, Director, Education Section, Office of the Coordinator of Inter-American Affairs, Washington, D. C.

Other Meetings

National Education Association

Board of Directors, informal meeting on Tuesday, February 24, at 4:15 P. M. in the Madera Room, Empire Hotel.

Registration and Exhibit Schedule

Registration is in the Exhibit Hall, main floor of the San Francisco Civic Auditorium. Following is schedule of hours when registration and exhibits are in operation:

Saturday, February 21..... 9:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M.
Sunday, February 22..... 12:00 Noon to 3:30 P.M.
Monday, February 23..... 8:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M.
Tuesday, February 24..... 8:30 A.M. to 5:30 P.M.
Wednesday, February 25.... 8:30 A.M. to 6:00 P.M.
Thursday, February 26.... 8:30 A.M. to 3:00 P.M.

The Press Bureau, directed by Belmont Farley and his staff of the headquarters offices in Washington, is located in Rooms 106-108, first floor, Civic Auditorium.

PARTICIPANTS IN THE EXHIBIT

Name	Space No.	Name	Space No.
Academic Film Co., Inc.....	C-8	Hamilton Manufacturing Company.....	K-14-16
Allied Youth, Inc.....	C-3	Harcourt, Brace and Company, Inc.....	I-12-14
Allyn and Bacon.....	G-16-18-20	Harper & Brothers.....	M-13
Americana Corporation.....	F-20	Heath and Company, D. C.....	G-15
American Automobile Association.....	M-12	Heywood-Wakefield Company.....	I-21-23-25
American Book Company.....	G-6-8	Hillyard Sales Company.....	E-16-18
American Crayon Company, The.....	F-9	Holt and Company, Inc., Henry.....	H-21-23
American Education Press, Inc.....	G-14	Houghton Mifflin Company.....	E-6-8
American Home Economics Association.....	J-4	Huntington Laboratories, Inc.....	M-7-8
American Library Association.....	M-14		
American Optical Company.....	I-15-17-19		
American School Publishing Corporation.....	L-9		
American Seating Company.....	F-22-24-26		
	G-21-23-25		
American Technical Society.....	J-6		
American Type Founders.....	F-16-18	Ideal Pictures Corp.....	J-10
Ampro Corporation.....	D-21	International Business Machines Corporation	L-4-6-8-10-12-14-16
Armstrong Cork Company.....	L-3-5		
Army of the United States—Bureau of Publications	M-22		
Automatic Pencil Sharpener Division.....	L-18		
Bausch and Lomb Optical Co.....	I-2-4		
Bell & Howell Company.....	G-27-28; H-27	Jam Handy Organization, The.....	C-19
Binney & Smith Co.....	D-7	Joint University Press Exhibit.....	E-22
Bobbs-Merrill Company, The.....	G-9	Junior Literary Guild, The.....	C-15
Bradley Company, Milton.....	D-18		
British Library of Information.....	K-3		
Bruce Publishing Co.....	I-20	Kent Company, Inc., The.....	K-19
Burroughs Adding Machine Company	K-15-17	Keystone View Company.....	I-6
Cadmus Books.....	C-17		
California Test Bureau.....	I-22	Laidlaw Brothers, Publishers.....	F-10
Celotex Corporation, The.....	J-2	Lippincott Company, J. B.....	E-1
Center for Safety Education.....	C-2	Little, Brown & Company, Inc.....	D-9
Chicago Apparatus Company.....	H-25	Lyon Metal Products, Incorporated.....	D-6
Christian Science Monitor, The.....	E-28	Lyons & Carnahan.....	H-9-I-13
Civie Education Service.....	J-14	Macmillan Company, The.....	H-2-4; I-1-3
Clarin Mfg. Company.....	M-9-10	Maieo Company, Incorporated, The.....	C-16
Classroom Teacher, Inc.....	C-21	McCormick-Mathers Publishing Co., The	I-III-13
Colgate-Palmolive-Peet Company.....	K-8	McGraw-Hill Book Co., Inc.....	E-3
Collegiate Cap and Gown Company.....	M-6	Medart Manufacturing Company, Fred	K-10-12
Columbia University Press.....	E-22	Merriam Company, G. & C.....	H-12-14
Compton & Company, F. E.....	G-11-13	Metropolitan Life Insurance Co.....	F-25
Contract Bridge School Service.....	K-7	Midland Chemical Laboratories, Inc., L-III-15	
Defense Savings Staff—Education Division, U. S. Treasury.....	D-27	Monroe Calculating Machine Company, Inc.	D-2-4
Denoyer-Geppert Co.....	I-24-26-28		
DeVry Corporation.....	M-1-2		
Dick Company, A. B.....	H-15-17-19	Nation's Schools Publishing Co., Inc., The	G-24
Dictaphone Corporation.....	K-4-6	National Broadcasting Co.....	E-9-11
Ditto, Inc.....	E-15-17-19	National Child Welfare Association, Inc.	D-16
Dixon Crucible Company, Joseph.....	F-28		
Draper Shade Co., Luther O.....	D-14	National Congress of Parents and Teachers	K-2
Dudley Lock Corporation.....	G-22	National Conservation Bureau.....	C-2
Eagle Pencil Co.....	J-22	National Dairy Council.....	M-16
Ediphone, The.....	D-17-19	National Education Association.....	D-8
Educational Publishing Corporation.....	D-20	National Geographic Society.....	G-5-7
Educational Test Bureau—Educational Publishers, Inc.....	J-8	National Lock Co.....	I-18
Encyclopaedia Britannica, Inc.....	G-17-19	National Safety Council, Education Division	D-26
Erie Classroom Films Inc.....	H-6-8	Neuemade Products Corporation.....	D-11-13
Esterbrook Steel Pen Mfg. Company, The	H-20	Norcoc Manufacturing Co., Inc.....	M-15
Evaporated Milk Association.....	J-16	Norton Door Closer Co.....	D-23-25
Faber Penell Co., Eberhard.....	C-14	Nystrom & Co., A. J.....	H-16-18
Finell System, Inc.....	D-22		
Follett Publishing Company.....	L-11	Owen Publishing Company, F. A.....	H-26
Ford Sales Company, The J. B.....	M-11		
Franklin Research Company.....	D-24	Palmer Company, The A. N.....	E-24
Fricker Press Company, The.....	C-9	Pan American Educational Center.....	J-12
Gaylord Bros., Inc.....	E-26	Peoples University Publishing Co.....	M-19
Gel-Sten Supply Co., Inc.....	M-17	Personal Products Corporation, The.....	C-18
Ginn and Company.....	F-6-8	Pictorial Films, Inc.....	C-8
Glynn-Johnson Corporation.....	D-23-25	Porter Corporation, J. E.....	M-4-5
Green Publishing Co., The.....	F-27	Prentice-Hall, Inc., Publishers.....	L-1
Grotier Society, Inc., The.....	I-9	Public School Publishing Company.....	E-20
Gutjahn, Inc., Walter O.....	D-15		
		Quarrie Corporation, The.....	F-11-13
		Rand McNally & Company.....	I-8-10
		RCA Manufacturing Company, Inc.....	E-5-7
		Reader's Digest, The—Popular Science Monthly	J-20
		Remington Rand Inc.....	C-1
		Rice & Co., Chas. W.....	K-5
		Row, Peterson and Company.....	F-12-14
		Royal Metal Mfg. Company.....	I-16
		Royal Typewriter Company, Inc.....	G-10-12
		Rutgers University Press.....	E-22

PARTICIPANTS IN THE EXHIBITS

<i>Name</i>	<i>Space No.</i>	<i>Name</i>	<i>Space No.</i>
Sadlier, Inc., William H.....	K-1	University of Minnesota Press.....	E-22
Scholastic Publications.....	H-10	University of Nebraska, Extension	
School Service Bureau.....		Division	L-21
Scott, Foresman and Company.....	H-5-7	University of North Carolina Press.....	E-22
Scribner—Charles Scribner's Sons.....	D-10-12	U. S. Office of Education.....	L-7
Sheldon & Company, E. H.....	F-21-23		
Signal Press.....	K-9		
Silver Burdett Company.....	E-12-14	Vestal Chemical Laboratories, Inc.....	M-3
Singer Sewing Machine Company, Ine.	D-1-3-5	Victor Animatograph Corporation....	K-20-22
Society for Visual Education, Inc.....	E-25	Vocational Guidance Films, Inc.....	C-5
South-Western Publishing Company.....	E-10	Vonnegut Hardware Co.....	D-23-25
Spencer Lens Company.....	I-15-17-19		
Spencer Turbine Co.....	L-19	Wakefield Brass Co., The F. W.....	M-18
Spindler & Sauppe, Inc.....	K-21	Waxinate Company, Inc., The.....	C-7
Standard Electric Time Co., The.....	E-21-23	Weber Costello Co.....	F-17-19
Stanford University Press.....	E-22	Webster Publishing Company.....	F-15
Strathmore Educational Service.....	L-20	Welfare Engineering Company.....	I-5-7
Underwood Elliott Fisher Company..	H-22-24	West Disinfecting Company.....	K-18
United States Navy, Bureau of Navigation	M-20-21	White Sewing Machine Company.....	L-17
United States Secret Service.....	K-11	Whitman & Company, Albert.....	K-13
University of California Press.....	E-22	Winston Company, The John C.....	F-5-7
University of Chicago Press.....	E-22	World Book Company.....	G-26
University of Georgia Press.....	E-22		
University of Iowa, Bureau of Educational Research and Service.....	L-2	Yale & Towne Mfg. Company, The.....	C-10
		Yale University Press.....	E-22
		Zaner-Bloser Co., The.....	E-13

HOSPITALITY

Library Tea.—Visiting librarians and their friends are invited to tea by the School Library Association of California, Northern Section, at the Galileo High School Library, Van Ness Avenue at Bay Street, Wednesday, February 25, from 3:00 to 6:00 P. M. Complimentary tickets will be issued at the School Library Booth until noon on Wednesday.

Women of the convention are invited to informal receptions under the auspices of the Hospitality Committee on Monday, February 23, and Tuesday, February 24, from 2:00 to 5:00 P. M., in Room 407 of the Western Women's Club at 609 Sutter Street. Sociability, tea, and automobile trips about San Francisco for those who would enjoy them will be "the order of the day."

Excursion to Stanford University has been arranged for Thursday afternoon, February 26. A special bus will leave the Civic Auditorium at 1:30 P. M. Round trip bus fare will be 90¢. Those who have transportation may join the group at the School of Education Building at Stanford University at 2:30 P. M. An hour should be allowed to drive to the campus. There will be a directed tour of the campus and a tea at the School of Education Building at 4:00 P. M. Those making the trip by bus will return to San Francisco in time to make connection with trains going east and north. Those going south to Los Angeles may take the evening trains at Palo Alto. Those desiring bus accommodations should register at the Convention Information Desk before Wednesday noon.

New York University School of Education will serve tea to alumni and friends in NYU headquarters at the St. Francis Hotel on the afternoons of Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday, February 23, 24, 25, from 4:30 to 5:30 o'clock.

CONVENTION SPEAKERS

	Page		Page		Page
A					
Abbett, Merle J.	19	Cherney, Ray E.	8, 13	Farley, Belmont M.	25
Adamson, Hans Christian.	11	Cheroweth, A. S.	13	Feng, Chih-Tsing	12
Addicott, Irwin O.	28	Ching, J. Frederie	26	Fishback, E. H.	19
Adler, Mortimer J.	39	Christianson, Helen	37, 38	Flint, Louis R.	12
Alexander, Margery	28	Clark, Lois M.	30	Flora, A. C.	25
Alschuler, Rose H.	37	Clinchy, Everett R.	32	Flynn, Ella	33
Alves, Henry F.	10	Cody, Frank	9, 17, 25	Fong, Helen	12
Anderson, Homer W.	16, 22	Cole, Stewart G.	33	Ford, Willard S.	18
Anderson, Howard R.	24	Collier, Paul D.	36	Ferry, Kenneth	29
Anderson, John E.	41	Conner, Jay D.	28	Foshay, Arthur W.	29
Andrews, John N.	18, 20	Cook, Lloyd	33	Fowlkes, John Guy	19, 20
Andrus, Ruth	13	Copeland, S. D.	19	Frasier, George W.	13
Ankenbrand, W. W.	23	Corbally, John E.	42	Frazier, Maude	17
Anthony, Katy V.	28	Corey, Arthur F.	19	Freeburg, Roy E.	3, 30
Armstrong, W. Earl	40	Corey, Stephen M.	40	Freeman, Frank N.	25, 27, 38
Arndt, C. O.	33	Corning, Hobart M.	17, 19	French, Will	35
Arrowood, Charles F.	41	Corrigan, Mrs. Grace J.	15	Friedman, Florence	37
Ashby, Lyle W.	22	Counts, George S.	14, 32, 38, 41	Fuhrmann, William A.	10
Ayer, Fred C.	41	Courter, Claude V.	15, 38		
B		Cramer, John F.	23	G	
Bacon, Francis L.	17, 35	Crawford, C. C.	42	Gans, Roma	30
Badger, Flossita	5	Crawford, Earle E.	35	Gates, Arthur I.	27
Badger, O. B.	21	Crawford, Will C.	17, 18	Gates, C. Ray	13
Bagley, William C.	18, 39	Crosby, Otis A.	25	Gates, Doris	30
Bailey, Edna W.	22	Cross, Henry A.	35	Gibbon, C. D.	34
Baker, Clara Belle	37	Cunningham, Ruth M.	32, 34	Gilson, Dan H.	29
Ball, James J.	16	Cushman, Charles Leslie	20	Givens, Willard E.	10
Ball, Kenneth H.	5	Cutright, Prudence	22, 32	Glaed, Earl	11
Baruch, Dorothy W.	33	Cyr, Frank W.	15, 23, 31	Glenn, Charles B.	17
Batchelder, Mildred	37			Goldstein, Morris	10
Bauer, W. W.	15	D		Good, Carter V.	38
Baxter, Bernice	23	Dahl, Mrs. Myrtle Hooper	11, 28	Goodrich, Lowell P.	20, 33
Baxter, Bruce R.	3	Davis, Jesse B.	35	Goodwin, John	29
Bell, Reginald	32	Davis, Perey R.	17, 26	Goodykoontz, Bess	32
Benjamin, Harold	24, 40, 41	Dawson, Howard A.	15, 30, 31	Goudy, Elizabeth	20
Beswick, John C.	34	Dennis, Charles M.	5	Gowans, J. W.	19
Bigelow, Karl W.	8, 35, 40	Dennis, L. H.	10, 14	Graham, Ben G.	38
Bonar, Hugh S.	22	Desmond, John J., Jr.	19	Gray, William S.	17, 21, 41
Bond, Mary E.	28	Dexter, Walter F.	37	Gridstaff, Leonard	31
Bosshart, John H.	19, 25	Dobyns, Evalyn	29	Griggs, W. C.	25
Bowman, C. R.	31	Dodd, John W.	25	Grigsby, Rall I.	21
Bowsher, E. L.	21	Doudna, Edgar G.	19, 25	Grubbs, H. C.	6, 9
Bracken, John L.	10, 15	Douglass, Aubrey A.	36, 38	Guitteau, J. A.	31
Braden, George W.	38	Douglass, Harl R.	18	Gunstmann, John W.	20
Bradley, Vivian	4	Dozier, Doris	24	Gwynn, Joseph M.	13
Bray, Mildred	24	Drag, Francis L.	31		
Breed, Frederick S.	39	Draper, Edgar M.	41	H	
Broady, Knute O.	16	Duggdale, R. E.	25	Haggesy, James L.	39
Brown, Horace I.	4	Duggan, Anne Schley	22, 36	Haight, Rex C.	31
Brown, Walter H.	30	Dukes, Charles A.	22	Hall, Sidney B.	16, 38
Brown, William	36	DuShane, Donald	25, 28	Hamilton, William J.	15
Brownlee, Aleta	25			Hanley, James L.	21
Brubacher, John S.	24, 39	E		Hanna, Paul R.	15, 22, 30
Bryan, John E.	26	Eddy, Paul	36	Harbeson, John W.	17
Buckley, M. T.	23	Edgar, Robert H.	29	Hardin, Virgil M.	35
Burke, Arvid J.	25	Edmands, Ruth	34	Hardy, H. Claude	25
Burton, William H.	23, 42	Edmiston, Mrs. Eleanor F.	28	Hardy, Marjorie	37
Buswell, G. T.	27	Edwards, Newton	38	Hart, Frank W.	26
Byers, Jean	7	Eelkema, H. H.	16	Henton, Kenneth L.	33
C		Eldred, Arvie	25	Hefferman, Helen	16, 23, 29, 30, 33
Cahill, Hope L.	37	Elcker, Paul E.	8, 34, 35	Heichemer, Cecilia C.	38
Campbell, Gerald	8	Elsbree, Willard S.	30	Heinemat, Irene T.	37
Campbell, William G.	41	Engelhardt, N. L.	23	Henderson, Frank A.	19
Carothers, Milton W.	32, 40	Engle, Elizabeth M.	33	Henderson, Zach. S.	41
Carr, William G.	13, 37, 38	English, Colin	36	Henry, Dorothy	37
Case, R. D.	16	English, Mildred E.	16	Henry, Nelson B.	39
Cassidy, Rosalind	18	Ernst, Karl D.	3	Herrick, Carolyn	4
Caswell, Hollis L.	33	Ethridge, Mrs. Willie Snow	10	Hershey, Lewis B.	13
Caverly, Ernest R.	21	Eurich, Alvin Christian	17, 27, 41	Hilgard, Ernest R.	40
Chamberlain, H. E.	38	Evenden, Edward S.	25	Hill, Andrew P.	36
Chan, Woodrow	33	Evingson, Caroline J.	19	Hill, Henry H.	35
Charters, W. W.	38	Ewing, Muriel Olofson	7		

	Page		Page		Page
Hill, Merton E.....	20			Pittenger, B. F.....	20,
Hollinshead, Byron Sharpe.....	17			Plutte, Edward.....	5
Holloway, H. V.....	36			Potter, Milton C.....	4, 34
Holt, Harvey J.....	36			Power, F. Ray.....	31
Hook, George E.....	36			Powers, Pliny H.....	23
Horn, Ernest.....	27			Powers, Sue M.....	26
Horne, Herman H.....	39			Pratt, Orville C.....	13
Hostler, Amy.....	37			Preston, C. W.....	29
Howard, C. A.....	17			Prince, Mildred M.....	33
Howard, Mrs. Daisy E.....	16,			Pulliam, Roscoe.....	15, 31, 36
	30, 31				
Hudspeth, Jack.....	22				
Hunter, Frederick M.....	6, 8				
Hutchinson, Charles E.....	42				
	I				
Ingram, George D.....	13			Raisner, Wilbur W.....	28
Ireland, Everett W.....	23			Ramsey, J. W.....	21
				Randall, Harriett B.....	28
	J			Ransdell, F. C.....	31
Jacobsen, E. W.....	15, 16, 19			Raup, Bruce E.....	41
Jacobson, Paul B.....	35			Ray, Kenneth C.....	20
Jager, Harry A.....	10			Redding, William F.....	20
Jeffers, Edmund V.....	4			Reece, J. T.....	31
Jeffries, U. B.....	23			Reeves, Floyd W.....	35, 38
Jenkins, Mrs. Letha.....	31			Reid, C. T.....	21
Jewell, J. R.....	31, 42			Reidy, David W.....	19
Jobe, E. R.....	35			Reynolds, Helen M.....	37
Joe, Patricia.....	12			Ricardo.....	10
Johnson, William H.....	20			Ring, Carlyle C.....	25
Jones, Harold E.....	27, 41			Roberts, Holland.....	33
Judd, Charles H.....	38, 40			Robinson, Isabel J.....	37
Judd, Walter H.....	12			Robinson, William McKinley	16
				Rogers, Virgil M.....	24
	K			Rolfe, Stanley H.....	19
Kaulfers, Walter V.....	33, 41			Rowell, Chester.....	14
Kaull, Clarence.....	6			Rufer, Mrs. Naomi.....	16
Kefauver, Grayson N.....	36			Rugen, Mabel E.....	18
Kent, Edwin.....	16			Russell, William F.....	14,
Kersey, Vierling.....	18, 23				22, 38
Kibby, Ira W.....	24			Ryan, Belle M.....	26
Kiely, Margaret.....	38				
Kilpatrick, William H.....	39				
King, James.....	28				
Kletzer, Mrs. William.....	33, 38				
Knobbs, Pauline.....	33				
Knoles, Tully C.....	34				
Knuth, William E.....	3				
Kopka, M. A.....	19				
Kristick, Peter.....	34				
Kyte, George C.....	27, 37, 42				
	L				
Lambert, A. C.....	31				
Lamoreaux, Lillian A.....	33				
Landis, Emerson H.....	21				
LaPiere, Richard T.....	25				
Laws, Gertrude.....	16				
Lee, Ching Wah.....	12				
Lee, Mrs. Ching Wah.....	33				
Lee, Edwin A.....	40				
Lee, Flora.....	12				
Lee, James J.....	16				
Lee, Katherine.....	12				
Leffler, Millard C.....	18				
Leiser, Mrs. Gladys M.....	11				
Lewis, Mrs. Inez Johnson.....	37				
Lien, Marie.....	41				
Lighthart, Jack.....	4				
Lilge, Frederick.....	41				
Lindquist, E. F.....	27				
Lindquist, Rudolph D.....	33				
Lipp, Esther M.....	37				
Loftus, John J.....	29				
Long, James H.....	11				
Lonsdale, Bernard.....	31, 34				
Loofbourow, Graham C.....	42				
Lund, John.....	8				
	M				
McCall, Eileen L.....	3				
McClure, Worth.....	10, 17, 23,				
	38, 42				
McCombs, Newell D.....	26				
McConnell, T. R.....	27, 39, 40				
McDaniel, H. B.....	31				
McGill, Earl.....	11				
McGucken, William J.....	39				
McNaughton, Kenneth B.....	11				
McPhee, Julian A.....	24				
	N				
Maaske, Roben J.....	16, 31				
MacKay, Donald S.....	42				
MacKaye, David L.....	19, 26				
Mann, George C.....	25				
Marcham, Frederick G.....	24				
Marsh, Clarence S.....	8				
Marsh, Mildred.....	4				
Marshall, James.....	14				
Mason, Charles C.....	21				
Maxwell, Charles F.....	16, 31				
Mayberry, L. W.....	17				
Mead, A. R.....	40, 41				
Melchoir, William T.....	33				
Merium, Junius L.....	42				
Millikan, Robert Andrews.....	9				
Moehlman, Arthur B.....	20				
Moffitt, J. C.....	18				
Monroe, Eason.....	33				
Montgomery, E. W.....	19				
Moore, James.....	34				
Morgan, Agnes Fay.....	22				
Morrisett, Lloyd N.....	23				
Morse, C. Marguerite.....	28				
Mort, Paul R.....	38				
Moss, Bernice.....	18				
Murdock, Forrest G.....	35				
Myers, Alonzo F.....	28				
	O				
Neal, Elma A.....	33				
Neulen, Leon N.....	17, 23				
Newby, Ruth.....	37				
Neyhart, Amos E.....	26				
Nichols, Claude A.....	41				
Nicholson, James T.....	26				
Noble, Ralph E.....	30				
Norgard, Gertrude.....	5, 34				
Norton, John K.....	14, 38				
Nourse, Joseph P.....	3, 19				
Nuttall, L. John, Jr.....	18,				
	19, 24				
Nye, Claribel.....	24				
	P				
Paden, William G.....	16, 26				
Parker, J. Cecil.....	33, 35				
Parmenter, L. E.....	16				
Pechstein, Louis A.....	38				
Peik, W. E.....	27				
Phillips, Hubert.....	19				
Pierce, Jason Noble.....	4				
Pihl, Martin.....	5				
Pillsbury, W. Howard.....	3,				
	5, 6, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13				
Pinkston, Eva G.....	29				
	R				
Raisner, Wilbur W.....	28				
Ramsey, J. W.....	21				
Randall, Harriett B.....	28				
Ransdell, F. C.....	31				
Raup, Bruce E.....	41				
Ray, Kenneth C.....	20				
Redding, William F.....	20				
Reece, J. T.....	31				
Reeves, Floyd W.....	35, 38				
Reid, C. T.....	21				
Reidy, David W.....	19				
Reynolds, Helen M.....	37				
Ricardo.....	10				
Ring, Carlyle C.....	25				
Roberts, Holland.....	33				
Robinson, Isabel J.....	37				
Robinson, William McKinley	16				
Rogers, Virgil M.....	24				
Rolfe, Stanley H.....	19				
Rowell, Chester.....	14				
Rufer, Mrs. Naomi.....	16				
Rugen, Mabel E.....	18				
Russell, William F.....	14,				
	22, 38				
Ryan, Belle M.....	26				
	S				
Samuelson, Agnes.....	25				
Sanford, R. Nevitt.....	25				
Sayre, Harrison M.....	26				
Schaefer, Reinhold.....	8				
Schoelkopf, Alice.....	30				
Scott, Zenos E.....	18				
Sears, Jesse B.....	27				
Seeds, Corinne A.....	30				
Sellery, C. Mocley.....	22				
Sexson, John A.....	17, 21, 38				
Seyfert, Warren C.....	32, 35				
Shangle, C. Paine.....	23				
Sheats, Paul H.....	19, 22				
Shepard, William A.....	38				
Shearer, Lorraine Miller.....	32				
Silver, Abba Hillel.....	8				
Sloss, Mrs. M. C.....	33				
Smith, Paul.....	9				
Smith, William A.....	41				
Snedden, David.....	42				
Spiering, Emil J.....	29, 30				
Spinning, James M.....	13				
Sproul, Roger Gordon.....	13				
Staffelbach, Elmer H.....	39				
Stoddard, Alexander J.....	6, 38				
Stoddard, George D.....	14, 22, 41				
Stolz, Herbert R.....	16, 30,				
	32, 36				
Stolz, Lois Meek.....	37, 41				
Storey, Ruth T.....	25				
Stouffer, S. M.....	17				
Stratton, Mason A.....	29				
Straver, George D.....	6				
Studebaker, John W.....	9, 10,				
	17, 26, 31, 34, 37				
Studebaker, Mabel	28				
Study, H. P.....	40				
Sutton, Willis A.....	4, 19, 30				
Sweet, Walter P.....	17				
Swenson, Esther.....	33				
Swift, Fletcher H.....	41				

	Page		Page		Page		
T							
Taba, Hilda.....	24	Vartanian, Richard.....	5	Wills, Sidney H.....	5		
Tait, Charles P.....	34	Venable, B. W.....	9	Wilson, Charles C.....	22		
Taggart, Lelia Ann.....	31	von KleinSmid, Rufus B.....	41	Wilson, Howard E.....	15, 24		
Taylor, Wallace.....	33	W					
Termen, Lewis M.....	21	Walker, Mrs. Beulah Keeton	28	Watson, Annie Clo.....	33		
Thomas, Frank W.....	38	Walker, Helen M.....	27	Watson, Goodwin B.....	38		
Thomas, Paul.....	34	Walters, Mrs. Verna Fogg.....	20	Weglein, David E.....	10, 15		
Threlkeld, A. L.....	14	Wanamaker, Pearl A.....	37	Wells, Jere A.....	31		
Thurber, Clarence H.....	24	Watson, Annie Clo.....	33	Wellwood, John E.....	34		
Tiemann, Harry.....	34	Watson, Goodwin B.....	38	Wemmer, Elmo.....	5		
Trabue, M. R.....	21, 40	Weglein, David E.....	10, 15	Weyand, Margaret Thomas	8		
Troyer, Maurice E.....	27	Wells, Jere A.....	31	White, Raymond L.....	3, 4		
Turner, H. L.....	41	Wellwood, John E.....	34	White, Saul.....	6		
Tyler, I. Keith.....	20, 35	Wemmer, Elmo.....	5	Wilbur, Ray Lyman.....	10		
Tyler, Ralph W.....	20	Weyand, Margaret Thomas	8	Williams, R. L.....	17		
V							
Vance, R. R.....	36	White, Raymond L.....	3, 4	Zapoleon, Mrs. Marguerite			
Van Kleeck, Edwin R.....	24	White, Saul.....	6	W.....	24		
		Wilbur, Ray Lyman.....	10	Zeller, Dale	32, 33		
		Williams, R. L.....	17	Zook, George F.....	8, 38		
Y							
Z							



HEALTH in SCHOOLS

Twentieth Yearbook—American Association
of School Administrators

The Association's Commission on *Health in Schools* has been at work for two years on this volume which discusses such topics as:

- Organization and Administration of the General Program
- Guidance of Individual Pupil Health
- School Health Instruction Program
- Health Aspects of Physical Education and Recreation
- Mental Hygiene in the School Program
- School Programs for Physically Exceptional Children
- Communicable Diseases: General Control Measures
- Healthful School Environment
- Functions and Preparation of School Health Personnel
- Administrative Practices Affecting the Health of the School Personnel
- Coordination of Health Agencies
- Legislative and Legal Aspects of the School Health Program
- Methods of Appraisal in School Health Programs

The yearbook is sent free to members with dues paid for 1942. Price per copy to nonmembers is \$2.00.

Discounts on quantity orders of the same book: 2-9 copies, 10%; 10-99 copies, 25%; 100 or more copies, 33½%.

ON SALE AT REGISTRATION DESK, CIVIC AUDITORIUM